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WEST BENGAL STATE ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION COMPANY LIMITED

( A Government of West Bengal Enterprise )
Vidyut Bhavan, Sector Il, Block — DJ, Bidhannagar, Kolkata-700 091

CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholders,
Welcome to 9" Annual General Meeting of the Company.

It gives me great pleasure to share with you an update on the overall performance of your Company.
In a challenging external environment, your Company performed well and delivered another year of
consistent, profitable and responsible growth. Your Company continued to remain committed to
making sustainable improvement in service delivery standards with steady progression of Consumer
strength. It is heartening to note that electricity has reached in over 95% of the area of the state.
Initiative has been taken to electrify the remaining 5% area of the state within next year. There are 14
villages in Sunderbans located in difficult terrain where there is no power supply. The work for laying
poles has already started for supply of the conventional power through grids to those villages. We are
harnessing technology with initiatives of successful implementation of Enterprise Resource
Planning (ERP). I am happy to inform you that your Company was awarded prestigious SAP ACE
award by SAP India. We also launched the mobile application called 'VIDYUT SAHAYYOGTI'.
Developed with state of art technology and based on the android mobile platform, this application
will help the consumers of the Company to apply for new connection, view and pay bills, call
docketing and other facilities. This module will allow the consumers to see their current electricity
bill and make payment using the payment gateways in the system. Consumers can also download the
bill, view consumption history for the last six months.

I am hopeful that with your support the Company will look at more reform initiatives with the aim of
improvement in service and efficiency and making West Bengal an attractive destination for
investment.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank each and every one of our employees whose
commitment and hard work helped deliver another successful year. I would also like to thank you, all
our shareholders, for their continued support in our journey to deliver value to all our stakeholders.

Yours Sincerely,
Sd/-

(Rajesh Pandey )
Chairman and Managing Director
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WEST BENGAL STATE ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION COMPANY LIMITED

( A Government of West Bengal Enterprise )
Vidyut Bhavan, Sector Il, Block — DJ, Bidhannagar, Kolkata-700 091

NOTICE OF 9™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 9" Annual General Meeting of the Members of West Bengal State

Electricity Distribution Company Limited will be held at the Registered Office of the Company at Vidyut

Bhavan, 7 Floor (Conference room) Sector I, Block DJ, Bidhannagar, Kolkata-700 091 on Friday, the 23rd

ORDINARY BUSINESS :
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual

Accounts of the Company for the financial year
ended 31% March, 2016, the Balance Sheet as at
that date and the Reports of the Directors and
Auditors thereon.

. To take note of the appointment of M/s. De &
Bose, 8/2, Kiran Sankar Roy Road , 2™ Floor,
Room No.-1 & 18, Kolkata-700 001, Chartered
Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the
Company made by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India for auditing the annual accounts
of the Company for the financial year 2016-2017

and to fix their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS::
3. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or

without modification, the following resolution as
an ordinary resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT as required under Rule
14 (a) (ii) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, the appointment of M/s A.J.S &

September, 2016 at 11.00 A.M. for the transaction of the following businesses:

Associates, as Cost Auditor of the Company for
the financial year 2016-17 at a remuneration of
T 75,000 (Rupees seventy five thousand only)
plus out of pocket expenses of ¥ 22,370 ( Rupees
twenty two thousand three hundred seventy only)
on lump sum basis and Travelling Expenses,
Boarding & Lodging expenses of ¥ 62,500
(Rupees sixty two thousand five hundred only)
based on 25 units having total financial involvement
of ¥ 1,59,870 (Rupees one lakh fifty nine thousand
eight hundred seventy only), service tax ,if any, to
be allowed at prevailing rate as specified in the
Service Tax Rules, made by the Board of
Directors of the Company on the recommendation
of the Audit Committee be and is hereby noted
and ratified.”

. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or

without modification, the following resolution as
an ordinary resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT appointment of Shri
Avinash Kumar Sinha as Independent Director of
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the Company made by the Department of Power
& NES, Government of West Bengal in
pursuance of the notification no. 312-PO/O/C-
IV/1E-15/2016 dated 20.05.2016 be and is
hereby taken on record and approved.”

NOTES:

1) A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND
AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED
TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND
VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.
PROXIES IN ORDER TO BE VALID AND
EFFECTIVE MUST BE DELIVERED AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY
NOT LATER THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS
BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE
MEETING.

Dated ; 19.09.2016

Registered Office :
Vidyut Bhavan,
Sector-II, Block- DJ,
Bidhannagar,
Kolkata- 700 091

2) In pursuance of Section 139(5) of the Companies

Act, 2013(the Act), the Statutory Auditors of a
Government Company is appointed by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India.
Further, under Section 142 of the Act, the
remuneration of the Statutory Auditors of a
Company shall be fixed in its General Meeting or
in such manner as may be determined therein.
Accordingly, the Resolution authorizing the
Board of Directors of the Company to fix the
remuneration of the Statutory Auditors of the
Company to be appointed by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India for the year 2016-2017
is proposed for approval of the Shareholders.

3) An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section

102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
itemnos. (3) and (4)are attached.

By Order of the Board

Sd/-
( PX.Banerjee )
Company Secretary
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
( Pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 )

ltem No. 3

The Board of Directors of the Company, on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved
the appointment and remuneration of M/s A.J.S &
Associates as Cost Auditor of the Company to
conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company
for the financial year ending 31st March, 2017. In
terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(a)(ii) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is required
to be ratified by the Members of the Company.
Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought to
ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost
Auditor. Their remuneration was fixed at ¥ 75,000/-
(Rupees seventy five thousand only). In addition
they will be entitled to the reimbursement of
Travelling Expenses, Boarding & lodging expenses
based on 25 Units of ¥ 62,500/~ (Rupees sixty two
thousand five hundred only) and out of pocket
expenses I 22,370/- ( Rupees twenty two thousand
three hundred seventy only) on lump sum basis
totaling ¥ 1,59,870/- (Rupees one lakh fifty nine
thousand eight hundred seventy only).

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel
and their relatives, are concerned or interested
(financially or otherwise) in this Resolution.

Dated : 19.09.2016

Registered Office :
Vidyut Bhavan,
Sector-II, Block- DJ,
Bidhannagar,
Kolkata- 700 091
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The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set
out at Item No. 3 for the approval of Members.

ltem No. 4

In pursuance of the notification no. 312-PO/O/C-
IV/1E-15/2016 dated 20.05.2016 of Department of
Power & NES, Government of West Bengal, Shri
Avinash Kumar Sinha was appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company. The Board of
Directors of the Company in its 65" meeting held on
04.07.2016 took note of the said appointment. Shri
Avinash Kumar Sinha is the Head of School of
Energy Science and Engineering and Professor,
Department of Electrical Engineering,IIT, Kharagpur.
He has wide and varied experience which can be
gainfully utilized by the Company. It will therefore
be in the interest of the Company to approve the
appointment of Shri Sinha as an Independent
Director of the Company. As contained under
Section 150(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, the
appointment of Independent Director shall be
approved by the Company in a general meeting.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel
and their relatives, except Shri Avinash Kumar Sinha
are concerned or interested (financially or otherwise)
in this Resolution.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set
out at Item No. 4 for the approval of Members.

By Order of the Board

Sd/-
( PX.Banerjee )
Company Secretary
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Ninth Annual Report together with Financial Statements of
the Company for the financial year ended 317 March, 2016.

Performance Highlights :

Particulars 2014-15 (MU) 2015-16 (MU)
Sales 27250.69 26175.77
Purchase 37812.719 36825.271
Generation including PPSP (Net of Auxiliary consumption) 1902.812 1565.140

Financial Review :
The summary of financial results of the Company for the year ended 31* March, 2016 is given below:

Particulars 2014-15 (¥ In Crore) | 2015-16 (¥ In Crore)
Revenue from Operations 16920.76 16046.91
Other operating Revenue 519.58 446.66
Regulatory Income 1997.52 2054.36
Other Income 145.48 63.37
Total Income 19583.34 18611.30
Profit before tax 30.04 35.18
Income Tax 10.22 13.60
Profit after tax 19.82 21.58
Ratios :
Particulars 2014-15 2015-16
Debt Equity Ratio 7.53 8.18
Current Ratio 1.05 1.23
Quick Ratio 1.01 1.20
Assets Utilisation (%) 117 102.90
No. of days payable (Power Purchase) 64 73
Interest Coverage Ratio 1.48 1.52
Net Worth (¥ in crores) 2126 2131
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.23 1.29
No. of days receivable 91 97
Inventory Turn Over Ratio 3.47 3.30
Return on capital employed (%) 2.77 291
Return on Net Worth ( %) 0.93 1.01
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Sources of Income (in %) for the year 2015-2016

0.34 = Revenue from Sale of
Energy

m Other Operating
Revenue

® Amount realisable
through Regulatory
Mechanism

= Other Income

Sources of Income (in %) for the year 2014-2015

0.74

= Revenue from Sale of
Energy

m Other Operating Revenue

® Amount realisable
through Regulatory
Mechanism

m Other Income
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Break-up of Expenditure (in %) for the year 2015-2016

1.15

264 183 0.421

Purchase of Power &
Transmission Charges

= Employee Benefit expenses

® |Interest and Finance Costs

= Depreciation

® Outsourced Jobs

76.29

Repair & Maintenance
Expenses

Administrative & General
Expenses

m Others

Break-up of Expenditure (in %) for the year 2014-2015

Purchase of Power &
Transmission Charges

Employee Benefit expenses
Interest and Finance Costs
Depreciation

Outsourced Jobs

Repair & Maintenance

Expenses

Administrative & General
Expenses

Others
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Sale of Energy (MKWH) (in %) for the year 2015-2016

® Domestic 9120
® Commercial 3462
® Industrial 7140
® Irrigation 1624
= Railway Traction 1062
= Others 682
= Other Licensee 505
= Swap Out 709
Sale to person other than
Licensee and Consumer 1971

Sale of Energy (MKWH) (in %) for the year 2014-2015

= Domestic 8463
® Commercial 3457
® Industrial 7538
= |rrigation 1492
m Railway Traction 1050
m Others 510
= Other Licensee 2290
= Swap Out 546
Sale to person other than
Licensee and Consumer 1905
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Sale of Energy (Rupees in crore) (in %) for the year 2015-2016

® Domestic 4993
m Commercial 2571
® Industrial 5068
m Irrigation 620
m Railway Traction 773
w Others 469
% Other Licensee 329
n Swap Out 229

Sale to person other than
Licensee and Consumer 994

Sale of Energy (Rupees in crore) (in %) for the year 2014-2015

m Domestic 4547
® Commercial 2603
B |ndustrial 5685
m [rrigation 545
u Railway Traction 762
m Others 358
@ Other Licensee 1302
m Swap Out 184

Sale to person other than
Licensee and Consumer 934
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Revenue receipt & expenditure ( ¥ in crore )

20000 1
18000 1
16000 1
14000 1
12000
10000
8000 1
6000 -
4000 -
2000 H

/ 19583 19553 18611 18576

2014-2015 2015-2016

B Receipt

B Expenditure

Assets ( T in Crore)

20000

18000

17986

16000

14000
12000
10000
8000
6000
4000
2000

6557 5265

Net Fixed Assets Capital WIP  Other Non-  Current Assets
Current Assets

m 2014-15
m 2015-16
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Liabilities ( ¥ in Crore)

12000 7~ 10737 9296 10266

10000 ¥~ 8987 8568 8934

8000 +~ 6364

6000 +~

4000 {52 2029 2060

2000 = 20142015
0 ' s T .0% ' R ' m 20152016
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Share capital :

The authorized share capital of the Company was
% 4050 crore. The paid up share capital of the
Company as on 31.03.16 was ¥ 2256.74 crore.
Entire share capital of the Company is subscribed by
the Governor of West Bengal and His nominees.

Deposits :

During the year, your Company has not accepted any
public deposits under Chapter V of the Companies
Act,2013.

Extract of Annual Return:

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, extract of annual
returnis enclosed as Annexure 1.

Number of Board Meetings :

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and
decide on business strategies/policies and review of
the financial performance of the Company. The
notice of each Board Meeting along with the agenda
is given in writing to each Director separately and in
exceptional cases tabled at the meeting. This ensures
timely and informed decisions by the Board.

In the financial year 2015-16, the Board met 9 (nine)
times, details of which are given in the Corporate
Governance Report that forms part of this Annual
Report. The interval between two consecutive
meetings of the Board was not more than 120 days as
specified under Section 173 of the Companies Act,
2013.

Risk Management Policy :
The Company has developed a Risk Management
Policy identifying the element of risk that applies to

Distribution and Hydro Generation of Electricity
including Power Purchase. The main objective of the
policy is to ensure sustainable business growth with
stability and to promote pro-active approach in
reporting, evaluating and resolving risk associated
with the business. The specific objectives of the Risk
Management Policy are:

1. To ensure that all the current and future materials
risk exposure of the Company are identified,
described, estimated, mapped, evaluated and
treated.

2. Toestablish a frame work for the Company's Risk
Management process and to ensure Company-
wide implementation.

3. To ensure systematic and uniform assessment of
risk related with construction projects and power
Distribution business.

4. To enable compliance with appropriate
regulations, wherever applicable, through the
adoption of best practices.

5. To ensure business growth with financial
stability.

The Risk Committee comprises Shri K.K. Ghosh,
Director (Finance) as Chairman of the Committee.
Other Committee members are Shri Ajay Kumar
Pandey, Director (R&T), Shri PX. De, Chief Engineer
(Distribution) and Shri PK. Pal, Chief Engineer
(Commercial).

The Risk Management Committee will work on an
ongoing basis within the risk framework outlined in
the Risk Management policy to mitigate the risks to
the Company's business as it may evolve over time.
In terms of the proposal submitted by the Committee
a Risk Cell has been constituted for evaluation,
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reporting and monitoring of various Risks and their
mitigation as an ongoing basis.

Internal control systems and their adequacy :

The Company's internal control systems are
commensurate with the nature of its business and the
size and complexity of its operations. These are
routinely tested and certified by Statutory as well as
Internal Auditors. Significant audit observations and
follow up actions thereon are reported to the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee reviews adequacy
and effectiveness of the Company's internal control
environment and monitors the implementation of
audit recommendations, including those relating to
strengthening of the Company's risk management
policies and systems.

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) -
IFRS Converged Standards :

Your Company will adopt Ind AS with effect from
Ist April, 2016 pursuant to Ministry of Corporate
Affairs notification dated 16th February, 2015
notifying the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2015. In 2015-16, your Company
has substantially completed the assessment of the
impact of the change to Ind AS on the profit for the
relevant periods. Your Company is in the process of
modification of accounting and reporting systems to
facilitate the changes. The implementation of Ind AS
is a major change process and your Company had
organized an Ind AS session to brief the participants
on the new provisions of Ind AS.

Capital Expenditure during the year was at ¥ 2162.98
crore (I 1927.94 crore in the previous year).

Right to Information Act, 2005 ( RTI):
The Company has put in place RTI machinery for

ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015-2016

effective implementation of the provisions of the
RTTAct, 2005. Public Information Officer (P10) has
been designated to dispose of the requests for
information sought under RTI Act, 2005. An
Appellate Authority has been designated at Head
Office to deal with the appeals received under RTI
Act,2005.

Disclosure on Establishment of a Vigil
Mechanism :

In compliance with the provisions of Section 177 (9)
and 177(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its
Powers) Rules, 2014, a Whistle Blowing Policy was
formulated by the Company. Provisions have been
made in the policy for providing adequate
safeguards against victimization of persons who use
such mechanism and the policy makes provision for
direct access to the chairperson of the Audit
Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases.

The details of the establishment of the wvigil
mechanism have been disclosed in the Company's
website.

According to the policy, the Audit Committee shall
oversee the vigil mechanism and if any member of
the Committee has a conflict of interest in a given
case, he should recuse himself and other members of
the Audit Committee would deal with the matter.

In case of repeated frivolous complaints being filed
by a Director or an employee, the Audit Committee
may take suitable action against the concerned
Director or employee including reprimand.

Directors' Responsibility Statement :

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm
that:



a) in the preparation of the Financial Statements,
the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the
financial year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period.

c¢) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care
for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified) and
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (to
the extent applicable) for safeguarding the assets
of your Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the Financial

Statements on a going concern basis;

¢) the directors had laid down Internal Financial
Controls to be followed by the Company and
that such Internal Financial Controls are
adequate and were operating effectively; and

f) the directors had devised proper system to
ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

Related party transaction:
In line with the requirements of the Companies Act,
2013 and Listing Regulations, your Company has
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formulated a Policy on Related Party Transactions
which is also available on Company's website at
www.wbsedcl.in. The Policy intends to ensure that
proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes
are in place for all transactions between the
Company and Related Parties. All Related Party
Transactions entered during the year were in
Ordinary Course of the Business and on Arm's
Length basis. No Material Related Party
Transactions, i.e. transactions exceeding ten percent
of the annual consolidated turnover as per the last
audited financial statements, were entered during
the year by your Company. Accordingly, the
disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required
under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013
in Form AOC-2 is not applicable.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace::
As per the requirement of The Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules made there under
your Company has constituted Internal Complaints
Committees (ICC) to redress complaints received
regarding sexual harassment. All employees
(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are
covered under this policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment

complaints received and disposed off during the
year2015-16:

Number of complaints received during the Financial
Year : Nil

Number of complaints disposed off during the
Financial Year : Nil
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Details of Subsidiary, Joint Venture or
Associates :
New Town Electric Supply Company Limited
(NTESCL):

NTESCL is a joint venture between your Company
and West Bengal Housing Infrastructure
Development Corporation Limited (WB HIDCO)
with equity participation of T 4.94 crore in
NTESCL. Pursuant to the provisions of Section
129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement
containing salient features of financial statements of
joint venture companies in Form AOC 1 is attached
to the Accounts.

Consolidated Accounts of your Company and
NTESCL are attached with this report.

Highlights of financial performance of NTESCL

2015-16 | 2014-15
Income
Revenue from Operation 641 | 597
Other Income 115] 194
Total Income 756 791
Expenditure

Administrative Expenditure 481 416
Depreciation 26 21
Total Expenditure before 507| 438
exceptional Items
Exceptional Items [(Prior period 45) 7
income)/ Prior period expenses]
Profit before tax 293| 346
Provision for Tax 107| 120
Profit after tax 186| 226
Considering volume of business of WBSEDCL it
may be stated that financial performance of
NTESCL have very insignificant impact on the
overall performance of WBSEDCL.
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West Bengal Green Energy Development
Corporation Limited (WBGEDCL) :

The Company was an equity partner in WBGEDCL.
The participation of the Company in WBGEDCL
was 35% of the Paid up Capital equivalent to I 1.75
crore. In pursuance of Memo No. 664(4)-PO/O/C-
IV/1E-55/13 dated 29.09.2014 of the Department of
Power & NES, Government of West Bengal, the
entire shares held by the Company in WBGEDCL
were sent to WBGEDCL for registering transfer of
shares in favour of Governor of West Bengal and His
nominees.

Power Exchange India Limited (PXIL):

The Company has executed a Share Transfer and
Shareholders Agreement with National Stock
Exchange of India Limited, National Commodity &
Derivatives Exchange Limited and Power Exchange
India Limited under which investment of a sum of
T 4.00 crore have been made in PXIL.

Details of key managerial personnel :

The key managerial personnel of the Company are

as under :

1. Shri Rajesh Pandey, Chairman and Managing
Director

2. Shri Kalyan Kumar Ghosh, Director (Finance)
and CFO

3.  ShriPralay Kumar Banerjee, Company Secretary

Significant and Material Orders passed by

the Regulators:

1. Tariff order dated 10th August, 2015 passed by
the West Bengal Electricity Regulatory
Commission for the year 2015-16 in Case
No.TP-61/13-14 in regard to the Tariff



Application of WBSEDCL for the years 2014-15,
2015-16and 2016-17.

2. West Bengal Electricity Regulatory Commission
issued an order dated 30.10.2015 in determination
of wheeling charges payable to WBSEDCL for
use of its distribution system for conveyance of
electricity by open access customers including
captive generating plants during the financial
year 2015-16.

3. Notification has been issued by WBSEDCL on
15.10.2015 on the basis of consent of the
Government of West Bengal dated 23.09.2015
and direction of West Bengal Electricity
Regulatory Commission dated 25.07.2014
regarding supply of power to Industrial
Consumers at 132 KV and 33 KV and Traction
Consumers at a competitive tariff with respect to
other distribution licensees in the area of
Damodar valley where multiple licensees are
functioning.

AUDIT COMMITTEE :

The composition of the Audit Committee is as

follows :
Sl . N Position in
Nol Name of Director Designation |4 .~ iee
1. | Shri Debashish Majumdar | Independent | Chairman
Director
2. | Smt. Saswati Banerjee Government | Member
Nominee and
‘Woman Director
3. | Shri Gopal Krishna Saxena| Independent | Member
Director
4. | Shri Avinash Kumar Sinha | Independent | Member
Director

Role and responsibilities — Audit Committee :

The responsibility of the Audit Committee includes :

i) The recommendation for appointment,
remuneration and terms of appointment of
Auditors of the Company including Cost
Auditor, Secretarial Auditor, Tax Auditor,
Internal Auditor and outsourced Internal
Auditors;

ii) Review and monitor the Auditor's independence
and performance and effectiveness of audit
process;

iii) Examination of the financial statement and the
Auditor's Report thereon;

iv) Approval or any subsequent modification of
transactions of the Company with related parties;

v) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and
investments;

vi) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the
Company, wherever it is necessary;

vii) Evaluation of internal financial controls and
risk management systems;

viii) Monitoring the end use of funds raised and
related matters;

ix) Overseeing the financial reporting process to
ensure fairness, transparency, sufficiency and
reliability of financial statements, including
recognition, recording and reporting of
financial information in keeping with the
Electricity Act, 2003 and the Regulations of the
West Bengal Electricity Regulatory Commission.
Reviewing the adequacy of internal control
systems, recommending appointment,
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xi)

remuneration, terms of appointment of Auditors
of the Company including Statutory Auditor,
Internal Auditor, Secretarial Auditor;

Discussing scope of audit and audit plans on a
regular basis with Statutory and Internal
Auditors;

Reviewing with the Management Periodical,
Quarterly and Annual Financial Statements
before submission of the same to the Board.
This will include -

1) Any changes in accounting policies and
practices

2) Major accounting entries based on exercise
of judgment by the Management

3) Qualification, if any, in the draft audit
report

4) Significant adjustments arising out of audit
observations

5) Compliance with applicable accounting
standards

6) Related party transaction

7) Reviewing compliance with Internal and
Statutory Audit Reports and examine
reasons for substantial defaults and delays
in implementing audit recommendations

8) Reviewing findings of internal investigations
involving matters of fraud, financial

integrity and fiduciary compliance

9) Reviewing Management Letters issued by
Statutory Auditors
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10) Reviewing Secretarial Audit Reports
yearly

11) The Audit Committee is empowered to call
any appropriate employee of the Company
to attend its meeting.

The Audit Committee is empowered to appoint
professional public accounting and/other
professionals including independent counsel in
order to discharge its responsibilities. Compensation
to be paid for such services will be determined by the
Committee. The Audit Committee is authorized to
hold its meeting without the presence of any
members of the management and require any
member of the organization to attend and appear
before itself.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee :
The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee is as follows:
Sl ; . . Position in
No. Name of Director Designation |4 oo
1. | Shri Debashish Majumdar | Independent | Chairman
Director
2. | Shri Rajesh Pandey Chairman and | Member
Managing
Director
3. | Smt. Saswati Banerjee Government | Member
Nominee and
‘Woman Director
4. | Shri Gopal Krishna Saxena | Independent | Member
Director
5. | Shri Avinash Kumar Sinha| Independent | Member
Director




Role and responsibilities - Nomination :-
The Committee will recommend to the Board in
relation to the following;:

(a) The size and composition of the Board,
including review of Board succession plans;

(b) The criteria for Board membership, including
assessment of necessary and desirable
competencies of Board members;

(c) Names for the appointment and re-appointment
of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel;

(d) Assist the Board in the performance evaluation
ofthe Board Members and its Committees and in
training of Directors;

(e) Succession plans for the Chairman and
Managing Director and Senior Management
[annually] to maintain an appropriate balance of
skills, experience, diversity and expertise on the
executive management team.

() Review the Diversity Policy to ensure that the
policy reflects relevant Corporate Governance
and legal requirements;

(g) To review and recommend Organization
structure and broad Policy on workforce
planning, compensation & perquisites,
succession planning, terminal benefits,
superannuated employee relations, etc.

Role and responsibilities — Remuneration:

The Committee will recommend to the Board on the

following:

(a) Remuneration for the Chairman and Managing
Director (CMD);

(b) Remuneration for the Executives reporting to
the CMD;

(c) Incentive strategy and performance targets;
(d) Remuneration for the Non-Executive Directors
ofthe Board,

(e) The remuneration disclosures as per all applicable
laws.

Corporate Social Responsibility :

In accordance with the requirements of Section 135
of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has
constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee. The composition and terms of reference
of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is
provided in the Corporate Governance Report. Your
Company has also formulated a Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy which is available on the
website of the Company at www.wbsedcl.in. Annual
report on CSR activities as required under the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 has been appended as Annexure-2 to
this report.

Composition of the CSR Committee of the Board

SL. . . Position in
Nol Name of Director Designation [y o0 cton
1. | Shri Rajesh Pandey Chairman and | Chairman

Managing
Director
2. | Shri Kalyan Kumar Ghosh| Director Member
(Finance)
3. | Shri Sujay Sarkar Director (HR) | Member
4. | Shri Avinash Kumar Sinha| Independent | Member
Director

Declaration by Independent Director:

The Independent Directors of your Company have
given the certificate of independence to your
Company stating that they meet the criteria of
independence as mentioned under Section 149(6) of
the Companies Act,2013.

Annual evaluation by the Board of its own
performance and of its Committees:

The Independent Directors of the Company
reviewed the performance of the Non- Independent
Directors of the Board and performance evaluation
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of the Board was made by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee in pursuance of Schedule
IV of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Compliance of Applicable Laws :

Your Company also maintains a proper system in
place to ensure compliance of all laws applicable to
the Company. It follows the “comply or explain”
principle.

A.Conservation of Energy:

(1) Implementation of Demo projects at North
Bengal at Changrabandha and Kamakkhaguri
33/11 KV Sub-station through replacement of
conventional lamps by Energy Efficient LED
Lamps.

(ii) Preparation of DPR on Agricultural Demand
Side Management (AgDSM) Project by using
energy efficient agri pump in place of non-
efficient agri pump.

(iii)Preparation of scheme on Municipal Demand
Side Management (MuDSM) for reduction of
municipal demand.

(iv)Amendment of Energy Conservation Building
Code (ECBC) according to climatic region of
West Bengal placed for issue of Gazette
Notification.

(v) Interactive workshop arranged on Perform,
Achieve and Trade (PAT) Cycle — I Scheme for
17 nos. Designated Consumers (Energy
intensive Industries), such as Thermal Power
Plant, Iron & Steel and Pulp & Paper Industries.

B. Technology absorption:

(i) Technology, universally used to reduce energy
consumption, is using LED (NPN Junction Diode
technology) instead of Conventional Lamps.

(i) In replacing the existing inefficient pumps

ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015-2016

having lower efficiency in the range of 25% to
30%, with energy efficient star rated pumps
having improved efficiency on an average more
than equal to 50% could be achieved. Average
reduction in annual operation cost of an amount
of ¥ 17122 per agricultural consumer per year
can be achieved thereof. Again, reduction of
3730 units per year per consumer can be achieved.

(ii1) Conversion of existing inefficient Street Lights
(Sodium Vapor, Mercury Vapor, Conventional
Tube light) by LED Street Lights.

(iv) Amendment on Energy Conservation Building

Code (ECBC) applied to:

a. OnBuilding Envelope

b. Heating Ventilation & Air Conditioning
System (HVAC)

c. Service Hot Water Heating

d. Interior & Exterior Lighting

e. Electrical Power & Motors

Expert opinion on Perform, Achieve and Trade

(PAT) provisions against energy intensive

Industries invited from BEE personnel to

interact with Designated Consumers (DCs) on

several occasions to achieve the specified SEC

(Specific Energy Consumption) value by
respective DCs.

™)

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:
During the financial year 2015-16 an amount of
I 148 lakh has been considered in the accounts as
fluctuation of foreign exchange rate and adjusted
with fixed assets as per AS-11. Earning in foreign
currency during the financial year was nil.

Key achievements :
During the current financial year your Company has
achieved the following benchmarks:



1. WBSEDCL has been awarded the SAP ACE
award by SAP India for successful implemen-
tation of Enterprise Resource Plan (ERP) at all
its units across the state.

2. WBSEDCL has launched a new mobile
application - "VIDYUT SAHAYYOGI". This
application will allow the consumers to apply for
new connection, view and download the bill and
pay bills, call docketing and other facilities.
"VIDYUT SAHAYYOGI" is available in
Google Play Store where the consumer can
download it free of cost on their android smart
phone. This mobile application is available in
English, Bengali and Hindi.

Particulars of Employees under Section 197
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule
5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014:

As per notification No. G.S.R.463(E) dated 5 June,
2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government Companies are exempted from the
applicability of the provisions of Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013. However, no employee of the
Company is covered under Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 (2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended vide
notification dated 30.06.2016.The information
required to be furnished under the above Rule may
be treated as 'Nil'.

Means of Communication:

The half yearly results (unaudited) were submitted
to the Stock Exchange within 45 days from the end
of the half year. Subsequently the said results were
published in the Hindustan Times (all editions) and
in a regional newspaper Sambad Pratidin (Bengali)
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within 48 hours from the conclusion of the Board
meetings where such results were approved.

The audited financial results for the year ended 31st
March, 2015 (together with statement of Assets and
Liabilities as on the said date) and summary of
Financial results were submitted to Stock Exchange on
19.12.2015. The Company's website www.wbsedcl.in
provides comprehensive information of the Company
including information on financial results (half
yearly and annual), Report of the Auditors and
Directors on the annual financial results, statutory
information and various codes and policies adopted
by the Company.

Shareholders’ Information :

Details of Annual General Meeting
for the year 2014-15

Day and Date | Time Venue
Tuesday, 4PM. Registered office at
13th November, Vidyut Bhavan, Sector-11,
2015 Block-DJ, Bidhannagar,
Kolkata - 700 091

Payment of Dividend:

During the financial year no dividend was declared
by the Board of Directors of the Company due to
inadequacy of profit.

Share transfer procedure:

Entire share capital of the Company is held by the
Governor of West Bengal and His nominees.
Transfer of shares are registered on receipt of the
Government direction in the matter.

Registrar and Transfer Agent for secured
Redeemable Non Convertible Bonds
Including Connectivity with NSDL & CDSL.:
Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., 59-C Chowringhee
Road,3rd Floor,Kolkata-700020,Tel no:033-2289-
0540, Email:Kolkata@linkintime.co.in,
Website:www.linkintime.co.in
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Listing of equity shares :

Shares of the Company are not listed with any Stock
Exchange. The Company has issued secured,
redeemable and non convertible Bonds for ¥ 1000
crore which is listed with Bombay Stock Exchange.
The listing fee for the current financial year has been
paid to the Stock Exchange.

Distribution of shareholding

SL. No. of Amount
No. Name of the Shareholder Shares held z

1. | Hon'ble Governor of 225,66,89,8632256,68,98,630

West Bengal

2. | Shri S.Kishore,|IAS, 100
Principal Secretary to the
Govemment of West Bengall,
Department of Power &NES

1,000

3. | Shri Rajesh Pandey,IAS,
Chairman and Managing
Director, WBSEDCL

40,000 4,00,000

4. | Smt. Saswati Banerjee,IAS, 100
Additional Secretary to the
Govemment of West Bengal,
Department of Power &NES

1,000

5. | Shri Sanatan Kumar Gayen, 100 1,000
Chief Controller of Audit and

Ex- Officio Deputy Secretary,
Department of Power &NES,

Govemment of West Bengal

6. | Shri Anindya Narayan Biswas, 100 1,000
Joint Secretary to the
Govemment of West Bengal,

Department of Power & NES

7. | Shri Ranijit Kumar Majumder,
Director(Distribution),
WBSEDCL

9,500 95,000

8. | Shri Kalyan Kumar Ghosh, 100
Director(Finance),
WBSEDCL

1,000

Total | 225,67,39,863| 2256,73,98,630
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Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity :
Shares of the Company are not listed with Stock
Exchange and are maintained in physical form due to
limited liquidity and transferability which is effected
on the direction of the Government of West Bengal.

Address for correspondence:

All communication relating to Share matters shall
be addressed to-

Company Secretary,

West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company
Limited,

Vidyut Bhavan, Block-DJ, Sector-II,
Bidhannagar,
Kolkata 700 091

All communication relating to Bond matters shall
be addressed to-

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., 59-C Chowringhee
Road, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700020
or

Company Secretary,

West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company
Limited,

Vidyut Bhavan, Block- DJ, Sector-11,

Bidhannagar,

Kolkata 700 091



Plant Locations:

L.

Purulia Pumped Storage Project (900 MW)
Pathardih, P.O. - Bagmundi; Dist. - Purulia,
Pin - 723152

Massanjore Hydel Project (4 MW) Vill &
P.O. - Massanjore, Dist.-Dumka, Jharkhand,
Pin - 814144

Rammam Hydel Project St-II (51 MW),
P.O.- Lodhamahat, Dist. - Darjeeling,
Pin - 734201

Jaldhaka Hydel Project St-I&II
(36 MW & 8 MW), P.O.- Jaldhaka Hydel
Project, Dist.-Darjeeling, Pin-734503

TCF Hydel Project, PS-I (22.5MW)
Leusipakuri ; Dist. - Darjeeling, Pin-734434

TCF Hydel Project, PS-II (22.5 MW)
Haptiagachh ; Dist. - Uttar Dinajpur,
Pin-733202

TCF Hydel Project, PS-III (22.5 MW)
Bholagach ; Dist. - Uttar Dinajpur,Pin-733207

Mungpoo Kali-khola Hydel Power Station

(3 MW) Near Namring Tea estate,

P.O. & PS-Rangli Rangliot ; Dist. - Darjeeling,
Pin-734226

Little Rangit Hydel Power Station (2 MW)
P.O. & P.S. -Bijanbari , Dist. -Darjeeling,
Pin-734201

10.

Rinchington Hydel Power Station ( 2 MW)
Near Kafebari, P.O. -St.Marys ,Kurseong ,
Dist.-Darjeeling, Pin-734220

11.

Fazi Hydel Power Station ( 2.448 MW)
P.O.& P.S.- Kurseong, Dist. - Darjeeling,
Pin-734101

12.

Sidrapong Hydel Power Station ( 0.6 MW )
P.O.-Tung, PS- Jorebunglaw, Dist. -Darjeeling,
Pin - 734224

Management Discussion and Analysis :

The Annual Report also contains a separate section
on the Management Discussion and Analysis which
forms part of this Report.

Corporate Governance:

Corporate Governance is a set of systems and
practices to ensure that the affairs of the Company
are being managed in a way which ensures
accountability, transparency and fairness in all its
transactions in the widest sense and meet its
Stakeholders aspirations and societal expectations.
Your Company believes in maintaining the highest
standards of Corporate Governance and it is the
Company's constant endeavour to adopt the best
Corporate Governance practices. Your Company has
taken several initiatives toward maintaining the
highest standards of Governance and these include:

Composition of Board:

One third of the total number of Directors is
Independent. The Audit Committee, Nomination
and Remuneration Committee comprise majority of
Independent Directors. The Company has defined
guidelines for the meetings of the various Board
Committees. The decision making process at the
Board or Board Committees has been systemized in
an informed and efficient manner.

The Board critically evaluates the strategic direction
of the Company, management policies and their
effectiveness. The agenda for Board include
strategic review from each of the Board Committees,
adetailed analysis and review of annual strategic and
operating plans and capital allocation and Budgets.
Additionally, the Board reviews reports from Functional
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Directors and other reports from each of the HOD's.
Frequent and detailed interaction sets the agenda and
provides the strategic roadmap for the future growth
ofthe Company.

A separate section of Corporate Governance forms
part of this Report.

Staff Welfare:

Several steps were taken in the area of staff welfare
during the year. The Company had taken up a number
of initiatives for ensuring better health of the
employees and their dependants by way of inclusion
of renowned and reputed medical institutes in its
approved list of hospitals and conducting health
check up camps and health awareness programme.

The Company through its Staff Recreation Clubs
participated in local and national level sports events
and cultural competitions as well as conducted
annual sports. The Company provides Canteen
subsidy at various units for the welfare of the
employees.

Industrial Relations :
The Company maintained healthy, cordial and
harmonious relations at all levels.

Directors :

Shri Rajesh Pandey, IAS joined as Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company w.e.f
02.01.2016 in place of Shri Narayan Swaroop
Nigam, IAS. Shri Avinash Kumar Sinha joined as
Independent Director of the Company w.e.f
03.06.2016 vice Shri Dipak Kumar Banerjee. The
Board welcomed Shri Rajesh Pandey and Shri
Avinash Kumar Sinha.
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Shri Tapan Kumar Majumdar ceased as Independent
Director of the Company w.e.f. 31.05.2016. Shri
Debashish Majumdar has been appointed as the
Member of Haryana State Electricity Regulatory
Commission w.e.f 23.08.2016. As Electricity Act,
2013 debars a Chairman or Member of a State
Commission from holding any other office of a
Company, Shri Majumdar has tendered his
resignation from the Board of the Company as
Independent Director w.e.f 23.08.2016.

The Board expressed its sincere appreciation for the
services rendered by Shri Narayan Swaroop Nigam,
Shri Dipak Kumar Banerjee and Shri Tapan Kumar
Majumdar and Shri Debashish Majumdar during
their tenure as Directors of the Company.

Statutory Auditors :

M/s. De & Bose, Chartered Accountants, Kolkata,
were appointed as Statutory Auditors of your
Company for the financial year 2015-2016 by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India. The
Statutory Auditors have audited the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended 31*
March, 2016. The following documents are annexed
to this report :

a) Audited Financial Statements and Cash Flow
Statement of the Company for the year ended 31%
March, 2016.

b) Auditors' Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements and consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended
31" March,2016.

¢) Comments of Comptroller and Auditor General
of India.



d) Statement of Technical particulars and Category
wise Sales in MU and number of consumers as
on31.03.2016.

CostAuditor:

M/s A.J.S & Associates, Cost Accountants, 55B, S.P.
Mukherjee Road, 1st Floor, Near Hazra Xing,
Kolkata -700 026, were appointed to conduct the
audit of the Cost Accounting Records of the
Company for the year 2015-16. The Cost Audit
Report for the year 2014-15 was filed in XBRL mode
with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on
09.11.2015.

Secretarial Audit :

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rules made there under, M/s K. Arun & Co.,
Company Secretaries,’ Shantiniketan', 8, Camac
Street, 8" Floor, Suite # 807, Kolkata — 700 017 had
been appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the
Company.

The Secretarial Audit Report, enclosed as
Dated : 19.09.2016

Vidyut Bhavan,

Sector-II, Block- DJ,

Bidhannagar,
Kolkata- 700 091

| 26

Annexure-3 is self-explanatory and does not call for
any further comments.

Acknowledgement:

Your Directors would like to express their
appreciation for the assistance and co-operation
received from Government of West Bengal,
particularly the Department of Power and Non-
conventional Energy Sources, Ministry of Power,
Govt. of India, West Bengal Electricity Regulatory
Commission, Central Electricity Regulatory
Commission, Comptroller and Auditor General of
India, Statutory Auditors, PFCL, RECL, all the
Consortium Banks and other Financial Institutions,
Customers, Vendors, Contractors and Consultants
and other stakeholders during the year under review.

Your Directors wish to place on record their deep
sense of appreciation for the committed services by
the executives, staff and employees of the Company.

By Order of the Board

Sd/-
(Rajesh Pandey)
Chairman & Managing Director
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AFFIRMATION AND DISCLOSURE

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted the
Code of Conduct and Ethics for Board Members and
Senior Management. This Code is available on the

Company's website.

This is to confirm that the Company has in respect of
the Financial Year ended 31 March, 2016, received
from the senior management team of the Company and
the Members of the Board a declaration of compliance

Dated : 19.09.2016

Vidyut Bhavan,
Sector-I1, Block- DJ,
Bidhannagar,
Kolkata- 700 091
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with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them.

For the purpose of this declaration, Senior
Management Team means the Executive Directors,
Company Secretary, Chief Engineers, General
Managers and Officers of equivalent rank & Head
of Department & such other Officers reporting
directly to the Chairman & Managing Director as
on 31 March, 2016.

Sd/-
( Rajesh Pandey )
Chairman & Managing Director




To

CHIEF

The Board of Directors
West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company Limited

WEST BENGAL STATE ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION COMPANY LIMITED
E

EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEQ) & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
of West Bengal State Electricity Distribution
Company Limited (“the Company” ), to the best

of our knowledge and belief certify that :

A.

We have reviewed the financial statements and
the cash flow statement for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2016 and that to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(1) these statements do not contain any materially

@)

untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

these statements together present a true and fair
view of the Company's affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards,
applicable laws and regulations.

We further state that to the best of our
knowledge and belief, there are no transactions
entered into by the Company during the year,
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the

Company's Code of Conduct.
Sd/-
( Rajesh Pandey )
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 03569753

Kolkata : 4th July, 2016

| 28

ANNUAL REPORT

C.

(1)

2

€)

We accept responsibility for establishing and
maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the
effectiveness of internal control systems of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting and
we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit
Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal controls, if any, of
which we are aware and the steps we have taken
or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit
Committee:

significant changes, if any, in internal control
over financial reporting during the year;

significant changes, if any, in Accounting
Policies during the year and that the same have
been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements; and

instances of significant fraud of which we have
become aware and the involvement therein, if
any, of the management or an employee having
a significant role in the Company's internal
control system over financial reporting.

Sd/-
(Kalyan Kumar Ghosh)
Director (Finance) & Chief Financial Officer
DIN : 01711124
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Forward-Looking Statements

This Report contains forward-looking statcrnents
that mvolve risks and uncertainties. Actlual results,
perlormance or achievements could dilfer materially
from those expressed or implied in such forward-
looking statcments. This Repert should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements included

herein and the notes thereto.

General overview of the Economy

[n thc past fcw months the global cconomy has
struggled o gel back on its feel [rom a rough ride at
the beginning of the vear. The below par performance
of global economy was reflected in a continued
growth deccleration in most emerging and
developmg economies driven by low commodity
prices. weaker capital inflows and subdued plobal
trade. Against this global backdrop Indian economy
has been making steady progress in last few years.
According to the Economic Survey 2015-16, the
Indran economy will continue to grow maore than 7

pcreentin 2016-17.

[ndia 1s the fastest growing large economy with a
stable currency that performed berter than most other
emerging market currencies. The domestic macro-
economic  conditions  also remained stable. A
significant drop in commaodity costs led by crude oil
and other interventions resulted in lower consumer

nflation which allowed easing of interest rates in the
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cconommy. However, a sccond consccutive year of
droughtand a low increase in support prices have led
to a sharply slower growing rural economy

compared to carlier years.

ndian power sector 15 undergoing a significant
chanpe that has redetined the industry outlook.
Sustamed economic growth contimues o drive
electricity demand in India. At the same time, the
compctitive intensity 1s incrcasing at botli the market
and supply sides (fuel, logtstics, fAnances and
manpower). The I[ndian power sector has an
investment polential ol F 15 trillion (US$ 237
billion) in the next 4-5 years, thereby providing
immense opportunities in power generation,

distribution and transmission.

Given the backdrop of competitive market and
supply, thc opcrating cnvironment [or your
Company during the year continued to be
challenging. Your Company's performance for the
year 2015-16 has to be viewed in the context ol

aforesaid economic and market environment.

Industry structure and development

[ndian power sector is undergoing a significant
chanpe that has redefined the industry outlook.
Suslained cconomic growth contmues (o drive
electricity demand in India. The Government of
India's focus on attaining 'Powcr For All' has
accelerated capacity addition in the country. At the

samme time, the competitive intensity 1s increasing at



both the market and supply sides (fuel, logistics.
finances and manpower).India is world's 6th largest
energy consumer, accounting for 3.4% of global
cnergy consumption. Duce to India’s cconomic risc,
the demand for encrgy has grown at an average of
3.6% per annum over the past 30 years. India s the
sixth largest in terms of power generation. About
65% of the clectricity consumed i Indiais gencrated
by thermal power plants, 22% by hydroelectric
power plants, 3% by nuclear power plants and rest
10% [rom other allernate sources like solar, wind,
biomass ete. 53.7% of India's commercial energy
demand is met through the country's vast coal
reserves. The country has also nvested heavily in
recent years on renewable sources of energy such as

wind cuergy.

The financial vear 2015-16 was a good year for
Indian power scctor where power gencration grew
by 8.4% YoY and the peak deficit was down to 3.5%
during 2015-16 from 4.5% in 'Y 2014-15. T'his was
largely on the back of rising coal stock availability al
majority of the power stations and increase in the
installed powcr capacity. The financial vear 201 5-16
saw key reforms for the sector, they are |)
Reallocation of coal blocks through e-auction
process, 2} New gas pooling mechanism to bailout
[4.000 MW of stranded power plants and 3) New
Ultra Mega Power Project (UMPP) policy to
approach plug and play model. Also. there has been

an umproved [ocns on the T&D sector lo improve the

power supply conditions in the country.

The Indian power sector has an ivestment polential
of ¥ 15 trillion (US$ 237 billion) in the next 4-5
years, thereby providing immense opportunities in
power generalion, distribution, (ransmission and

equipment, according to the Ministry of Power.

The Government's immediate goal 1s to generale lwo
trillion units (kifowatt hours) ofenergy by 2019, This
means doubling the current production capacily o
provide 24x7 electricity for residential, idustral,

commicreial and agriculture usc.

The Governiment of India 15 taking a number of steps
and initiatives like 10-year rax excmption for solar
energy projects cte., inorder to achieve India's ambitious
renewable energy targets of adding 175 GigaWatts
(GW)otrencwable encray, including addition of 100
GW ol'solar power, by the year 2022. The cumulative
installed capacity of solar power in India has crossed
the 4 Giga watt mark as of Junc 30, 2015. The
Govermnment has also sought (o restart the stalled
hydro power projects and increase the wind energy
production target to 60 GW by 2022 from the current
20GW.

Impressive strides have been made in the power
sector over the last two years including addition ol
record generation capacity; moves to create 'one
market' in power; long overdue reforms ot discoms;
and energizing the development of the renewable

scctor. The new paradigim of surplus power sets the
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stage for contiuing these reforms so that Indra can
become 'one market' in power; allowing it to become
internationally competitive as envisaged in 'Make in
India’. In all of this the State Governments and State
Regulators will have a key role to play, with helpful
facilitation from the Centre. The powet scctor is a
perfect crucible lor making efllfective the
cooperative-competitive federalism experiment that

isnow [ndia.

Human Resource:

HR acuvities of the Company are geared lowards
development of Human Capital to the fullest
potcntial for sustcnance and development of the
Company. A comuitted & qualificd worliforee is a
necessity o meet any challenge and push forward the
agenda of the Company. T'he primary [1R tnitiatives
during 2015-16 may be placed under the [ollowing

Sub-IHeads:

Manpower Planning / Recruitment

Training and Human Resource Development
Safety Initiatives

Statutory Compliances

Weltare Initiatives

Corporate Social Responsibilities

Vigilance Activities

Health [ssues

Land Acquisihon
Manpower Planning/ Recruitment:

Manpowcr Planning is the most significant part tor
the growth of the Company. Succession Planning,
filling up vacancies through promotion, direct
recruitment and mecting requircment for any new-
field ol activity and oplimization of Human
Resources has been the basic function area.
Lowering of average age of the worktoree hasbecn a

set goal.

MANPOWER RECRUITED DURING 2015-16

2015-16
D ipti Cat
RRECRTR il Class-l | Class-1l Class-1LL | Class-IV | Total
Dircct Tech. 8l 0 14 5 100
Recruitment from
open markel Non. Tech, 29 5 208 0 242
Deccascd Tech. 0 0 2 29 31
Dependant Non. Tech. 0 0 9 47 56
Total Employment 110 5 233 g1 429
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Training and Human Resource Development :
HRD&TRG Departinent of WBSEDCL focuscs on
the development of “human resources” to remain
competitive and updated with the latest skills and
knowledge keeping organizational business goals
and objectives in mind. Training help to develop
employees for their current jobs and prepare them for
future roles and responsibilitics. The training
function of the department starts right from the
beginning of the joining by imparting laduction

Training.

The Training is conducted through Company's own
Training Institates, i.c. EETls / KIJTC located at
Triben1/ Rajarhat/ Burdwan/ Berhampore/
Kharagpur/ Coochbehar/ Kalyani and Head Quarter
(Vidyut Bhavan) as wcll as through other reputed
Institules like CPRI-Bangalore, 1TM — Calcutta, ITT-
Kharagpur, XLRI-Jamshedpur, PSSC — MoP (Govt.
of India), APTECH-Kolkata, WEBEL, Himalayan

Footprints etc.

HRD & TRG Dept. has also successfully conducted
Tramings of Oflicials of other State Distribution
Compantes, Public Utilities and Institutes like
Manipur State Power Distribution Company Ltd.
(MSPDCL); Electricity Department,
Puducherry; West Bengal Power Development
Corporation Lumited (WBPDCL); Bhagalpur

Electricity Distribution Company Pyt Tid.

yovl. ol

(BEDCPL) and West Bengal State Electricity
Transmission Company Ltd. (WBSETCL}, to namc

afew.

Also, due imitiative has been taken for conduct of
Safety Training to the Contractors' Labourcrs ot the
enlisted agencies engaged in Distribution System
throughout the State to ensure Zero Accident
WBSEDCL.
Training to approx. 1711 nos. Contractors’ Labourers
at different ELETIs from 28.11.14 till July'l3.
HRD&TRG Department is conducting such Salety

Environment in Imparted Safety

Training through EETTs at regular intervals.

We have participated in the National Tramning
13* Plan of CIRE and
successfully conducted 13 nos, Traming Programmes

for 168 Nos. of Gr. C&D cmployces.

Programme in have

Every vear 45 Graduate Engineers are trained as per
the agreement with BOPT (Board of Practical
Traiming). Govl. ol India based on Apprenticeship
Act, 1971, These Graduate Engineers are trained at
different Locations/Units of our Company. HRDD
also imparts Vocational Tramming to the Engineering
students & Management students of Finance / HR /
IT discipline of different Technical & Management
Institutes across the slate. In the vear 2015-16, we

had imparted Training to 535 nos. of Students.

A snapshot ol Target vs Achievement (no. of
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Participants) lor FY 2015-16 1s enumerated below:

Target vs Achievement for FY 2015-16 i.r.0. Training
( Both Internal and External )

2015-16 201316
(Target Participants) | (Achievement Participants)
Class-I - 900 Class-1 - 846
Class-Il — 500 Class-Il — 440

Class - Il & IV — 4200 | Class -l & |V — 4125

Other™ - 2500 Other® - 1711

Total - 7122
(87.9% achievement)

Total - 8100

Others * include Training to Contractor's
employees elc.

TOTAL QUALITY MANAGEMENT :
Target vs Achievement for FY 2015-16 i.r.0.
TQM activities as per Order

3. ACHIEVEMENT
No. DETAILS 2015-16

1. |Formation of QCs for|All Milestones completed
facilitating nurturing & |as per the Work Order.
spreading of TQM activities
at the CCCs where
RAPDRP activities have
already undertaken.

2. |Formation of Help Desk & [All Milestones completed
submission of Report. as per the Work Order and
Help Desk Operating Manual
has been published during
Corp. TQM Convention on
21.03.2016 by Hon'ble

CMD WRBSEDCL

Preparation of SOP is
completed and published
on21.03.2016.

3. |Preparation of SOP for all
Offices under WBSEDCL.
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WRIEDIL

Performance Management System :

+ FEnsured 100% timely submission of PARS/SARs
ofall Class I Officers.

4+ Calculation and Compilation of the Grade Points
and subsequently submitied to the respective
departmentas and when required.

# Maintaining utmost confidentiality while
preserving thosc documents for futurc

requirements/ intervicws cte.

Safety Initiatives :

In WBSEDCL major activities like construction &
maintenance of LT & IIT lines and 33/11 KV Sub-
Stations, effecting service connections and
repair/rectification of breakdowns/faults are being
carried out regularly through outsourced and
departimental technical workers in a time bound
manner under regulatory regime.

Safe work practice and ensuring safety for the
workers (departmental/outsourced) and public 1
general are being attached with top most priorty n
all the above activities with a goal to make
WRBSEDCL, a'Zero Accident' Company.
Maintenance of safety 1s a continuous process and 1s
being taken up n right earnest throughout the vear.
Detailed analysis of accident have been done n
rcgular manncr tor devising action plans towards
prevention ol accidents with technical workers and

gencral pcople.

For prevention of accidents at worksites
stressis nowgivenon :-

+ Skill devclopment and rcgular safcty training



WREEDIL

programme for technical employecs (departmental/
oulsourced) mWBSEDCL.

Sustained supervision of all site works by Site-
In-Charges.

Safc Operating Procedures (SOP) to be followed
i every distribution work.

all

creation of safc zone in and around the working

Shutdown oun distribution nctwork for
areq.

Permit to Work’ to be 1ssued regularly for each
and every site work.

Penal action to be taken against outsourced
agencies under whom more than onc fatal

accidentoccurina (inancial year.

Following actions have also been taken for
making general people aware of danger and
safe use of electricity :

+

Safety SMS are presently being sent to the
consumers of WIBSEDCL.

Distribution of Safcty lcaflcts to the consumers
o WBSEDCL.

MDsplay of safety notice on plastic flex board for
general people and technical workers
(departmental/outsourced) on distribution sub-
station structurc.

Display of safety posters (newly developed) for
general people at prominent & strategic
localions.

Safety related pictures are betng drawn by
students on the compound wall of the school
building.

Safety messages are also telecasted on local cable

TV

Bengal.

channcls at different locations in West
More safety awareness programs are carrted out
at villages, market places, Parisheba Melas and at
dilferent schools.

'Electrical Safety’ for general members of public
has been incorporated in the syllabus of schools
Board of

under Wesl Bengal Secondary

Education.

addition to the above following action

points are observed for prevention of further
accidents:-

-

Publication of Safety Bulletin regularly in
'‘Bidyut Barta' for creating safety awareness.
Preventive actions by all Site-In-Charges to
minimize accidents during monsoon period as
percircularissued earlier.

Monthlv Safety Meetings are bemng conducted at
all levels
Stn./CCCh.

Safety Seminars and awareness programme in

(Zonc/Region/Division/Sub-

regular mamnmer for employces (Departmental/
Outsourced) are being conducted at sites.
Film/Poster/Audio CDs related to Safety have
been prepared to motivate working loree and
promote safety culture amongst them and general
mcnbers of public.
System Augmentation (Earthing/Fitting
Spacers/Cradle Guards/Tree Trimming/Jumper
Tightening/LT-HT Line verification) being
monitored regularly.

Performance on Salety has been made part of

PAR with 25% weightage for all Class | officers.
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WREEDLL

+ A Committec has been formed to resct
parametcers towards rating of Contractors/
Outsourced Agencics to ensuie quality.

+ Gradual replacement ot bare Conductor bv AB
Cable.

# TheName of the Distribution Divisions where no
accident occurs n a financial year would be
published m 'Bidyut Barta' with subsequent
felicitation of the Divisional Head and his team
by CMD, WBSEDCL.

With sustained and collective efforts for last few

years, declining trend tn number of accidents have

been observed 1n spite of large scale mcrease in

distnibution networks and number of consumers.

Statutory Compliance:

The Company has laid down clear-cul guidelines
lowards observing [ull compliance ol all applicable
labour laws & statutes. Concerted elTort across all
units/ofTices ol the Company s made lo ensure Lo

achieve the benchmarl.

+ Regular inspections are being made from the [IR
Department regarding compliance of labour laws

and no complaintis pending on this issue.

¢ Coverage under PF and ESI for all the
cottractors’ workers who arc working under rate
contract have been ensurcd. In case, where the
arca i1s not covered under ESI Act, facility of
individual medi-claim for the workers have been
cnsured.

A Databuase of all necessary details of contractors &

their workers is being developed for proper
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supervision & monitoring towards achievement of
total compliance. Appropriate administrative action
is taken in case of any non-compliance detected for

etfective contract labour management.

Welfare Initiatives :

Various Welfare initiatives for the Company

cmplovees have been putin place during the year.

These were:

+ Felicitation of meritorious wards ol the
employees excelled in 10th & 121h slandard
exaninalions

+ Rcnewal of Group Mediclaim lusurance for the
retired cmplovees

+ Observing "International Women's Day" in
Vidyul Bhavan

+ As weclfarc measure, Holiday Homes at Puri,
Digha. Haridwar, Jayanti, and Holiday/
Treatment-cum-Rest House at Vellor, Mumbai
were maintained by the Company

4 Participation in Veterans' Football Tourmament in
2015 (Champion)

+ Renovation ol Vidyul Bhavan Canteen made

+ Sctting-up of a "Help Desk" for Gr. Mediclaim
tor Retired Linploycces

+ Celebrating 8" Anniversary of the Company by
organizing a cultural programme at Science Cily
Auditorium, Kolkata

+ Participating in Onc-Act Drama Compctition at
Cuttack, Odisha (6 awards)

+ Participation in All India Music, Dance & Drama
Competition' 2015 at Mumbai (7 awards, Cash

awards & Trophy)
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# Participation m 41" ATESCB Athletic Meet at
Lucknow (one Gold and one Bronze Medal)

+ Participation in 41" AILSCB lFootball Match
Tournamentat Kolkata (Runnerup)

+ Parlicipation in 41" AIESCB Cricket Malch
Tournament

# Conducting "Srijan 2015"- A Photograph &
Sculpture Exhibition in Vidyut Bhavan

# Organizing Annual Sports 2015-16 at Salt Lake

*# QOreanizing Zonal Indoor Mcct 2015-16 at
Jalpaiguri

# Organizing Zonal Cricket Tournament 2015-16
al Burdwan

+ Organizing Zonal Football Tournament 20135-16
at[lowrah

4 Organizing Zonal Cultural Competition2015-16

at Vidyut Bhavan

Corporate Social Responsibilities :

The Company has a well detined CSR policy. The
approach of WBSEDCL towards Corporate Social
Responsibility is oviented lowards identilicalion and
formulation of CSR projects/programmes as per
statutory requirement and to mmplement them with
tull involvement and commitment in a time bound
manner. In cases where other agencies/ organizations
arc 1nvolved, approach would be to focus on
collaboration and partnership. It will alse provide
financial assistance i the forin of grant-in-aid
assistance, contribution etec. The policy has been
displayed in the Company's websile.

The scope of CSR activities as detined in the CSR

e
-;/

117114

policy arc as tollows:
(1} eradicating hunger, poverly and malnutrition,
promoting preventive health care and
sanitation and making available safe drinking
waler;

(ii)

promoting education. mcluding special

education and cmployment cnhancing
vocation skills especially among children,
womch, clderly and the differently abled and
livelihood enhancement projects;
(ii1) promoting gender cquality, cmpowecering
women, setting up homes and hostels for
women and orphans; setting up old age homes,
day care centres and such other facilities for
sentor citizens and measures for reducing
incqualitics faced by socially and cconomically
backward groups;
(iv) ensuring environmental  sustainability,
ecological balance, protection of [lora and
animal welfarc, agro forcstry,
of

maintaining qualily ol'soil, airand water;

fauna,

conservation natural resources and
protection of national heritage, art and culture
mcluding restoration of buildings and sites of
historical importance and works of art; setting
up public hbraries; promotion and development
oftraditional arts and handicrafts;

mcasurcs for the benetit of armed forces

(vi)
veterans, war widows and their dependents;

{(vil) training to promotc rural sports, nationally
recognized sports. paralympic sports and
Olympic sports;

(vii1) contribution to the Prime Minister's National
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Rclict Fund or any other tund sct up by the

Central Government for soclo-economic
development and reliel and wellare ol the
Scheduled Castes. the Scheduled Tribes, other
backward classes, nunorities and women;

(ix) contributions or funds provided to technology
meubators located within academic institutions

whicharc approved by the Central Government,
(x} Rural developmentprojects

Financial details of CSR programme in the year

2015-161s given hereunder

PARTICULARS T in lakh

40,20,00.000

Average net profit of the Company for
the last 3 financial years

Prescribed C8R Expenditure to be 80,40,000
spent for the financial year 2015-16

(2% ofthe average net profit)

Amount Spentin 2015-16 1,43.46,202

71/14

{(h) Disposal of Appeal petittons {(against punishment
ordersissued by all disciplimary authorities),

(1) Preservalion ol Declaralion ol Assels ..o class —
I & LI officers & communication thercof,

(j) Issuc Vigilance Clcarance i.r.o all categorics of
cmployces,

(ky Anti corruption drives laying traps, and

(I3 Court matters pertaining to Corporate Vigilance

Cell.

During the period 01.04.2015 — 31.03.2016, after
detailed investigation and conducting disciplinary
proceedings, following cases including 2 (two) nos.

accident cases have been disposed of:-

Vigilance Activities :

Corporate Vigtlance Cell of the Company mainly

deals with the cases of —

(a) Dereliction of duties (including those causing
accidents) as time Lo time referred,

(b) Malpractices and corrupt practices involving
moral turpitude,

(c) Defalcation/ misappropriation ol cash/stores,

(d) Forgery ofdocuments.

(e) Falseclaim,

(1) Theftofelectricity,

(g) Acceptance ofillegal gralification, ele.,
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1) | Dismissul / Removal 04 nos.
[rom serviee
2) |Reduction of increment(s) 08 nos.
3) [ Wilhholding of incremient{s) 06 nos.
4) |Reduction ol gratuity / 11 nos.
pension
3) |Reduction in rank 04 nos.
6}y [Censure 01 na.
7} [No. ol cases dropped 01 no.
{dug 1o death)
8) |Disposal ol appeal petition 21 nos.
9) | Vigilance Clearance 7061 nos.
101 [ Acknowledgement of DA 21 B8 nos.
11) | Court cases Out of 11 (eleven) nos,
Orders passed by
Han'ble High Court,
Calcutta, 9 (ning) nas.
arg in tavour of the
Company while | {one)
no. punishiment order
lias been modificd by
the Court.




Health Issues :

Asapartofthe HRM Policy, Health 1z a priority issuc

of the Company. Health of each mdividual employee

1s to be ensured in order to optitnize output. As such,

Company undertakes:-

# To provide medical facilitics to its employces at
dilTerent Project Sites.

# Reimbursement of expenses incurred by an
cmployee for sccuring medical scrvices for the
employecand his/her lamily member.

® Grant of solatium to an employee/contractor/
general public who falls victim of an accident
whilc working on the systems ctc.

® To encourage ils employees to practice sale
health & culture. undertake promotional
activities including games & sports, organizing
special seminars cte. for maintaining good
standard olhealth [orils employees.

& Dwing 2015-16 [No medical Board since
September, 2014 medical reimbursement made
< 21,07,14,795/-. Employces/Ward covered was
6817 nos.

& Medical made F 6,79,95,095/-,

Employccs/Ward covered was 529 nos.

Advance

® Vetting of pre-employment check up done Tor 890

Cases.

Land Acquisition
Now (he authority ol WBSEDCL have given
emphasis to tmplement different schemes for

cxpansion and improveiment of the systen network

lor providing quality power through construction ol

under DDUGIY,
RGGVY cre.

IPDS,
and Land

many Sub-stations
RAPDRP, BRGF,

WRSEDLT

Acquisition Cell has given due imporlance to
procure lands for the proposed Sub-stations under
the above schemes.

In the year 2015-2016, 35 different plots of lands for
difterent Sub-station throughout the stale have been
procured through dilTerent modes.

The breakup of category-wise procurement of the

lands arc mentioned below -

Manner of Acquisition

Purchase | Long Term | qig Inter-
Settlement departmental | Tqtq)

Transfer
4 13 10 8 35

Cut of 35 Lands for the Sub-station under
DDUGJY - 19 nos. and IPDS - 8 nos.

Other HR activities :
¢ Successful mmplementation of Human Capital
Management (HCM) Module ERP

throughout the Organization,

under

® Identification of Posts for persons with
disabilities for recruitiment i various Induction
level posts (Class-T to Class-1V) under the
Company has been made.

® Providing necessary measures of social security
to women employees of the Company 1n terims of
allowing matermity benefits/Child Care Ledve as
applicahle under various statutory provisions or
as may be decided by the Company from time to
time.

# Oftfering neecssary facilities to the emiployces
and their dependent family members in the arca
of medical treatment facilitics, as 1s outlined in

the policy of the Company.
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® In terms ol Wesl Bengal Power Seclor Relorms

Transler Scheme, 2007, [inal separation ol

personnel was completed on 30.11.2015 and
service ol 1029 nos. ol employees were [inally
translerred (0 WEBSETCL and n lerms of Govl.
Notification No: 984-PO/O/C-1V/1L-88/13 dated
28.10.2015 all the funds as per schedule were
transterred to WIBSLETCLwithin 31.03.2016.

Policy formulation ;

During the year under review the following policies
were framed :

1. Archival Policy

Preservation of Documents

. Codc of Busincss Conduct & Lthics for Board

(S} M

Members & Semor Management.
4. Internal Code of Conduct for prevention of
msider tradimg,

. Code of Practices and Procedure for fair

wh

disclosures of unpublished price sensitive
nformation

6. E-tender Policy

Strengths and Opportunities:
@ Scope of considerable growth of Hydel Power

and Non-Conventional Power

# Reduction of AT&C Loss and iniprovement in

Distribution system and collection efficicncy
& Diversification and strategic tie-up
# Human Resource Development practices

# Operational capabilities and practices
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Threats .
® Non-reahzation of Regulatory Assel
# Sharp increase im power purchase cost due 1o hike

in fuel prices

&

Loss in trading opportunity

& Migration of Industrial consumers to Open
Access

® Low sales growth vis-a-vis growth ol consumers

® Changes in regulatory rcquircment and

compliance thercof

@ Increased distribution loss due to increased

network of the Company

Distribution System :

Development of power infrastructure

To mect the growing demand of power, distribution

infrastructurc was strengthencd for supply of quality

power to the consumers during the I°Y: 2015-16 by .

a) Laying of 7668.97 ckt-km 1T Line
(33K V:384.85 ckm 11K V: 7284,52¢ckm)

b) Laying of 17109.84 ckt-km LT Line

¢) Lrection of 15 Nos. 33/11 KV Sub-station
evacuating 110.8 MVA power

d) Lrection of new 24,475 nos. DTR having
aggregated capacity 1222491 MVA

Planning for strengthening of Distribution
System in 2016-17

For
inlrasiructure, the following addition from (O&M)is
envisagedin FY: 2016-17

further strengthening ol distribution



a) Laying of new 302 ckt-km of 33 KV Line

b) Laying of new 10500 ckt-km of 11T KV Line

¢) Laying of new 3000 cki-km of LT Line

d) Frection of 6 Nos, of new 33/11 KV
Sub-stations evacuating 54.56 MVA power

¢) Augmentation of 10 nos.33/11 KV Sub-stations

for adding capacity of 3.7 MVA power

Maintenance Services provided by WBSEDCL
WBSEDCL is providing the best quality of linc
maintcnance scrvice for better customer
delightment. Linc maintcnance 1s basically divided
in two part, onc is High Tension line (HT)
maintenance and other 1s Low Tension (LT) linc
maintenance services. Scrvices are provided by the
outsourced agency. At this juncture niaintenance
services under all the 33/11 S/S are under cover of
I maintenance mobile gang. Currently total 578
numbers of mobile wvans, are plying for LIT
maintenance service throughout the state, Out of
these 578 numbers of Vans, 60 vans are deployed
exclusively for [l night maintenance services under
the densely populated industrial area fov giving
better All LT
maintenance services have been provided under all
500

currently 1394 numbers of LT mobile vans are plying

consumer services. out mobile

numbers of Customer Care Centers and
throughout the state. Very recently an initiative have
been taken regarding implementation of GPRS base
mobile tracking system to 1dentify the exact location
of mobile van for giving quick service to the

customer, which 1s under process.

E

This

WBSEDCL to reach the door step of consumer

mobile van maintenance service enable
premises at the earhiest possible time to restore any

sort of hinerelated break down.

Condition Monitoring for Preventive Maintenance

Condition monitoring of all 11V equipment installed
at 33/11kV Sub-Stations is presently accomplished
by the Condition Monitoring Units at five Zones in
addition to the existing Condition Monitoring Cell at
Distribution [lead Quarter. Based on their reports,
condition based maintenance works are carried out
by the Divisional Managers. As of now, condition
monitoring is done twice a year at all 33/11kV Sub-
Stations (presently 528 Nos.) After introduction of
condition monitoring system, faults at Sub-Station

have reduced significantly.

Infrastructural capacity augmentation

In comparison with the last year sizablc portion of
infrastruciural growth has becen incorporated by
WBSEDCL. Approximale length growth of 33 KV,
[ KVand M&LV arc 300 KM, 6000 KM and 15000
KM respectively. Almost 12 numbers new 33/1 1KV
Sub Stations have been newly erccted during the last
financial vear. Total substation capacity has becn
the tune of almost 350 MVA in

comparison with last year. Toral 25000 DTR have

enhanced to

been newly connected with network in between last
financial year. This significant increase in
infrastructural growth make WBSLEDCL capable to
cover a large portion of consuniers additionally 1.r.0

catering of power,

ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015-2016



Spot Billing
100% spot billing has been introduced since April
2014, Cuwrrent Spot bill order will be 1n force upto
30.09.2016. Nine different spot billing agencies are
performing the spot billing job on outsourced mode.
The agencies are entrusted to accomplish the job
basically for Domestic and Commercial consumer
and as a very special case the agencics are entrusted
to cxecule the meter rcading of Industrial and
Agricultural areas under three specific Customer
Care Centers. Introduction of Spot Billing system has
significantly mcreased the billing citiciency which
reduction of AT&C

Customers arc receiving energy bill on spot at very

has dircct cflect on loss.
next moment after taking meter reading by the Spot
Billing Machines in the consumer premises.
Tendering process for issuing fresh rate contract
order is under way. A major shift of technology is
proposed in the forth coming rate contract order,
where simple Spot Bill Machines will be replaced by
Android base Smart phone with GPRS base GPS
technology to ease the process and gpive better
consumer benefit with 100% assurance of physical

meterreading.

Introduction of Collection KIOSK

Currently 150 collection KIOSKs are running under
different 150 location of WIBSLEDCL., Consumers are
able to deposit the amount of energy bills any time in
between 8 AM to 10 PM in a day and seven days ina
week. Consumer can easily skip the queue of CCC
cash desk and deposit the bill at their leisure time,

Recently LOA has been placed for installation of
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another 100 numbers of ATP collection KIOSK on
BOOM basis
WBSEDCL to extend more consumer benefit. All of
these 100 KIOSKs will be installed by 17.09.2016.

Duration of Contract is for six ycars.

under diffcrent 100 location of

Introduction of Online Cash Collection Center

Onlme Cash Collection Center (OCCC) 15 running
in near about 2500 location under the jurisdiction of
WBSEDCL. These OCCCs are mainly situated at
rural belt. Customer under Rural areas can casily
deposit thetr bill at OCCCs at their nearby location

without visiting the far located CCC cash desk.

ITINITIATIVES :

R-APDRP (Part-A) and R-APDRP like IT System
Developmentin balance areas:

Metering Billing and Collection:

SAP-ISU based Metering Billing and Collection
system has been implemented throughout WB.

Meter Data Acquisition System :

MDAS implemented for all Lceder and HT
consumer throughout W13 and all the DTRs uader
R-APDRP, Part-A Towns.

Geographical Information System

Mapping ofthe electricainetwork from 11kV (0 230V
and consumer mdexing has been completed for
R-APDRP, Part-Atown.

Energy Audit :
Substation-wisc, Tceder-wisc and DTR-wisc
Generation of Encrgy Audit Report has been

implemented.



ERP:

As a part of ongoing capacily building program,
WBSEDCIL. has implemented Enterprise Resource
Planning in a mimber of functional areas across
Headquarters and field offices located all over West
Bengal.

Financial Accounting, Matcrial Management,
Human Resource, Pay Roll and Project System and
Plant Maintenance Module have been implemented
in three different Phases from April, 2015 to March,
2016.

CONSUMER SERVICES :

SMS Service:

SMS based network health monitoring system has
been introduced for carly restoration of faulty
system. Consumers who have registered mabile
mumber 1 WBSEDCL's web-portal arc intimated
aboutl their Billing and e-payment information
through SMS. Pilot Projects have been started m
certain CCC's to deliver SMS intimation for meter
rcading. payment acknowledgements and reecipt
cancellation. Consumer complamis dockets and
closure status 1s being sent to respective registered

mobile nos. ofthe consumers.

Introduction of Centralized IVRS System:

Centralized Inleractive Voice Recording System
(TVRS) has been mtroduced. All ZCCs have been
migrated m the Centralized 1VRS operation. At
present any sort of consumer call hit central data
center initially and on availability the same call is
diverted cither to respective ZCC and in casc tlic
telephone line ol respective ZCC s busy then  the
same call is diverted to any other ZCC which s
currently available, This system has drastically

rcduced the chances of unattended calls and
subsequently consumer griecvance has been reduced.
Short code "1912" has been mplemented (or
electricity complaints for WBSEDCL Consumers
exceptinsomearea under Kolkata Zone.,

Online e-facilities provided by WBSEDCL:

s e-payment [actlity for payment ol electricity bill
through net banking/ credit /debit card with quick
pay option and availing ot additional rebate for
payment within due date.

s Bill payment through mobile wallet {using Airtel
Moncy and Vodafone M-Pcaa).

» Online application facility through web-portal
for New Conncction agatnst domestic,
commercial & industrial consumers {(upto 50
KVA) and forall class above 50 K VA.

» Onlinc application for load enhancement facility
(upto 6 KW) against domestic, commercial and

industrial consumers.

¢ Onlinc tracking of status against applications for
new conneclion and load enhancement applied
through online.

= Billpaymenloptionusing ECS.

o HT consumers can makce payment (Encrgy bill.
quotation lor new connection} through
RTGS/NEFT.

Collection through e-Pradan
Government of West Bengal :

system of

Integration has been made with e-Pradan of TFMS
{[ntegrated Financial Management System) of West
Bengal Governiment for payment against cncrgy
bill/quotation ol" Government establishment using
RTGS.
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Mobile-app:

In @ bid to provide better service to consumers, the
Company has introduced a new mobile application-
"Vidyut Sahayyogi'. This will benefit 1.63 crore
consumecrs. The application which was developed
with the statc of art technology is based on android
mobile platform. With the help of the application, a
consumer can download the quotation and at the
same time can make necessary payments to get new
connegction. The status of application can also be
checked using the application. The application also
enables a consumer to check and pay the electricity
bill as well. At the same time one can also check the
six months history of power consumption,
Complaints of powcr cut or any disruption in
services can also be reported using the application.
The most important part ol the application is that, i
is multilingual. It 1s available in English, Bengaliand
Hind.

SCADA/DMS Project :

During the year 2013-16 the SCADA/DMS project
had substantial progress with nstallation &
commissioning of Hardware & Softwarc at Kolkata
as well as Siliguri SCADA Control Centre. The
Kolkata Control Centre was made "LIVE" by
integrating two 33 KV sub-stations. The real time
operational data were available at the Control
Centre. The infrastructure work at Asansol Control
Centre and Berhampore DR Centre was  also
completed.

Siliguri Smart Grid Pilot Project :
The Siligurt Smart Grid Pilot Project Kick started
durmg 2015-16. Siligur 1s one of the [4 places
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India to mmplement this project. Under the project
5275 single phase as well as three phase smart meters
will be installed. The survey has alimost been
compleled. Documentation & engineering ol the
energy meters and related hardware have been
completed during this year.

RGGVY (11" Plan) Scheme :

The Rajiv Gandhi Grameen Vidyutikaran Yojana
(RGGVY) is a Government of India tunded Project.
11" Plan of this Scheme covered 14 Districts of West
Bengal and the executing ageneies were WBSEDCL
and Cenlral Public Sector Undertakings (CPSUs).
WBSEDCI. was entrusted with 10 (ten) projects in
the district of Coochbehar. Darjeeling (SMP),
Dakshin Dinajpur, Malda, Nadia, Hooghly, Howrah,
Bobhum, Burdwan and South 24- Parganas. The
district of Uttar Dinajpur. Murshidabad, Paschim
Medinipur (only Kaharagpur Block-1 & IT), Paschim
Medmipur {other than KCharagpur Block) and Purulia
were entrusted to CPSU. NTPC, PGCIL and NIIPC
were functioning as the implementing agency in this
project. Under the entire project of RGGVY (11"
Plan) Scheme, electrilication of 23899 nos. villages
has been dene and service connection to 20.98 Lakh
BPL llouscholds effected. Toral
cxpenditure wncurred in this project is ¥ 1883.16

have been

Crore and the project has been closed within
31.03.2015.

West Bengal Rural Household Electrification
Programme under WBREP Scheme:

Govl. of India has not provided any [und in respect ol
four districts viz. (1) Jalpaiguri, (1) North 24-

Parganas, (1) Purba Medinipur and (iv) Bankura.



The State of West Bengal sancrioned a fund of
Z 630.86 Crore for undertaking Rural Electrification
work in these four districts through WBSLEDCL.
Undcr this cntirc project of WBRLP Scheme,
electrification of 7636 nos. villages has been done
5.43 l.akh BIP'L

Households has been effected. Total expenditure

and  service connection to
ncurred in this project 1s T 664.38 Crore and the

projectlias been closed within 31.03.2016.

West Bengal Rural Household Electrification
Programme (Supplementary) :

Govt. of West Bengal sanctioned a fund of & 350
Crore for both West Bengal Rural Household
Elcctrification Programime (Supplementary) and
West Bengal Houschold Electrification Programme
{Balance). To cover habitations with a population
less than 100, onc supplementary scheme has been
taken up at a cost of T 126.33 Crore. Through this
project, 1894 nos. villages has been clectritied and
serviee connection to .68 Lakh BPL Houscholds
has been cffected. Total expenditure incurred in this
project is T 104.71 Crore and the project has been
closcd within31.03.2016.

West Bengal Rural Household Electrification
Programme (Balance):

It has been further revealed that due to poor
electritication in earlier stage in Coochbehar and

Jalpaiguri (Border District), there were considerable

nos. of habitation where electricity could not be
extended even after implementation of previously
stated  ongoing scheme like RGGVY-XT DPlan,
WBREDP. WBREP(Supplementary). The left out
habitations in the district of Jalpaigurt and
Coochbehar were covered under WBREP throagh
RHhE(Balance) Scheme at a total revised cost of
T 155.13 Crore. Through this projcct, 1050 nos.
villages has been clectrified and service connection
to 1.31 Lakh BPL Houscholds has been cffected.
Total cxpenditure incurred n this projeet is
T 143.11 Crore and the project has been closed
within31.03.2016.

Rural Electricity Distribution Backbone
Scheme (REDB-I| & Il, BRGF, RGGVY Xl & XIi) :

To cope up with rapid and enormous rural
electrification work in West Bengal, it 1s expected
that 30 lakh(approx.) household will be electritied.
To provide uninterrupted and quality power to the
consuners, a total no. of 82 new 33/11 KV sub-
stations have been taken up for this purpose under
different schemes like Rural Electricity Distribution
Backbone (REDB-1 & 1) Schenies funded by
WRBSEDCL, RGGVY (X1 th Plan) & RGGVY (XT1th
Plan) schemes and BRGF scheme. Out of such 52 nos.
new S/Sin.. 31nos. S/Stn. hiave been commssioned
ason 31.05.2016. The detail Scope, Commission and
Target for balance work are appended n following

table :
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i Commissioned
Scheme | Seoperte o o
’ 31.05.2016 '
REDB- 11 11 Completed
REDB-II 10 10 Completed
BRGF 18 06 Dec'16
1 dropped
due to non
RGGVY
X 09 04 Dec'16 availability
of land.
RGGVY
Xl 04 0 March'17
Total 52 31 March'17

Electrification in the Sundarban:

Extending grid power to islands in the Sundarban isa
big challenge as it requires a large quantum of funds
for construction of infrastructure like towers tor river
crossings. (ransportation of heavy equipments (o
islands ete. Sundarban A (Tairs Department under the
Stale Govermment has enirusted WBSEDCL for
electrification work in some islands. ¥ 87.08 Crore

has so fur been provided by the State Govemment Lo

WBSEDCL in lour (4) phases [or electrification ol

84(cighty lour) mouzas with 17188 nos. BPL and
39117 nos. APL connections in Gosaba & Pathar
Pratima Block. FElecunlication work has been
completed in 43 (forty three) mouzas, 549 nos. BPL
and 10658 nos. APL houscholds. The remaining 41
(Forty one) mouzas, wherc work is in progrcss, arc

cxpected to be completed in December, 2016.

Rural Electrification in Sagarlisland :
This 1s a World Bank financed project for

clectrification in Sagar Island. Infrastructural works
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ol all 42 (Forty Two) villages in this area have been
completed. Total expenditure incurred is T 31.83
Crore. 250 BPL and 30,800 APL Ilouseholds have
been energized under State Fund of < 9.88 Crore.
Special Backward Grant Fund
(BRGF):

A new Project titled ¥Sarba Griha Dwceep Prakalpa™

Region

(Sabar Ghare Alo) was preparced for providing 100%
electrification in the eleven 1dentified backward
distrniets of West Bengal namely Dakshin Dinajpur,
Malda, Murshidabad, Birbhuin, South 24-Parganas.
Uttar Dinajpur, Purulia, Paschim Medinipur,
Talpatguri, Purba Medinipur and Bankura. The said
projcct report was submitted by the Company to the
Planning Commussion through Government of West
Bengal, The Empowered Commitlee headed by
Member Scerelary, Planning Commission approved
the proposal of Power project with an cstimated cost
of ¥ 2511.10 Crore as Central Assistance to the

Slate Govermment for power projects under special



plan for West Bengal under BRGF. Out of
T 2511.10 Crore. tolal expenditure incurred is
$1907.62 Crore (75.97%) has been achicved upto
31.03.2016.

RGGVY (12" Plan)Scheme:

BRGF Scheme covered only 11 backward districts of
the State. Flectrification of all un-clectnfied BPL
Households in remaining seven (7) districts of West
Bengal namely  Coochbehar, Darjecling (SMP),
Nadia, Bardhaman, Howrah, Hooghly and North 24
Parganas has been planned under RGGVY(I2th
Plan) (2012-2017). WBSEDCL has 1ssued orders for
works in all these 7(Seven) districts in October, 2014
with stipulated completion time period of 24 months
as per norms of REC 1td. A total rno. of 6259 villages
will be covered and 56177 BPL connections will be
cffected under this scheme. REC has approved
T 609.60 Crore for thesc seven (7) districts; but,
30% fund for six(6) districts has rccently been
reccived and fund for remaining one (1) district is yet
to be reccived from GOL Govt. of West Bengal has
sanctioned T 98 Crore for the work of cffecting
service connection to 271512 APL Hh in thesc seven
(7) districts covered under RGGVY (12”' Plan)
Scheme, as, there is no scope for covering APL 1Th in
this scheme of REC Ltd. T 180.22 Crore has also
been sanctioned by State Government to meet up the
expenditure above sanctioned cost. Work under this
scheme has been started and is expected to be

completed within October, 2016.

Status of Village Electrification of the State

Total Number of Inhabited Village in 37,960
the State

Number of Electrified Village 37,945
Number of Un-Electrified Village 15
Number of Village, Where Work is in 5,981

progress

Expected date of completion of ali
village electrification

February, 2017

Status of BPL Household Energisation of the State

Total number of identified Rural BPL 34,568,162
Household in the State

Number of Rural BPL Household 32.41,392
Energised

Balance number of Rural BPL 214,770

Household yet to be Energised

Expected date of Energisation of all
BPL Household

February, 2017

Status of APL Household Energisation of the State

Total number of APL Household in 17,78,571
the State

Number of APL Household Energised 13,81,790
Balance number of APL Household 3,86,781

yet {0 be Energised

Expected date of Energisation of all
APL Household

February, 2017

Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojana

(DDUGJY):

The Ministry of Power, Government of India (MoP),

has launched the 'Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram

Jvoti Yojana (DDUGIYY with the following broad

objectives :

[. Creation of new infrastructure for providing
access topower forall houscholds and strengthening

ol distribution infrastructurc in rural areas.
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II.  Physical scparation of HT fceders for 24 x 7 Power
foragricultural and non-agricultural consumers.
I1l. Strengthening of sub-transmission and
distribution systems and mctering at all levels
forreduction of AT &C losscs.
Works of electrification of 14 nos. un-electrified and
59 nos. partially electrified villages and providing
service connection to 31305 BPL Ilousehold under
Gosaba, Pathar Pratima & Namlkhana Blocks in
Sundarban Area in the district of South 24 Parganas
have been taken up under DDUGJY Scheme tunded
by the Govt. of India with award cost of T 92.5444
Crore, Work of providing service connection to
15000 APL [Touseholds in these villages has been
taken up with the fund provided by West Bengal
Government with award cost of ¥ 5.4556 Crore
Work has been started. Target of completion of the
projectis February, 2017,

In addition to above, worlk for 5 (five) nos. river

crossing has been laken up to provide grid power Lo
the concerned villages under Patharpratima and
Gosaba block. Also, river crossing work 1s under
progress Lo provide gnd power o Namkhana block.
Targel ol completion ol the projectis I'ebruary, 2017

phasc wisc.

Restructured Accelerated Power Development
and Reform Programme (RAPDRP):

The MOP, GOl is providing assistance to
WBSLEDCL under Restructured Aceelerated Power
Development and Reform Programme (RAPDRP).
Under RAPDRP Part B which includes upgradation
and strengthening of sub-transmission and
distribution system in different towns of West
Bengal. Letter of Award (LOA) has been placed for
63 nos. town area by engagmg Tumkey agencies.
Progress for the period 01.04.2015 to 31.03.2016 is

as follows:

SI. [ Name of the project| Project Source of
No. cost Funding
(FinCr)

Progress upto Progress for the period
31.03.2015 01.04.2015 to 31.03.2016
Physical | Financial Physical Financial

{in Nos.) (TinCr) {in Nos.) (T inCr)

25% lrom
PFC. the nodal
ageney & 73%

from REC as
countcrpart
funding

Up gradation and
strengthening ot
a | sub-transmission 739.91
and distribution

syslem 1 63 lowns.

16 207.16 30 139.92
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National Electricity Fund (NEF) :

WREEDIL

The MOP, GOI 15 providing assistance to WBSEDCL under National Electricity Fund (NEF), an interest
subsidy scheme, to strengthen the existing network of distribution system. Under this scheme 6(51x) nos.
projects have been sanctioned. Letter of Award (LOA) has been placed for 4 (Four) nos. of projects and

2 {two) nos. of projccts dropped from NEF Scheme. Progress for the period 01.04.2015 to 31.03.2016 15 as

follows :
Progress upto Progress for the period
S1. Name of the Project cost Sourcg of 31.03.2015 01.04.2015 to 31.03.2016
No. Project (T mCr) | Funding _ ; : - . ;
Physical | Financial Physical Financial
(in%) (T inCr) | {in%) (FinCr)
Up gradation and
strengthening of sub-
a transmission and
distribution system in
Bolpurtown
_ 90.75 10% own 15% 913 65% 42 87
Up gradation and fund and
strengthening of sub- 90%
b transmission and from GOl
distribution system in through
Nabadwip town REC
c Augmentation of
33/11 KV sub-station
114.55 10% 6.57 60% 49.03
d Replacement of 33 &
11 KV OCB by VCE

Integrated Power Development Scheme (IPDS) In WBSEDCL.:

The [PDS scheme launched by MOP, GOI for strengthening of Distribution infrastructure in the urban areas
will be implemented i 18 nos. Regions of WBSEDCL covering 121 nos. towns at the total project cost of
T 2.866.76 Crore.

The broad objective ol this scheme s to provide 24 X 7 qualily power supply [or consumers, reduction ol
AT&C losses as per trajectory [inalized by MOP, GOI in consultation with state and providing access Lo
power o all households ol the urban areas.

The work involves installation of new 33/11 KV substations as well as augmentation and renovation ol
existing 33/11 KV substations, drawal ol mew | | KV line {both by conductor and AB Cable), DTR metering

and replacement ol'consumer meters, installation o’ Rool” Top Solar Panel.
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Running Power Stations:
Installed Capacity (MW)
Purulia Pumped Storage Project
Teesta Canal Fall Hydel Project
Ramman Hydel Project, Stage-11
Jaldhaka Hydel Project, Stage - 1
Jaldhaka Hydel Projcet, Stage - 11
Massanjorc Hydcl Project
Mini-Micro Hydcl Power Project
(i) Sidrapong Hydcl Project
(11} FaziHydel Project
(111} Rinchington Hydcl Project
(iv) Little Rangit Hydcl Projcct

(v} Mungpoo Kalikhola Hydcl Projcct

107530 MW
225 MW (900 MW)

4 x
3x3x7.5 MW (67.5MW)
4x12.75 MW (51 MW)
4x9 MW (36 MW)
2x4 MW (8 MW)
2x2 MW (4 MW)
3x 200 KW (0.6 MW)
ix1.2 MW (1.2MW)
2x1 MW (2 MW}
2x 1 MW (ZMW)
3x1 MW (3 MW)

Hydro power g eneration including generation of PPSP :

Generation of power during 2013-2014: 133.45
Generation of power during 2014-2015: 1932.042 MU

Generation of power during 2015-2016: 1588.376856 MU

Generation Highlights :

The aggregale generation ol all Hydel stations and PPST in 2015-16 are as below :

Name of the Power Stations

Generation achieved in 2015-16

Purulia Pumped Storage Project

1055.0016 MU

Rammam HP, Stage - 11 253.99 MU
Jaldhaka 1P 173.45 MU
Small HP [8.35 MU
Teesta Canal Fall HP 79.98 MU

Massanjore 11P

7.605256 MU

Total

1588.376856 MU
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Purulia Pumped Storage Project (PPSP):

S00 MW (4x225 MW) Purulia Pumped Storage Project was developed at Ayodhya hills 1in the distrnict of
Purulia with tinancial assistance of the Japan International Cooperation Ageney (JICA), erstwhile QLCIY
and IBIC, Japan. The main Project activities were slarted in March 2002 & completed within the Target
Schedule of 31 December, 2007, All the 4 (four) units were put on commercial operation within 2007-2008.

Progress & Achievements during 2015-16:

e PPSPmade arecord generation of6.063 MU on 25.05.2014 in a single day operation & monthly record
generation of 137.6226 MU in August 2014.

e Overhauling of each machine is required. Unit No. 2 has been overhauled during 2015-16.
e Total Generatiom achicved = 1055.0016 MU

e Average Cycle Efficiency achieved=77.71% aganst design cycle of 75.5%

e Avcrage Plantavailability tactorachieved =76.72%

e Under Corporate Social Responsibility scheme one compuler laboratory building was constructed and a
few numbers of computers were provided to a nearby school

Massanjore Hydel Power Station :
Massanjore Hydel Power Station is a 4 MW (2 X 2MW) storage type Hydel power station at the base of

Canada damacross Mayurakshi river, re-commissioned on 10th June, 201 1.

Progress & Achievements during 2015-16:

e (jencration achicved : 7.605256 MU

Different conventional Hydro electric Projects under operation :

Generation Highlights :

e Theaggregale generation achieved (or all the Hydel stalions under Chiel Engineer (Hydel) in 2015-161s
525.768 MU.

Cost Highlights:

e Aggregate per Unil Cosl of generation is T (.74 at Plant level and ¥1.32 at Corporate level (as on

December 2015 worked out by Cost Analysis Cell).
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Per Unit Fapnn
Name of Actual Bt a o Generation
Hydel Generation F?IS i %d ¢ e?e:apll nt Cost
Power Plant in MU BLF ey Osla la” at HQ level
e (till Dec. 2015)
1 2 3 4 5
RHP, Stage-I| 253.99 8,81,05,1186 0.347 0.662
JHP 173.45 9,66,41,998 0.557 1.098
TCFHP 79.98 15.19,21,825 1.90 5.027
MMHP 18.35 5.47.04,602 2.961 3.15
(Aggregate)
TOTAL 525.77 39,13,73,542 0.744 1.32

All-out effort has been made so far as Jaldhaka
Hydel Project is concerned so thal full rated capacity
of the Project could be utilised for Generation during

the ensuing peak rainy season after resumplion of

Untt -4 of Stage-Land Unit -1l of Stage-II.

Power station wise Major works commenced/

undertakenin the year 201 5-161s asbe low:

[

Rammam Hydel Project :

Installation of New 132 kV SF6 Circuit Breakers
at 132/33 KV Switchyard.

Refurbishment of Annunciation & Protcction
syslem.

Installationolnew 415V, 315 KVA DG sel.
lmplementation of [32/33kV system for
distribution System improvement /interconneetion
& Evacuation of Power in connection with Small

Hydel Power Station has been taken up and 1is
scheduled to be completed by March, 2017.

Jaldhaka Hydel Project (Stage-ll):

Installation of New 66 kV §F6 Circuit Breakers at

66/11 KV Switchyard,

Digital Governor & Numerical Relays at Stage-11
PH to bec under taken.

Spare Turbine runner for U#], U#2 & U#2 at
Stage-1 PH Lo be Procured.

Teesta Canal Fall Hydel Project :
Augmentation of cxisting capacity of 2x7.5
MVA 132733 kv power transformerby 1 xX20 MVA |
1327133kv transtormers at Powcr Station-1.

Augmentation of existing two nos. 20 MVA PTR
al PS-111. One 31.5 MVA PTR already installed.
Another 50 MVA PTR will be installed on getting
the sume [fom WBSETCL.

Cutting of alternate trash rack bars of the intake
trash racks, (o allow passing ol trashes through
machines towards improvement of generation, in
all the power stations.

Mini-Micro Hydel Plants:

Refurbishment of 33733 KV Switchyard at
Rinchington & Fazi SHP by replacing the age
old 33KV Breaker/CT/PT cte.
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s The 2" 3. 15 MVA PTR has been put into
service al LRHP for system stability.

G. Status of Hydro electric project under
implementation :

m Ramman Intermediate Stage Hydro
electric Project of capacity 12 MW (2 x 6
MW)

Status:
s Design, Engineering and preparation ol NIT &
Bid document for different packages completed.

s Outright purchase procedure of land lor the
projectisin tinal stage. Costofland is finalised.

s Design & Engineering works [or stabilization of

Panchayat Thora and repairing of existing road 1s
completed. Design has been finalized and tender
document is under preparation.

o Consent Lo establish (NOCY from West Bengal
Pollution Control Board (WBPCB) received.

o Ongmaltarget dale of commissioning - February,
2016.

o Ist revised target date of commissioning-
December, 2016.

o 2nd revised target date of commissioning-
December, 2017.

o Jrd revised target date of commissioning - April,
2019.

Reason for revision of commissioning date:

@ Duc to implementation of - new land acquisition
from 01.01.2014, the land
acquisition processis held up.

act cffective

= Action for acquiring land by outright purchasc
from the owners as decided 15 taken.

[ 52 |

® Pedong Hydro Electric Project : 3 MW

(2x 1.5 MW):
Status:
s Decsign & Lnginccring and preparation of NIT arc
almost completed.
¢ Qutright purchasc of land for the project is in
progress. Consent for sale of land 15 collected
from 39 land owners.
¢ Proposal for long term scttlement of 1.7 acre
vesled land submitted.
o Consent to establish (NOC) rom West Bengal
Pollution Control Board (WRBPCB) received.
s Targetdatc of commissioning :-
o Original target date of commissioning — June,
2015
e 1" revised largel date ol commissioning —
December, 2010
s 2" revised largel date of commissioning —
March, 2018

Reason forrevision of commissioning date :

e Due to implementation of new land acquisition
act cffecetive from 01.01.2014, the land
acquisition process 1s held up.

e Action lor acquiring land by outright purchase
froin the owners as decided is under process.

H. Survey & Investigation activities for new
Hydel projects & programme for 2016-17:

To enhance the Hydro power capacity / Pumped

Storage generation capacity in West Bengal, the

following projects have been taken up for detailed

Survey and Investigation.

B Turga Pumped Storage Project of
capacity 1000 MW on Turga nala in
Ajodhya hills, District Purulia:
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Status:
Major Survey & Investigation Completed.

Drift Tunnelling in progress.

DPR preparcd and under advanced stage of

examination at CEA TfTor Techno-economical
clearance.

Stage-1 ToR Clearance from MoEF, Gol

obtained.

Final EIA & EMP Report completed alter Public
Iearing of the Project for Environmental
Clearance.

For Envirenmental Clearance, State Enyironment

Impact Asscssiment Authority, West Bengal has
forwared relevant documents to EAC, MOEF, Gol.

For Forest Clearance, arrangemcent for Non-
Forest Government Land 1s on.

1/3" of total Non-forest Government land
required for Alforcstation purpose of Turga PSP
has been arranged. Process 1s on for balance land.
State Planning Board, GoWB has accorded In-
principle approval ofthe project,

Bandu Pumped Storage Project of
capacity 200 MW on Turga nala in
Ajodhya hills, District Purulia:

Status:
PFR completed.
Topographical survey of the project is complete.

Preliminary  Geotechnical
(.S Lare complele.

investigations by

Hydro- meteorological Investigations are in
progress for preparation of Detailed Project
Report.

Fngagement of local consultant and foreign
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consultant for preparation of Detailed Project
Reportisin process.

A joint sitc inspection by WAPCOS, CLA. GSI
and WBSEDCL has been done {or assessment of
the extent ofactual work of the projeet.

MOU with GGSI for DPR stage Geo-techmical
investigations is under process of finalisation.

Teesta Intermediate Stage Hydro Electric
Project of capacity 84 MW on Teesta River
In Village-Kirney, District — Darjeeling :
Status:

Agreement between Government of  West
Bengal, WBSEDCL & NHPC Limited regarding
allotment of Teesta Intermediate Hydro Electric
Project in the district of Darjecling has been
executed on 3rd Tuly 201 5.

Actual audited cxpenditure incurred by
WRBSEDCTL or erstwhile WBSEB for the project
hasbeen asscssed and placed to NHPC Limited.

Teesta Low Dam | & |l [combined) Hydro
Electric Project of capacity 81 MW on Bari
Rangit River(a tributary to river Teesta) in
villageTeesta Bazar, Dist- Darjeeling:

Status:

Agrcement between  Government o West
Bengal, WBSEDCL & NHPC Limited regarding
allotment of Teesta Intermediate [lydro Electric
Project in the district of Darjeeling has been
executed on 3rd July 2015,

Actual audited expenditure incurred by
WBSEDCL or erstwilec WBSEB (or the project
has been assessed and placed to NITPC Linuted.

Teesta Low Dam V Hydro Electric Project



of capacity 80 MW on river Teesta in
village-Sevoke Bazar, Dist- Darjeeling ;

Status :

Agreement between Government of West
Bengal, WBSEDCL & NHPC Limited regarding
allotment ol Teesta Intermediate Hydro Electric
Project 1in the District of Darjecling has been
execuled on 3rd Tuly, 2015,

Actual audited cxpenditure incurrcd by
WBSEDCL or erstwhile WBSER for the project
has been assessed and placed to NHPC Limited.

Rammam Stage | Hydro Electric Project
of capacity 48 MW on river Rammam, Shri
Khola & Partham HKhola in village-
Daragaon, Dist - Darjeeling :

Status:

Agrcement between Government of West
Bengal, WBSEDCL & NHPC Limited regarding
allotment of Teesta Intermediate Hydro Llectric
Project 10 the District of Darjeeling has been
cxccuted on 3rd July, 2015.

Actual audited cxpenditute incurred by
WBSEDCL or erstwhile WBSEB for the project
has been assessed and placed to NHPC Limited.

Rammam Ultimate Stage Hydro Electric
Project of capacity 24 MW on river
Rammam and Little Rangit in village-
Singla Bazar Dist-Darjeeling:

Status:

Draft PFR 1s prepared and submitted by M/s
WAPCOS Ltd. has been reviewed & obscrved

that the scheme is not techno-commercially
attractivce.

After jomt visit with M/s WAPCOS alternate
schemes are prepared by M/s WAPCOS and
submitted. The reportis now under examination.

Farakka Barrage Hydro Electric Project of
capacity 125 MW on river Ganga in District
Murshidabad;

Status:

Preliminary studies are made and now under
cxanmination.

Work under Solar Power Generation
Department

Status of Solar PV Power Project under
implementation:

Teesta Canal Bank Solar PV Power
Project (10 MW) :

Status :

The project is located ncar Teesta Canal Fall,
Stage TI Power Station of WBSEDCL.

Ordered value ol the project 158 § 63.88 crore
including 5 years comprehensive 0 & M.

Fund - MNRE approved subsidy amounting to
T 15.00 crore. The project 18 sanclioned by the
State Govt. and balance amount of T 50.88 Cr.
is arranged by the Dept. o Power & NES, Govl.
of West Bengal from NABARD under RIDF
XXIscheme.

The plant with full 10 MW capacity is
commissioned on [8.08.2016 and inaugurated
by the llon'ble Chief Minister of West Bengal on
23.08.2016. Tolal Generation up o 31.08.2016
isabout L.576 MU.

3 nos. 10 MW Solar PV projects at Chharra
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& Santaidih in Purulia and Mejia in
Bankura District ;

Status:

The project is sanctioned by the State Govt. and
Fund amounting to ¥ 184.52 Crore 18 arranged
by the Dept. of Power & NES, Govt. of West
Bengal (rom NABARD under RIDF XXI
scheme.

Tender has been finalized. Letter of Award 1s
1issued i favour of M/s BHEL for all three
projects on 06.09.2016.

Targetofcompletion: 2016-17

Setting up of Grid connected Solar PV
power plant (10 KW each) at 100 nos. of

Govt. and Govt. aided schools in
different Districts of the state :
Status:

Dept. of Power & NLS, Govt. of West Bengal
entrusted WBSEDCL to execule the job.

Fund is provided by Ministry ol New &
Renewable Energy (MNRE), Govt. of India and
State Govl.

Out of 100 nos. schools, Solar PV power plant
has been setup at 92 nos. schools.

Setting up of Grid connected Solar PV
power plant (10 KW each) at 200 nos. of
schools, colleges and other Institutions
in different districts of the State:

Status;

Proposals for allotment of fund have been
placed to Ministry o New & Renewable Energy
(MNRE), Govt. of India and State Govt.
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LOA has been 1ssued [or an amount of § 13.82
Crore excluding ST. The work is under
execulion.

Target of completion: 6 (six)- months.

Rooftop Solar Projects (5 MW) under
Integrated Power Development Scheme
(IPDS):

Status:

Estimated Project Cost T 37.50 crore. T 22.50
crorc will be available as grant trom Ministry of
Power, Govt. of India and the balance amount
willbe met from WBSEDCL.

Site identification process is in progress  at
different notified towns of I8 districts in West
Bengal.

Tender decnment prepared. Tender process
started through uploading of NIT at Govt. ¢-

procurement portal
22.08.2010.

whtenders.gov.in on

Target of completion; 2016-17

Mew Projects under Process of Implemen-
tation

Implementation of 60 MW Solar PV
Projects in Paschim Medinipur and
Purulia District of West Bengal.

Status:

5 nos. Solar PV Project of tolal capacity 40 MW
is proposcd to be developed at Salbouy (10 MW)
and Khemasuli (10 MW) area of Paschim
Mcdinipur, Atna & Saridi (10 MW) Mouza at
Bagimundi Block, Kashangt Mouza (4 MW) ol
Jaipur Block and Bagkhuar Mouza (6 MW) of
Manbazar I Block of Purulia.



[ 56 |

WRIEDLL

Total estimated cost of proposcd 40 MW Projeet
15 T 240 Crore.

Fund lor the proposed project 1s being arranged
by the State from NABARD.

Project Report submitted on 16.07.2016.

Land for two nos. Solar PV Projects has been
located near Teesta Canal Fall Stage [ and Teesta
Canal Fall Stage 1l HEP of WBSEDCL
measuring about 13 acre and 25 acre
respectively. Identified lands arc under the
control of T & W Department. Govt. of West
Bengal. Two projects of 4 MW and 6 MW could
be developed at the said land.

2 nos. 10 MW Solar PV Project one at Birbhurn
and another onc in Paschim Mcedinipur has also
been envisaged.

Projcct proposal is under preparation.

500 MW ultra mega Solar Park in the
Districts of Purba Medinipur, Paschim
Medinipurand Bankura:

Status

MNRE accorded sanclion [or preparation ol

DPR.

DPR of Ist phase 18 completed and placed to
MNRE.

Scheme for evacuation of Power has been taken
up with STU.

1200 MW Solar PV Project for supply of
Clean Pumping Power to the Pumped
Storage Projects in Purulia :

Status :

The scheme of setting up 1200 MW Solar
Project at Purulia in two phases (Phase -1: 1 x

J00MW, Phase - [1: 3 x 300 MW =900 MW

Project costis & 7047 Crore. 40% of the cosl will
be arranged through Viability Gap Funding from
National Clean Energy Fund. The balance cost
will be arranged by obtaining loan from Funding
Agcney and Lquity from WBSLEDCL's own
fund.

MNRE accepled the scheme and lorwarded to
the Dept. of LExpenditure, Ministry of Finance
Govl. of India lor sanction of Viabitity Gap
Funding from NCEF.

All required clanfications as asked by Dept. of
Expeuditure, Ministry of Finance, Govl. of India
have been replied jointly by MNRE and
WBSEDCL for according approval of 40%
Viability Gap Funding from NCEF i.r.o. Phase - I.

Implementation of 20 MW Canal Top
Solar PV Projects:

Status:

2 nos. 10 MW projects arc proposcd to be
developed on Tailrace Canal of TCI. Stage II
Power Station and on Mahananda Main Canal of
1 & W Department adjacent to TCF Stage IITTEP
at Haltiagachh of Chopra Block, Utlar Dinajpur
District.

Total estimated Cost of proposed Projects are
T 177.37Crore

Project Proposals alrcady prepared and
submiitted to Power & NES Dept., Govt. of West
Bengal and MNRE, Govt. of India mn August
2016 for sanction of the projects and tund.

Solar Park at Nayachar, Haldia:
Status:

From available reports and prima-facic
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assessiment, 10 may be found that about 4892.56
acre of land may be utilized for development of
one Ultra Mega Solar Project of estimated 1000
MW capacity.

» A prelinunary report is prepared to decide
further action.

® 'Aloshree' Programme
Status

# 'Aloshrec’ Programme has been initiated by the
Government of West Bengal in order to install
Rooftop Solar PV Systems in all Government
Offices and Establishments within 2-3 vyears
time.

» Dept. of Power & NS, Govt. of West Bengal is
the nodal department for implementation of the
prograin.

o  WBSEDCL is the implementing agency for the
work.

» Based on gathered information suitable
mechanism (or project implementation will be
takenup.

o Tender process started through uploading of
NIT for implementation of cumulative 10 MWp
Rooftop Solar PV Plants at Govt. e-procurement
portal whtenders.govan on 22.08.2016.

Power trading & Procurement:

WBSEDCL having huge responsibility ol providing
power to Licensee area of 88060 sq Km (out of
89370 sq Km ol Wesl Bengal area) 1.e. 98.53% of
West Bengal's arca, WBSLDCL provides power to
96% ol West Bengal. calering o every seclor - [rom
ordinary villages to huge industrial units. It serves a
customer base of more than 1.65 crore across West
Bengal. The service network spans over 5 Zoncs, 19
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Regional Offices, 67 Distribution Divisions and 490
Customer Carc Centres. The achievements during
2015-16 were as follows:

o Significant reduction per unil power purchase
cost.

» Reverse Auction [or Power Purchase/ Procurement:
WEBSLDCL has become a pionecr as for the 1st time
m the country power was procured through Reverse
Auction with significant commercial success beyond
expectation. For this purpose WBSEDCL. partnered
with mjunection.com to develop the reverse auction
module for power procurement, West Bengal Model
now bcen adopted as a standard by Government of
Indha which has now mandated that all short-term
power will be procured by this process. A national ¢-
bidding platform has now been built by MSTC and
Government ol India has issued guidelines in this
regard.

e 24x7 supply ol power during the period has been
achieved.

o Introduction of Power Forecasting for optimizing
power procurcments and planning of portfolio.
Tender was floated tor shortlisting of'a consultant.
KPMG has been awarded the LOA and the project
is under way. The same is expected to be
implemented by December, 2016, With  this
WBSEDCL will be the 4th state in the country ta
immplement such a process. Substantial cost
benelits are expected in power procurement.

o Tight Scheduling of power with an opcrational
plan strictly in compliance with regulatory
[rameworlc.

» Optimal opcrational planning of internal
generation,

o Costly Generation replacement (CGR) by
cheaper power procurement,



» Avoidance of keeping sustained spinning reserve
through Long Term Procurement plan i.c. "cut
vour cloth as perrequirement” strategy.

» Maximum possible sincere ellorl to sell
unavoidable periodic surplus power at marginal
variable price to realize the partial fixed cost.

o Continuous Market study & wvigil to control
contingencies.

Area Load Despatch Centre (ALDC) :

In compliance with the Regulatory Guideline, Arca
Load Dcspatch Centre (ALDCY} has been formed
the

management  assiduously on  techno-commercial

wilh onus ol elficienl consumer demand
principle. Interruption free service to the consumer
with quality in toto is thc motto ol ALDC. Not only
the quality service but also economic despatch of
power from multisource availability with the
exploration ol real time power market 18 also
monitored round the clock for commercial interest of
consumer. To serve such responsibility ¢ualified &
well trained cnginecrs along with technical support
hands arc monitoring the situation round the clock
(24x7 Hours) in three shill operation per day. Apart
from the real time operational activity, ALDC 1s also
entrusted for procuremcnt of power through spot
markct in the cvent of contingency, short term & long
lcrm  perspeclive Demand  Generalion  Balance
planning for power purchase portfolio managemendt.
To assure perfection in performance ol such
mmportant wing like ALDC, Company has provided
support viz. SCADA,

all infrastructural

conmnunication cte.

Regulatory Affairs :

Regulation Department looks after all regulatory
works o[ WBERC and CERC. Dilterent applications
arc filed before both Commissions to
dilliculties and also sunultancous compliance of

remnove
regulations.

Performance | Achievement the
period 2015-2016 :

I. Implemention of Tari{T Order20135-16.

2. Application for FPPCA for the year 2014-15

submitted.

during

3. Application for Annual Pcrformance Review
(APR) forthc year2014-15 submittcd.

4. Implementation ol competilive tlarill in the
command arca of DVC where multiple licensces
arc functioning.

5. Obtaiming approval from WBERC for quick
disposal of application through online
apphcation of mlending LV & MV consumers
having contracl demand below SO0 KVA.

6. Ilmplementation of MVCA during the year
2015-t16.

7. Preparation ol views on modified Tanil(l Policy
2016.

8. Submission ol CEA's General Review 2014-15.

9. Rencwable Purchasc obligation met for the year
2015-16.

Energy purchased by WBSEDCL (rom dillerent
non-conventional sources :
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Sl. No. Type No. of Generator Contra(cl\lm?vL}Lantum Supi:;:;g(ymu)

2015-16 2015-16 2015-16

a Mini Hydel 2 6.00 20.091

b Bio-mass 2 14.40 0

c Co-generation 8 12110 919.898

d Wind 1 2.00 0

e Solar 1 35 74.340

TOTAL 14 178.50 1017.330

Customer Relations Management (CRM)
The "Customer Relations Management” (CRM) Cell

has been set up by the Company with an effort to

improve the Customer relations and providing better

services by the Company. The following are the brief

cxcerpts of the CRM Cell's functioning for the year
2015-16.

A.

a)

Petition received from the office of Ld.
Ombudsman:

707 (seven hundred and seven) no. ol grievance
petitions reecived trom the office of the
Ombudsman and CRM  Cell has prepared
statement ol facts alter collecting inlormation
from the concerned site offices before submitting
the same to office of Ombudsman. Additional
submission is also provided whenever required.

Hearing attended at the officc ot Ld. Ombudsman
against 915 (nine hundred and fifteen) no. of
cases (few cases brought forward from previous

year).
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e)

B.

Order passed by the Ld. Ombudsman against 873
no. ol'cases among which 310 (three hundred and
tcn) complaints are dismissed by the Ld.
Ombudsmun and necessary steps for complying
the rest no. of cases has already been taken by the
Cell.

I respect of 36 (thirty six) nos. of cases Writ
Petition filed against order of Ld. Ombudsman
belfore Hon'ble High Courl considering

ambiguous nature of order.

In respect of 11 (eleven) nos. of cases the Cell
allended the olfice of Commission (WBERC)
where compliance of order of Ld. Ombudsman
was not complied within time as per the provision
under Sec-142,

Functioning of CE, CRM as Appellate
Authority:

The office of the Chict Engincer, CRM Cell as an
Appellate Authority (of CESC) handled 14



(fourteen) nos. ol thell complaimt cases as per

GoWB notification (under Scction 127 of E.A.
2003).

. Functioning of CE, CRM as CGRO:

The oflice of the Chiel Engineer, CRM Cell
handled 10 (ten) nos. of Grievance petitions
addressed to the Chief Grievance Redressal
Officer as per Regulation 36/WBERC dated
26.08.2013.

. Public Grievance:

a) The CRM Cell received 8037 (Eight
thousand and thirly seven) no. of complaints
during the period through e-mail

(ermeclli@wbsedelin) and the samc was

dealt with average time of compliance of 7

(seven)days.

b) The CRM Cell dircctly received 761 (Seven

hundred and sixty one) no. of letters

covering different grievances and those were
redressed early aller bemg taken up wilh

concerned site offices.

E. Customer Satisfaction Survey :

The CRM Cell conducted Customer Satisfaction
Survey to oblain Customer Salisfaction Index
(CS1) through M/s Frost & Sullivan (India) Pvt.
Ltd. which has been started [rom January, 2013
and the same would continue for 3 (three)

consecutive years.

RGRF
A total of 19 (nineteen) nos. of Regional

Over seeing functioning of

Gricvance Redressal Forum arce  operating
throughout West Bengal covering individual
District {onc in cvery district) under CRM Cell
and 700 (Seven hundred) no. of grievances have
been received at RGRO level out of which
642(Six hundred and forty two) were redressed
within stipulated time as [ramed by WBERC.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Composition of the Board :
The composition of the Board of Directors during the financial year 2015-2016 was as follows:

Whole Time Directors

NAME DESIGNATION TENURE
Shri Narayan Swaroop Nigam Chairman & Managing Director From 12.08.13(AN) to 02.01.2016
Shri Rajesh Pandey Chairman & Managing Director From 02.01. 2016 to until further order
Shri Kalyan Kumar Ghosh Director (Finance) From 08.12. 2009 to 06.12.2018
Shri Debidas Datta Director(Generation) From 10.10.2011 to 08.10.2016
Shri Tapan Kanti Rudra Director (HR) From 04.07.2012 to 31.08.2015
Shri Ranjit Kumar Majumder Director (Distribution) From 31.07. 2013 to 30.04.2017
Shri Niranjan Saha Director (Projects ) From 30.04.2015 (AN) to 30.04.2017
Shri Ajay Kumar Pandey Director (R&T) From 29.05.2015 to 28.05.2018
Shri Sujay Sarkar Director(HR) From 31.08.2015 (AN) until further order

Independent Directors

SL. NAME OF INDEPENDENT TENURE
NO DIRECTOR REMARKSS
: FROM TO
1 Shri Tapan Kumar Majumdar 13.03.2013 31.05.2016 Ceased
2 Shri Dipak Kumar Banerjee 19.05.2014 18.02.2016 Ceased
3 Shri Debashish Majumdar 16.10.2014 30.09.2017 Resigned w.e.f.
23.08.2016
4 Shri Gopal Krishna Saxena 16.10.2014 30.09.2017
Government Nominee and Woman Director
SL. TENURE
NO. NAME OF DIRECTOR
FROM TO
1 Smt. Saswati Banerjee 08.05.2014 Until further order
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Chairman

The Chairman & Managing Director is the Chief
Executive of the Company. His primary role is to
provide leadership to the Board for achieving
Company goals. He keeps the Board informed on all
matters of importance.

He presides over General Meetings of Shareholders.

Executive Director

The Executive Directors contribute to the strategic
management of the Company's businesses within
Board approved directions/framework. As Directors
are accountable to the Board for Business/Corporate
functions, they assume overall responsibility for its
strategic management, including its governance

processes and top management effectiveness.

Details of Board Meetings during the
financial year
During the financial year 2015-16, nine Board

Meetings were held as follows:

Sl Dats Board No. of Directors
No. Strength Present
1. | 30.04.15 10 9

2. | 14.05.15 11 11

3. 1 02.06.15 12 11

4. | 28.07.156 12 11

5. | 14.09.15 12 12
6. | 13.10.15 12 11

7. | 09.11.15 12 11

8. | 01.02.16 12 11

9. | 30.03.16 11 10

The maximum time gap between two consecutive
meetings of the Board did not exceed 120 days. The
Board has complete access to all the relevant

information within the Company.

General Body meetings

Details of General meetings are as under :

Special
Meeting Date Location Time | Resolutions
Passed
8th Annual [13.10.2015 | Registered Office:|  4.00 None
General Vidyut Bhavan, P.M.
Meeting Sector-Il,
Block-DJ,
Bidhannagar,
Kolkata-700 091
7th Annual [13.11.2014 | Registered Office:(  4.00 None
General Vidyut Bhavan, P.M.
Meeting Sector-Il,
Block-DJ,
Bidhannagar,
Kolkata-700 091
6th Annual 23.09.2013 | Registered Office:| 4,00 None
General Vidyut Bhavan, P.M.
Meeting Sector-ll,
Block-DJ,
Bidhannagar,
Kolkata-700 091
Extra 21.10.2014 | Registered Office:(  4.00 | 1) Under
Ordinary Vidyut Bhavan, PM. |Section
General Sector-Il, 180(1)(c )
Meeting Block-DJ,
Bidhannagar, of the _
Kolkata-700 091 Companies
Act, 2013
2) Under
Section
180(1)(a)
of the
Companies
Act, 2013
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Attendance at Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting (AGM), during the year 2015-16 is

tabled below:
Board Meetings
Attendance
; Held at last AGM Other
Director during — nig Directorship Remarks
the
13.10.2015
tenure
Shri Narayan Swaroop Nigam 7 7 Yes 3 C(;a;g(:d%n
Shri Rajesh Pandey 2 2 NA. 3 e o
Shri Kalyan Kumar Ghosh 9 9 Yes 2 -
Shri Debidas Datta 9 9 Yes 1 -
Shri Tapan Kanti Rudra 4 4 N.A. Nil C§1aggd1gn
Shri Ranjit Kumar Majumder 9 8 Yes 1 -
Smt. Saswati Banerjee 9 9 Yes 4 -
Shri Tapan Kumar Majumdar 9 8 Yes Nil Cg?%%"%"
Shri Dipak Kumar Banerjee 8 8 Yes 9 Cf;g‘;d 1%”
Shri Gopal Krishna Saxena 9 7 No 2 -
Shri Debashish Majumdar 9 8 Yes 1 C;;g‘;d1%”
Joined on
Shri Niranjan Saha 9 9 Yes Nil 01.05.15
Shri Ajay Kumar Pandey 7 5 Yes Nil Joined on
29.05.15
Co . Joined on
Shri Sujay Sarkar 5 5 Yes Nil 31.08.15

ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015-2016




Board Agenda

Meetings are governed by a structured agenda. The
Board members, in consultation with the Chairman,
may bring up any matter for the consideration of the
Board. All major agenda items are backed by
comprehensive background information to enable
the Board to take informed decisions.

Post-meeting follow-up system

The Governance process in the Company include an
effective post- meeting follow-up, review and
reporting process for action taken/ pending on
decisions of the Board and Board committees.

The Committees of the Board

There were eight Board Committees — the Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee, HRD & Remuneration Committee,
Project Appraisal and Monitoring Committee,
Contracts/Purchases and Procurement etc.

Committee, Committee for consideration of appeals
against the punishment order passed by the
Disciplinary Authority and  Stakeholders
Relationship Committee.

The terms of reference of the Board Committees are
determined by the Board from time to time.
Meetings of each Board Committee except
Committee for consideration of appeals against the
punishment order passed by the Disciplinary
Authority are convened by the Company Secretary
under the direction of the Chairman of the respective
Committees.

Signed minutes of the Board Committee Meetings
are placed for the information of the Board. The
matters which required Board's attention/approval
are generally placed in the form of Agenda notes to
the Board.

Audit Committee
The composition of the Audit Committee during
2015-16was as follows :

Sl. Name of Director Designation Position in the Remarks
No. Committee
Shri Tapan Kumar ; . Ceased on
1. Majumdar Independent Director Chairman 01.06.16
Smt. Saswati Government Nominee
2. Banerjee and Woman Director Member
3. Shri Dipak Independent Member Ceased on
Kumar Banerjee Director 19.02.16
i ; Ceased on
4. Shri Debashish Independent Member
Majumdar Director 23.08.16
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Chairman and Managing Director, Director (Finance) and General Manager (F&A) - Internal Audit are

standing invitees in the Audit Committee Meetings. Director (Distribution) and Director (HR) are also

invitees to the Committee.

Meetings and Attendance :

During 2015-16 six Meetings of the Audit Committee were held on 14.05.15, 28.07.15, 14.09.15, 13.10.15,

09.11.15and 30.03.16.

Meetings attended by individual members during the year 2015-16 are detailed below:

Name of Director, Designation Position in the Committee Nz.ug;‘nr;ﬁtslr:g:ul:.eeld r;::::g:

Shri Tapan Kumar Majumdar, Chairman 6 6
Independent Director

Smt. Saswati Banerjee

Government Nominee and Woman Director Member 6 6
Shri Dipak Kumar Banerjee, Member 5 5
Independent Director

Shri Debashish Majumdar, Member 6 5

Independent Director

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee during 2015-16 was as follows :

Sl

No. Name of Director

Designation

Position in the
Committee

Remarks

1 Shri Dipak Kumar Banerjee

Independent Director

Chairman Ceased on 19.02.16

2 Shri Narayan Swaroop Nigam

Chairman and
Managing Director

Member Ceased on 02.01.16

3 Shri Rajesh Pandey

Chairman and
Managing Director

Member Joined on 02.01.16

Government Nominee and

4 Smt. Saswati Banerjee Member
Woman Director
5 Shri Tapan Kumar Majumdar Independent Director Member Coﬁaggdén
. . . . Ceased on
6 Shri Debashish Majumdar Independent Director Member 23.08.16
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Meetings and Attendance :

During 2015-16 three meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held on 14.05.15,
14.09.15and 01.02.16.
Meetings attended by individual members during 2015-16 are detailed below:

. . . Position in the | No. of meetings held | Meetings
Name of Director, Designation Committee during his tenure attended

Shri Dipak Kumar Banerjee, .

Independent Director Chairman 3 3

Shri Narayan Swaroop Nigam,

Chairman & Managing Director Member 2 2

Shri Rajesh Pandey,

Chairman & Managing Director Member 1 1

Smt. Saswati Banerjee Mermb 1

Government Nominee Director and Woman Director ember 3

Shri Tapan Kurpar Majumdar Member 3 3

Independent Director

Shri Debashish Majumdar

Independent Director Member 3 3

Committee for Corporate Social Responsibility
The composition of the Committee during 2015-16 was as follows :

:cl"_ Name of Director Designation Pcz:sciﬁn?r:iit? etehe Remarks

1 Shri Narayan Swaroop Nigam an';ﬂ{,’l‘gagifgfmr Chairman Ceased on 02.01.16
o | shriRajesh Pandey M:nt;ag::rr%agi?:gor Chairman Joined on 02.01.16
3 Shri Kalyan Kumar Ghosh Director (Finance) Member

4 Shri Tapan Kanti Rudra Director (HR) Member Ceased on 31.08.15
5 Shri Tapan Kumar Majumdar Independent Director Member C(;aﬁgzc%cén

6 Shri Dipak Kumar Banerjee Independent Director Member Ceased on 19.02.16
7 Shri Sujay Sarkar Director (HR) Member Joined on 31.08.15
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Meetings and Attendance :
During 2015-16 one meeting of the Committee was held on 01.02.2016.
Meetings attended by individual members during 2015-16 are detailed below :

Name of Director, Designation P%s(it,ir?:‘iitr:ete N(cji.u?ifnrgi?sﬁrt’gr?u?: Id ﬁ?:ggg
Chaitman and Managing birecior Chairman Nil Nil
gn;s:iisg l:/laanr?a?;hg Director Chairman 1 1
S ayen Kumar Ghos 1 1
gﬂg;ﬁ‘r’?ﬂgﬁ”ﬁ Rudra, Member Nil Nil
o Tape K Malucan 1 1
S ek K enere 1 1
S Sy e 1 1

HRD & Remuneration Committee
The composition of the HRD and Remuneration Committee during 2015-16 was as follows :

Sl. . . . Position in the
No. Name of Director Designation Gorimittee Remarks
1. | Shri Narayan Swaroop Nigam Chairman and Chairman | Ceased on 02.01.16
Managing Director
N Chairman and . .
2. Shri Rajesh Pandey Managing Director Chairman Joined on 02.01.16
3. Shri Dipak Kumar Banerjee Independent Director Member Ceased on 19.02.16
4. | Smt. Saswati Banerjee Government Nominee Director Member
and Woman Director
5. Shri Tapan Kumar Majumdar Independent Director Member Ceased on 01.06.16
6. Shri Debashish Majumdar Independent Director Member Ceased on 23.08.16
7. Shri Tapan Kanti Rudra Director (HR) Member Ceased on 31.08.15
8. | Shri Kalyan Kumar Ghosh Director (Finance) Member
9. Shri Sujay Sarkar Director (HR) Member Joined on 31.08.15
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Meetings and Attendance:

During 2015-16 three meetings of the HRD and Remuneration Committee were held on 30.04.15, 14.09.15
and 01.02.16.

Meetings attended by individual members during the year 2015-16 are detailed below :

Name of Director, Designation P%s()i';iT(])r:ii[?eterle N?j'u?ifnrg?m?sti?gr?urrlgld gﬂt?:r:iggj
e T o z 2
gﬂgiar?gisg lI:\)/Iaanndaeg};,ng Director Chairman 1 !

S ik Kumar e ; s
(SBr:\téfnarz\gr?tt iNBoar:ﬁ:tjaeeelli)irector and Woman Director Member 3 3
o g e kot s z
g;;icﬁ\:yan Kumar Ghosh, Member 3 3
S epan el Ruc, 1 1
e e |

Project Appraisal and Monitoring Committee

Every project requiring administrative approval is routed through Project Appraisal and Monitoring
Committee constituted by the Board. The Committee is empowered to accord administrative approval of
project cost up to ¥ 50 crores. Project cost exceeding ¥ 50 crores is routed through the Committee to the
Board for approval. Periodical monitoring of the approved projects are being made by the Committee and

necessary policies/ guidelines relating to project proposals are being framed by the Committee from time to time.
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The composition of Project Appraisal and Monitoring Committee during 2015-16 was as follows:

SI Name of Director Designation Position in the Remarks
No. Committee
1. Shri Narayan Swaroop Nigam | Chairman and Managing Director Chairman C;;gﬂg"
2. Shri Rajesh Pandey Chairman and Managing Director Chairman ‘ggngf 108
3. Shri Kalyan Kumar Ghosh Director (Finance) Member
4. Shri Debidas Datta Director (Generation) Member
5. Shri Tapan Kumar Majumdar | Independent Director Member C(;aggdgn
6. Shri Ranjit Kumar Majumder Director (Distribution) Member
7. Smt. Saswati Banerjee Government Nominee Director Member
and Woman Director
8. Shri Dipak Kumar Banerjee Independent Director Member Ceased on
19.02.16
9. Shri Gopal Krishna Saxena Independent Director Member
R . . Joined on
10. Shri Niranjan Saha Director (Projects) Member 01.05.15
1. A Di R Joined on
Shri Ajay Kumar Pandey irector (R&T) Member 20 .05.15

Meetings and Attendance:

During 2015-16 three meetings of the Project Appraisal and Monitoring Committee were held on 30.04.15,
28.07.15and 09.11.15.
Meetings attended by individual members during the year 2015-16 are detailed below:

] e Position in the No. of meetings held | Meetings
Name of Director, Designation Committee during his tenure attended

Shri Narayan Swaroop Nigam, .

Chairman and Managing Director Chairman 3 3

Shri Rajesh Pandey, ; . ;

Chairman & Managing Director Chairman Nil Nil

Shri Kalyan Kumar Ghosh,

Director (Finance) Member 3 3

Shri Debidas Datta,

Director (Generation) Member 3 3

Shri Tapan Kur.nar Majumdar, Member 3 2

Independent Director
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Name of Director, Designation P%ﬂtrir?r:iit?ete N%-u?;‘nrgi?;i?g:uf::ld r;:;?gg
ES)::':thz:rnzgi::jr?t:ztrixa)“umder’ Member 3 3
Zr:)]\t/:na:g:tt INB:mni?;e;\nd Woman Director Member 3 3
ﬁzzgéﬁzzrﬁuggc?;nerjee, Member 3 3
ﬁ:ﬂr(ie;%?:elnfré)si?:;osraxena, Member 3 2
Divecor (Project) Member 2 )
g:::cﬁﬁy(;;?f rrandey. Member 2 2

Contracts / Purchases and Procurement etc. Committee

Every purchase / procurement proposal is routed through this Committee. The Committee is empowered to
accord approval of proposal up to ¥ 50 crores. Contract / Purchase / Procurement proposals exceeding ¥ 50
crores are routed through the Committee to the Board for approval.

The composition of Contracts/Purchases and Procurement etc. Committee during 2015-16 was as follows:

Si

Position in the

Name of Director Designation . Remarks
No. Committee
1. Shri Narayan Swaroop Nigam | Chairman and Managing Director Chairman C(;a;gt:d;gn
2. Shri Rajesh Pandey Chairman and Managing Director Chairman J(;)zingf 106?
3. Shri Tapan Kumar Majumdar | Independent Director Member C(;arggd 1%”
4. Shri Kalyan Kumar Ghosh Director (Finance) Member
5. Shri Debidas Datta Director (Generation) Member
6. Shri Ranjit Kumar Majumder Director (Distribution) Member
7. Smt. Saswati Banerjee Government Nominee and
Woman Director Member
8. | Shri Dipak Kumar Banerjee Independent Director Member Cf;g‘;dfé"
9. Shri Debashish Majumdar Independent Director Member Ceased on
23.08.16
N . . Joined on
10. Shri Niranjan Saha Director (Projects) Member 01.05.15
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Meetings and Attendance:

During 2015-16 six Meetings of the Contracts / Purchases and Procurement etc. Committee were held on
30.04.15,02.06.15,28.07.15 14.09.15,01.02.16 and 30.03.16.

Meetings attended by individual members during 2015-16 are detailed below :

. . ) Position in the No. of meetings held | Meetings
Name of Director, Designation Committee during his tenure atandng

Shri Narayan Swaroop Nigam, .

Chairman and Managing Director Chairman 4 4

Shri Rajesh Pandey, .

Chairman and Managing Director Chairman 2 2

Shri Tapan Kur.nar Majumdar, Member 6 5

Independent Director

SI:"‘I Kalya.n Kumar Ghosh, Member 6 6

Director(Finance)

Shri Debidas Datta,

Director (Generation) Member 6 6

Shri Ranjit Kumar Majumder,

Director (Distribution) Member 6 5

Smt. Saswati Banerjee,

Government Nominee and Woman Director Member 6 6

Shri Dipak Kumar Banerjee,

Independent Director Member 5 5

Shri Debashish Majumdar,

Independent Director Member 6 6

Shri Niranjan Saha,

Director (Projects) Member 5 5

takeholders Relationship Committee

The Board Committee on Stakeholders Relationship was formed by the Board of Directors in its 62nd
meeting heldon 01.02.2016.

The composition of the Committee during 2015-16 was as follows :

I\?(I)-. Name of Director Designation P%s;:ittrir(])r: iitrtjete
1. Shri Tapan Kumar Majumdar Independent Director Chairman

2 Shri Rajesh Pandey Chairman and Managing Director Member

3. Shri Kalyan Kumar Ghosh Director (Finance) Member

4 Shri Sujay Sarkar Director (HR) Mermber
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Meetings and Attendance:

During the financial year ended 31* March, 2016 no meeting of the Committee was held as no grievances

were received from the debenture holders during the period 2015-16.

Meeting of the Independent Directors
As required under Section 149 (8) read with clause VII of schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 one
meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on 01.02.16 without the attendance of Non-

Independent Directors and Members of the Management.

The attendance of the Independent Directors as on the date of the meeting was as follows:

Name Position in the meeting Attendance
Shri Tapan Kumar Majumdar Chairman of the Meeting Attended in person
Shri Dipak Kumar Banerjee Member Attended in person
Shri Debashish Majumdar Member Attended in person
Shri Gopal Krishna Saxena Member v’?g;eo"gggfg:;‘é?:g

Disclosure on Website :

Following information has been disseminated on the website of the Company at www.wbsedcl.in :

AN S o

7.
8.
9.

Details of business of the Company

Composition of various Committees of Board of Directors

Code of Conduct and Ethics for Board Members and Senior Management

Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blowing Policy

Code of Practices and Procedure for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information

Policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions and dealing with Related Party reduce space
Transactions

Policy for Preservation of Documents

Archival Policy

Terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors

10. Payments/Entitlement & Payments to Independent Directors

11. Familiarization Programmes for Independent Directors
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Form No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2016

[ Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 ]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS :

1) CIN:- U40109WB2007SGC113473

ii)) Registration Date :

16/02/2007

ANNEXURE -1

ii1) Name of the Company : West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company Limited

iv) Category/Sub-Category of the Company : Public Company / Limited by Shares

v) Address of the Registered office and contact details : Block DJ, Sector - II, Salt Lake,

Kolkata- 700 091

vi) Whether listed company Yes/No : No.

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent,if any : None

1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY :

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

Sl. No.

Name and Description of
mainproducts / services

NIC Code of the
Product / service

% to total turnover
of the company

1

Distribution of Electricity

40109

100

[II. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES :

Rajarhat, Kolkata - 700156

Name and Address Holding / % of shares | Applicable
Sl. No. of the Company CIN/GLN SubS|d|z_anes/ held Section
Associate
New Town Electric Supply
T | co.Lu. .
09-024,M.A.R. New Town, U40109WB2003SGC096966 Associate 50 2(6)
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[V. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Break up as percentage of Total Equity) :
i) Category-wise ShareHolding

Category of % Change
Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year dur;:_}ga :he
: % of Total . % of Total
Demat Physical Total Shares Demat Physical Total Shares

A. Promoters
{1)Indian

a) Individual /HUF]
b) Central Govt
¢) State Govt(s) 2256689863 | 2256689863 99.99 2256689863 | 2256689863 99.99 NIL
d) Bodies Corp.
e) Banks/FI

(f) Any Other 50000 50000 0.01 50000 50000 0.01 NIL

Sub - total
(A) (1):- 2256739863| 2256739863 100 2256739863 2256739863 100 NIL

{(2) Foreign
a) NRIs dndividuals
b) Other - Individuals
c) Bodies Corporate,
d) Banks/ Fl
e) Any Other
Sub - total (A) (2):
Total

shareholding of

Promoter (A) = 2256739863| 2256739863 100 2256739863 2256739863 100 NIL
(A)(1) + (A)(2)

B. Public
Shareholding
1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks/FI|

¢) Central Govt
d ) State Govt

e) Venture
Capital Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g)Flis

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):
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% Change
No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year during the
year

Category of
Shareholders

2.Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian
ii) Overseas
b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto|
¥ 1 lakh

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of T 1
lakh

c) Others
(specify)
Sub-total (B)(2):
Total Public
Shareholding (B)
=B)(1)*+(B)2)
C. Shares held
by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

2256739863 | 2256739863 100 2256739863| 2256739863 100 NIL

(i1) Shareholding of Promoters

Sl. No. Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year
o .
No. of Shares % of total % of Shares |No. of Shares % of total % of Shares % c:::r%e n
Shares of the Pledged/ Shares of the | Pledged/ holding

company encumbered company encumbered during the

Jto total shares to total year
shares
1 Narayan Swaroop Nigam 40000 0.001772 NIL 40000 0.001772 NIL NIL
2 Gopal Krishna 100 0.000004 NIL 100 0.000004 NIL NIL
3 Manabendra Chakraborty 100 0.000004 NIL 100 0.000004 NIL NIL
4 Kalyan Kumar Ghosh 100 0.000004 NIL 100 0.000004 NIL NIL
5 Saswati Banerjee 100 0.000004 NIL 100 0.000004 NIL NIL
6 Ranijit Kumar Majumder 9500 0.000421 NIL 9500 0.000421 NIL NIL
7 Anindya Narayan Biswas 100 0.000004 NIL 100 0.000004 NIL NIL
8 Govemor of West Bengal 2256689863 99.997784 NIL 2256689863 99.997784 NIL NIL
Total 2256739863 100.00 2256739863 100.00
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(ii1) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change )

SI. No. Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year
No.of shares % of total shares of the No.of shares % of total shares of the
company company
1. At the beginning of the year 2256739863 100 2256739863 100
2. Datewise Increase/ Decrease in
Promoters Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons for NO CHANGE NO CHANGE NO CHANGE NO CHANGE
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/sweat equity etc) :
3. At the end of the year 2256739863 100 2256739863 100

(iv ) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors ,Promoters and Holders of GDRs
and ADRs):

Sl. No.

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders

No.of shares

% of total shares of the
company

No.of shares

% of total shares of the
company

At the beginning of the year

Shares are held by the Governor of West Bengal and His nominees

Datewise Increase / Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer /
bonus / sweat equity etc):

NO CHANGE

NO CHANGE

NO CHANGE

NO CHANGE

At the End of the year(or on the date
of separation,if separated during the year

NO CHANGE

NO CHANGE

NO CHANGE

NO CHANGE

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel :

Sl. No. Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the year

For Each of the Directors and No.of shares % of total shares of the No.of shares % of total shares of the
KMP company company

1. At the beginning of the year 49700 0.0022

2. Datewise Increase / Decreasein
Shareholding during the year NIL
specifying the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/ transfer/
bonus / sweat equity etc):

3. At the End of the year 49700 0.0022

[ 76 | ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015-2016




V. INDEBTEDNESS :

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding /accrued but not due for payment Amount { ¥ In lakhs)
e dL:: :ssit:xcludlng Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 813915 394706 0 1208621
i) Interest due but not paid 0 32049 0 32049
iii) Interest accrued but not due 11602 34884 0 46386
Total (i+ii+iii) 825417 461639 0 1287056
Change in Indebtedness
during the financial year
+ Addition 329946 3058 0 333004
- Reduction 144557 5723 0 150280
Net Change 185389 (2665) 0 182724
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
i) Principal Amount 999304 392041 0 1391345
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 49125 0 49125
iii) Interest accrued but not due 9620 40343 0 49963
Total (i+ii+iii) 1008924 481509 0 1490433
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL :
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager :
Name of MD / WTD/ Manager
Sl No. Particulars of Narayan | Rajesh Pandey | Tapan Kanti | Sujay Sarkar | Kalyan Kumar |  Ranjit Debidas Niranjan Ajay | Total Amount
T Remuneration Swaroop MD Rudra WTD Ghosh Kumar Datta Saha Kumar (7)
Nigam WTD WTD & CFO | Majumder WTD WTD Pandey
MD WTD WTD
1 Gross Salary
{a) Salary as per provisions 1,323,669 292,408 768,179 1,124,897 2,088,726 | 1,835,180 | 2,460,171 | 1,110,790 | 817,296 | 11,821,316
contained in section17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b )Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c )Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission
- as % of profit
-_others, specify...
5 Others ,please specify
Total (A) 1,323,669 292,408 768,179 1,124,897 2,088,726 | 1,835,180 | 2,460,171 | 1,110,790 | 817,296 11,821,316
Ceiling as per the Act Not Applicable
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B. Remuneration to other Directors:

Sl. No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD / WTD/ Manager

Total Amount
(%)

1

Independent Directors

Tapan Kumar
Majumdar

Dipak Kumar
Banerjee

Debashish
Majumdar

Gopal Krishna
Saxena

- Fee for attending board / committee meetings

280,000

290,000

260,000

100,000

930,000

- Commission

. Others, please specify

Total(1)

280,000

290,000

260,000

100,000

930,000

Other Non-Executive
Directors

- Fee for attending board / committee meetings

- Commission

- Others,please specify

Total(2)

Total (B) = (1+2)

280,000

290,000

260,000

100,000

930,000

Total Managerial Remuneration

280,000

290,000

260,000

100,000

930,000

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

Not Applicable

C. Remuneration to key managerial personnel other than md/ manager/ wtd

SI. No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO

Company
Secretary

CFO

Total
Amount (%)

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section17(1) of the

Income-tax Act, 1961

1,449,250

1,449,250

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act,

1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

- others, specify...

Others ,please specify

Total (C)

1,449,250

1,449,250
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Section of i
Type Comt::nies Brief Description Puni;?:{r;st:é{rfgiﬂiing AuthoriéycgE[F){{nNCLT/ Appgﬂ:::;,"i;)any
Act
A. COMPANY NIL
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS NIL
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT NIL
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
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Annexure 2
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities
(Pursuant to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013)

. Brief Outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy
The Board of Directors (Board) adopted the CSR Policy (Policy) on 24.04.2014 and was made effective
from 01.04.2014.The Company's CSR Policy is in alignment with the Schedule VII of the Companies
Act, 2013(Act).It also undertakes intervention in the areas of the upliftment of the Community as a
whole, where people of a particular area have been displaced or adversely affected due to setting up of
Power-generating project by the Company.

l. Composition of CSR Committee of the Board
CSR Committee of the Board comprises Shri Rajesh Pandey (Chairman), Shri K.K. Ghosh, Shri Sujay
Sarkar & Shri Avinash Kumar Sinha, Directors.
Company has also set up a CSR Sub-Committee to provide policy level input to the CSR Committee
and guide the company's approach towards CSR.

Ill. Financial Details

PARTICULARS ¥ in lakhs

Average net profit of the Company for the last 3 financial years 4020
Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the average net profit) 80.40
Details of CSR Expenditure during the financial year :

Total amount to be spent for the financial year 80.40
Amount Spent 143.46
Amount Unspent Nil
Reasons for amount Unspent NA

IV. Responsibility Statement:
I hereby affirm that the CSR Policy, as approved by the Board, has been implemented and the CSR

Committee monitors implementation of CSR Projects and activities in compliance with Company's
CSR objectives.

. Sd/-
Dated : 19.09.2016 (Rajesh Pandey)
Place: Kolkata Chairman and Managing Director
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K. Arun & Co.

Company Secretaries

ANNEXURE -3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31° Day of March, 2016
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,

West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company Limited

Bidyut Bhavan, Block - DJ, Sector - I,
Bidhannagar, Kolkata - 700091

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the
compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by West
Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company
Limited (hereinafter called ""the Company"). The
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our

opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, and
authorized representatives during the conduct of
Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our
opinion the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended 31st March, 2016
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complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2016 according to the provisions of:

I. The Companies Act, 2013(the Act)and the rules
made thereunder;

I. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
and the rules made thereunder;

III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations
and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

IV. The Securities and Exchange Board of India
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(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992 and Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

V. The following Regulations (as amended from
time to time) and Guidelines prescribed under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 :-

(a) SEBI (Issue of Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008

We have also examined the compliance by the
company of the following statutory provisions/
standards/ regulations:

(1) The Debt Listing Agreement and the Uniform
Listing Agreement entered into by the
Company with BSE Limited.

(i) The Secretarial Standards (SS - 1 and SS - 2)
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
ofIndia.

(iii) The Securities & Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Require-
ments) Regulations, 2015 (applicable w.e.f.
01.12.2015).

We further report that :

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent
Directors and a Woman Director. The changes in
the composition of the Board of Directors that took

place during the period under review were carried
out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate Notice is given to all Directors to schedule
the Board Meetings. Agenda and detailed Notes on
Agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and
a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation
atthe meeting.

We further report that there are adequate systems
and processes in the Company commensurate with
the size and operations of the Company to monitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines as also represented by the
management.

We further report that during the audit period the

following major events took :

1) The Company has implemented Enterprise
Resource Planning (ERP) at all its Units across
the State, thus making it possible to integrate
key operations like procurement, projects,
maintenance, HR functions, optimum
utilisation of material and most stringent
financial management resulting in improved

monitoring and management of key functions.

2) The Company has set up 15 nos. of 33/11 KV
Sub-Stations during 2015-16 at various districts
of West Bengal.
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3) The Company entered into Memorandum of
Understanding with Bastern Coalfields Limited
on 08.06.2015 for sale of power at 120 points
with contract demand of 113.805 MVA. As on
31st March, 2016, application was received
from ECL for 119 points, out of the total 120

Place : Kolkata
Date : 15.06.2016
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points. Quotations issued for all 119 points but
payment of Security Deposit Charge were
reccived against 76 points. Out of 76 cases,
connection was effected at 46 points as on
31.03.2016.

C.P. No. : 2270




TR FRTTETHR
(e & e & rEraie)
qiF=H ST
OFFICE OF THE
ACCOUNTANT GENERAL
(Economic and Revenue Sector Audit)
West Bengal

No : OA (ESA-II)/Acctts/WBSEDCL(FS)/2015-16/89
Date :- 30 AUG 2016

To

The Managing Director,

‘West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company Limited,
Vidyut Bhavan, Bidhannagar, Block-DJ, Sector-II,

Kolkata - 700 091.

Sub: Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under
Section 143(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Financial Statement of
West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company Limited for the
yearended 31 March 2016.

Sir,
I am to forward hercwith the Comments under Section 143(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the

Financial Statement of West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company Limited for the year ended
31 March 2016.

Yours faithfully,

o

Encl :As stated. St. Deputy Accountant General (ESA-II)
West Bengal

1. °l. 3. Ty, I, TE. wiid. diee od, Piold - 700 064.

3rd MSO Building, 5th Floor, CGO Complex, DF Block, Salt Lake, Kolkata - 700 064.
Phone : (033) 2337-4916; FAX : (033) 2337-6966, e-mail : aglbaWestbengal@cag.gov.in:
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION
143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF WEST
BENGAL STATE ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2016.

The preparation of financial statements of West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company Limited for
the year ended 31 March 2016 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditors
appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of the Act are responsible
for expressing opinion on the financial staternents under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in
accordance with standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have
been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 04.07.2016.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit
under section 143(6)(a) of the Act of the financial statements of West Bengal State Electricity Distribution
Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 2016. This supplementary audit has been carried out
independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to
inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective examination of some of the
accounting records. On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would
give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors' report.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

=LA

?:I_,_......u-....

Dated at Kolkata (J.P.N. Singh)
The 30 AUG 2016 Accountant General (E&RSA)
West Bengal
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TR FRTTETHR
(e & e & SrEaie)
qiF=H ST
OFFICE OF THE
ACCOUNTANT GENERAL
(Economic and Revenue Sector Audit)
West Bengal

No : OA (ESA-II)/Acctts/yWBSEDCL(FS)/2015-16/88%
Date :- 30 AUG 2016

To

The Managing Director,

West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company Limited,
Vidyut Bhavan, Bidhannagar, Block-DJ, Sector-II,

Kolkata - 700 091.

Sub: Comments of thec Comptroller and Auditor General of India under
Section 143(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Consolidated
Financial Statement of West Bengal State Electricity Distribution
Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 2016,

Sir,
I am to forward herewith the Comments under Section 143(6) of thc Companies Act, 2013 on the

Consolidated Financial Statement of West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company Limited for the
yearended 31 March 2016.

Yours faithfully,

o

Encl: As stated. Sr. Deputy Accountant General (ESA-IT)
West Bengal

1. o1, 3. Ty, I1. TE. wiid. diee oF, Piaddr - 700 064

3rd MSO Building, 5th Floor, CGO Complex, DF Block, Salt Lake, Kolkata - 700 064
Phone : (033) 2337-4916; FAX : (033) 2337-6966, e-mail : aglbaWestbengal@cag.gov.in:
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION
143(6)(b) READ WITH SECTION 129(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF WEST BENGAL STATE ELECTRICITY
DISTRIBUTION COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements of West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2016 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory
auditors appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) read with section
129(4) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 read
with section 129(4) of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report
dated 04.07.2016.

1, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit
under section 143(6)(a) read with section 129(4) of the Act of the consolidated financial statements of West
Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 2016. We conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statement of West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company
Limited and New Town Electric Supply Company Limited for the year ended on that date, This
supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory
auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective
examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would give rise to any
comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors' report.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

A

ot e

Dated at Kolkata (J.P.N. Singh)
The 30 AUG 2016 Accountant General (E&RSA)
West Bengal
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8/2, Kiran Sankar Roy Road, 2nd Floor
Room No. 1 & 18, Kolkata - 700 001

Ph. : 2248 5039 * Fax : 91-33-2243-4864

DE & BO]E E-mail : durgadas@cal3.vsnl.net.in
In association with ASH Assoclates UK 1, Garstin Place, Unit 1E, ORBIT

Kolkata - 700 001 ® Phone : 2248 7424

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

We have conducted the audit of West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company Limited
(WBSEDCL) for the year ended on 3 1st March, 2016 in accordance with the directions / sub-
directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India vide reference No: OA (ESA-
IT) SA/143(5)/2015-16/2013 DT: 02-03-2016 under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 and certify that we have complied with all the directions / sub-directions issued to us.

For De & Bose
Chatered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 302175E

IR agupin

(Tarit Dasgupta)
Partner
Membership No. 053380

Place ; Kolkata
Date ;: 04-07-2016
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DEFE & BOJE

In association with ASH Associates UK

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of West Bengal State Electricity
Distribution Company Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone
financial statements of West Bengal State Electricity
Distribution Company Limited ("the Company"),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for
the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act,2013 ("the Act") with respect to the
preparation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
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8/2, Kiran Sankar Roy Road, 2nd Floor
Room No. 1 & 18, Kolkata - 700 001

Ph. : 2248 5039 ¢ Fax : 91-33-2243-4864
E-mail : durgadas@cal3.vsnl.net.in

1, Garstin Place, Unit 1E, ORBIT
Kolkata - 700 001 ® Phone : 2248 7424

of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules,2014.This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

CITOL.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
standalone financial statements based on our audit.
While conducting the audit, we have taken into
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to
be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.



We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards of Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company's preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by the Company's Board of Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st
March, 2016, and its profit and its cash flows for the

year ended on that date.

Emphasis of matters

We draw attention to the following matters in the

notes to the standalone financial statements:

a) According to the information and explanation
given to us, the company owns both Leasehold
and Freehold Land. However, no separate
classification of cost of land between

Leasehold and Freehold has been worked out

due to reasons mentioned in Note No.-11.7. The

company has shown entire land under the head

"Land & Land Rights" as freehold. But as per

requirement of Schedule -III of the act, assets

under lease should be separately specified under

each class of assets.

b) During the year the Company has capitalised
Revenue Expenditure incurred on account of
Employee Benefits of ¥ 22516 lacs (Refer to
Note No.-24 & 24.7) to Capital Work in
Progress as per its accounting Policy and nature
of its business & operations and not on an actual

basis which is inconsistent with Accounting
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d)

Standard (AS-10) specified under Section 133
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

In Exercise of the power vested under Sub-
section (4) of Section 131 of the Electricity Act,
2003, the Government of West Bengal
unbundled the West Bengal State Electricity
Board (WBSEB) into two Companies namely
WBSEDCL & WBSETCL with effect from
01.04.2007. In accordance with the above
scheme, the opening assets and liabilities of
WBSEDCL as on 01.04.2007 have been taken
into account without verification and as to the
realisability or otherwise of the full value of
Assets as stated.

During the year the company has credited to
Statement of Profit and Loss a net amount of
T 205436 lacs as amount realisable through
Regulatory Mechanism as per Regulation of West
Bengal Electricity Regulatory Commission
(WBERC). However, relevant orders have not
been received from WBERC. In the event of any
variation in the orders of WBERC adjustment of
net profits, and regulatory assets, income tax
provision may be necessitated to the extent of
such variation. [Refer to Note No.21(C), 21.9 &
21.10]

The accumulated balance of Regulatory Assets
atthe end of the year is ¥ 1294720 lacs (Refer to
Note No.-20.2) which includes:
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! . Amount
No Nature of Claim (% in lakhs)
.| APR& FPPCAfromF.Y.2009-10to 1255505
F.Y.2015-16 (Projected)
. | Enhanced Employee Cost due to pay 33150
revisionin FY 2008-09
.| Loss incurred for taking over of Singur 6065
Haripal Electric Co-operative Society
Ltd. (SHRELCOP)
Total| 1294720

The above Table shows a huge accumulation of
regulatory assets as on 31.03.2016. It has been
informed that this has arisen primarily for the
time gap between the submission of petition for
FPPCA and APR by the company to WBERC and
its acceptance of the petition either fully or
partially.

In the year 2012-13, the WBERC disallowed an
amount of ¥ 26146 lacs in respect of FPPCA and
APR, however the company made an appeal
before the Appellate Tribunal (APTEL) without
making any adjustments in the books of accounts
for such disallowance.

In the event of any variation in the Order of
APTEL, adjustment of net profit, regulatory
assets and income tax provision may be
necessitated to the extent of such variation.

Balance confirmation certificate in certain cases
of Government loan, trade receivables, trade
payables, advances, deposits and UI (Unscheduled
Interchange) receivable & payable etc. as on
31.03.2016 have not been received. Pending such



g)

h)

confirmation and completion of reconciliation,
the consequential adjustment could not be made.
In view of the same, we are unable to comment
on the consequential impact, if any, on the status
of these balances and profit of the Company.

The trade receivables balance consists of
provision for unbilled revenue of T 186778 lacs
being the sales revenue for the consumption
month of March' 2016 (last Quarter) and also
accrued arrear of ¥ 26831 lacs, demand for
which will be raised in subsequent year / years
(RefertoNote No. 17).

In the absence of full and complete information
we are unable to express an opinion about the full
realisability of the aforesaid amounts. However
the Company has made provision, as per its
policy.

In case of Rural Electrification Corporation
(RECL) package loan, RECL in its balance
confirmation certificate has shown principal
amount due by more than ¥ 12603 lacs as
compared to loan balance in the books of the
Company. This arises due to difference, in
accounting treatment of principal and interest in
the books of accounts of RECL and the Company
(Referto Note No.3.3).

Confirmation of loan balance from Rural
Electrification Corporation Ltd. (¥ 10323 lacs)
and Govt.
Government (T 2032 lacs) were not produced
before us for verification. It is stated that both the

Order for loans from State

)

k)

aforesaid loans of West Bengal Rural Energy
Development Corporation Ltd. (WBREDCL)
were taken over by WBSEDCL at the time of
amalgamation of WBREDCL with WBSEDCL.
However provision for payment of interest on
both the loans have been made in accounts.
(Refer Note No. 3.9)

Long Term Loans and Advances include
unadjusted debit balance in inter-unit accounts
(T 15000 1acs). It is stated that this amount is
appearing in accounts since the inception of the
company. (Refer Note No.13 and 13.4).

Note number 32 in Other Disclosure relating to
Contingent Liability includes :

i) ¥ 6039 lacs for Electricity Duty including
interest payable to Govt. of West Bengal for
the Financial year 2003-04 to 2006-07
which was accumulated during the regime
of WBSEB prior to incorporation of
WBSEDCL and the said liability was not
considered in the restructured balance sheet
of WBSEDCL during the regime of WBSEB
through the transfer scheme of Govt. of West
Bengal.

ii. Demand for Electricity Duty of I 6954 lacs
& Interest of I 7986 lacs for the assessment
years 2008-09 to 2011-12 is disputed by the
company. And necessary appeals have been
filed against such order.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these
matters.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

1)

2)

3)

As required under section 143(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (report on directions and
sub directions) issued by Comptroller & Auditor
General of India ("CAG"), we give in the
Annexure-I a statement on the matters specified

in the said directions and sub directions.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order,2016 ("the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section
143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013,we give in
the Annexure-Il a statement on the matters

specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we
report that:

(a) We have sought and, except for the matters
described in sub para (a) of Emphasis of
matters paragraph, obtained all the
information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our

examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement

with the books of account.
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(d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet,
Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash flow
Statement comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 except mentioned

in sub-para (b) of Emphasis of matters
paragraph.

(e) The provisions of section164(2)of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to a
Government Company as per Notification
No.GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June, 2015
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our

separate Report in Annexure-III.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be
included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to

us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact
of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements -
Refer Note No.32 to the financial

statements;



ii. The Company has Long Term Contracts iii. The company did not declare and paid

for power purchase and sale. It has been any dividend to its members since its
explained to us that material loss can not incorporation. Therefore no amount was
be foreseen on such contracts. The required to be transferred to the Investor
company does not have any derivative Education and Protection Fund.
contract.

For De & Bose
Place : Kolkata Chatered Accountants
Date : 04-07-2016 Firm's Registration No. 302175E
(Tarit Dasgupta)
Partner

Membership No. 053380
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ANNEXURE-I TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in Paragraph-1 under "Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirements” section of our report of even date)

Matters to be reported under general directions of
CAG of India vide reference No: OA (ESA-
I)SA/143(5)/2015-16/2103 DT:02-03-2016 under
Section 143(5) of -the Companies Act, 2013:

)

)

Valuation of Assets & Liabilities

If the company has been selected for
disinvestment, a complete status report in terms
of valuation of asset (including intangible assets
and land) and liabilities (including committed
and general reserves) may be examined,
including the mode and present stage of
disinvestment process.

According to the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not been selected
for disinvestment during the year under audit.
Hence, valuation of assets & liabilities for
disinvestment does not arise.

Waiver/Write-off of debts /loan /interest
Whether there are any cases of Waiver/ Write-off
of debts / loans / interests etc, If yes, the reasons

therefor and the amount involved.

Pending Legal Cases :

There was no case of Waiver, Write-off of debts,
Loans, Interest etc. during the year.

Ill) Inventories

Whether proper records are maintained for
inventories lying with third parties and assets
received as gift / grant (s) from government or

other authorities?

The company maintains proper records for
inventories lying with third parties and it has not
received any assets as gift from Government or
other authorities.

IV) Legal/arbitration cases

A report on age-wise analysis of pending legal /
arbitration cases, including the reason of
pendency and existence / effectiveness of a
monitoring mechanism for expenditure on all
legal cases (foreign & local) may be given.
Report on age-wise analysis of pending major
legal/arbitration cases etc. as provided by the
Legal Department, Head Office, is as below:

Pending for No. of Cases ¥ (in lacs)
Otoless than 2 years 1099 527
2 yearto less than 5 years 1031 773
5 yeartoless than 10 years 1211 747
10 yearto less than 20 years 464 1174
20 years and above 14 25
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Pending Arbitration Cases :

Pending for

No. of Cases T (in lacs)

Otolessthan 2years

1 221

It is explained to us that delay in court proceedings &
legal systems are mainly the causes of large number
of pending cases for years together.

The company has an effective monitoring
mechanism for expenditure on all legal cases and it
appears to be in existence. The company has incurred
an expenditure of T 628 lacs during the year as legal
expenses. It has not incurred any expenditure on
foreign legal cases.

V. Title/Lease deeds

Whether the company has clear title / lease deeds for
freehold and leasehold land respectively? If not,
please state the area of freehold and leasehold land
forwhichtitle/lease deeds are not available?

Title deeds are available in respect of freehold land
but lease deeds in respect of 458.27 acres of land are

not available.
o 2 e e kok

Matters to be reported under Sector Specific Sub-
directions of CAG of India vide reference No: OA
(ESA-II)SA/143(5)/2015-16/521 DT:02-03-2016
under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 :
West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company
Limited ("the Company") was incorporated under
the Companies Act, 1956. It commenced its
operation from 1st April, 2007.The entire Paid up
Share Capital of the company is held by the

[ 96 |

Government of West Bengal and its nominees. The
Company is engaged in the business of distribution
of electricity and an insignificant generation of
Hydro Electricity power.

1. Adequacy of steps to prevent encroachment of
idle land owned by company may be examined.
In case land of the company is encroached,
under litigation, not put to use or declared
surplus, details may be provided.

The Company does not have any information
about its encroached land, unused land, litigated
land, surplus land. Therefore, details of such
land could not be given.

2. Where land acquisition is, involved in setting up
new projects, report whether settlements of dues
done expeditiously and in a transparent manner

in all cases. The cases of deviation may please
bedetailed.

The company has followed necessary rules for
settlement of dues of the land owners in
question in due time for acquisition of land in
transparent manner. There is no record of any
deviation in this regard.

3. Whether the company has an effective system
Jfor recovery of revenue as per contractual terms
and the revenue is properly accounted for in the
books of accounts in compliance with the
applicable Accounting Standards ?
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The Company has an effective system for
recovery of revenue as per contractual terms and
its proper accounting is done as per applicable
Accounting Standards.

How much cost has been incurred on abandoned
projects and out of these how much cost has been
written off?

The company has no abandoned projects.

Compliance with respect to guidelines and
instructions circulated by the Department of
Public Enterprises regarding Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Activities have been
followed while incurring expenditure on account
of CSR.

In our opinion, the guidelines and Instruction
circulated by the department of Public
Enterprises vide circular No. F. No.15(13)/2013-
DPE(GM) dt:21-10-2014 in respect of Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to
itsince it is a State Government Enterprise.

However, it has its own CSR policy which is
adopted from Schedule-VII of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Companies (CSR Policy)
Rules,2014 and its amendments and all
expenditures are incurred as per aforesaid policy.

In the case of hydroelectric projects the water
discharge is as per policy / guidelines issued by
the state government to maintain biodiversity.
For not maintaining it, penalty paid / payable
may be reported.

The company has no record of penalty

paid/payable as per policy/guidelines issued by
the State Government/MOEF (Govt. of India)
for not maintaining biodiversity arising out of
water discharge from any of its Hydroelectric
power projects located in the State.

Has the company entered into agreements with
franchise for distribution of electricity in
selected areas and revenue sharing agreements
adequately protect the financial interest of the
company?

The company does not have any agreement with
franchise for distribution of electricity.
However, it has a franchise agreement with New
Town Electric Supply Company Limited
("NTESCL" a Joint Venture Company of
WBSEDCL) for operation and maintenance of
Low Tension Lines (LTL), Distribution
Transformer (DTR), Collection of revenue from
consumers etc. The above mentioned agreement
appears to be not prejudicial to the interest of the
company.

Report on the efficacy of the system of billing and
collection of revenue in the company.

The Company has an efficient system of issuing
bills to its consumers. It has also an efficient
system for collection of bills from consumers
through cash collection centers, collection
kiosks, e-payment, ECS, RTGS etc. However
the following amounts were due for collection as
on 31-03-2016 from the consumers as informed
by the company:-
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Financial Amount Due Financial Amount Due
Year ¥ (in lacs) Year T (in lacs)
2014-15 54221 2013-14 34013
2012-13 19017 201112 10514

9.

10.

11.

Whether tamper proof meter have been installed
Jor all consumers? If not then, examine how
accuracy of billing is ensured.

The Company has installed Static Energy Meters
(SEM) which are capable for detecting tamper
for Bulk Consumers and three phase low &
medium voltage Consumers. The company has
also installed in most Cases SEM for low &
medium voltage Consumers. Round the year
supervisory meter reading is carried out to keep
vigil over the metering installation to minimize
theft of energy by tampering of meters.

Whether the company recovers and accounts, the
State Electricity Regulatory Commission
(SERC) approved Fuel and Power Purchase
Adjustment Cost (FPPCA)?

The company recovers Fuel and Power Purchase
Adjustment Cost (FPPCA) through subsequent
tariff as approved by WBERC. Necessary
accounting is also done by the company.

Whether the reconciliation of receivables and
payables between the generation, distribution
and transmission companies has been

Place : Kolkata
Date ; 04-07-2016

|98

12.

completed, The reasons for difference may be
examined.

It is seen, that in most cases reconciliations of
receivables and payables between the
generation, distribution and transmission

companies are done.

Whether the Company is supplying power to

franchisees, if so, whether the Company is not

supplying power to franchisees at below its
average cost of purchase,

The company has not supplied power to any
franchisee (Distribution Franchisee) during the
year.

. How much tariff roll back subsidies have been

allowed and booked in the accounts during the
vear? Whether the same is being reimbursed
regularly by the State Government, shortfall if
any, may be commented.

There was no tariff rollback subsidies allowed and
booked in the accounts during the financial year.
Therefore, the question of reimbursement by the

State Government does not arise.

For De & Bose
Chatered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 302175E

E&a%&ﬂlt\
(Tant Dasgupta)
Partner

Membership No, 053380
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ANNEXURE - II TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in Paragraph-2 under "Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirements” section of our report of even date)

Inrespect of Fixed Assets:

a. The company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of its fixed
assets excepting in respect of 458.27 acre of
leasehold land for which the company could
not produce any lease deed to us.

b. As per information and explanation given to
us, physical verification of fixed assets of
the company except those in the distribution
and transmission system, is done
departmentally on yearly basis and by an
External Agency in every third year.
However no physical verification report of
fixed assets by external agency for the year
was shown to us. No material discrepancies
were observed from the physical
verification done by various departments of
the company.

c. According to the information and
explanations given to us, the title deeds of
immovable properties (includes land,
benefits to arise out of land, and things
attached to the earth, or permanently
fastened to anything attached to the earth)
are held in the name of the company except
as mentioned in para 1(a) above.
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2.

3.

4,

5.

6.

In respect of Inventories:

As explained to us, the inventories were
physically verified during the year by the
Management at reasonable intervals. No
material discrepancies were observed from the
physical verification reports submitted to us.

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company has
not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, LLPs or other parties covered
in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanation given to us, the company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of
the Act, with respect to investment and
guarantee. Provisions of section 185 & other
provisions of section 186 are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits
under the directives issued by the Reserve Bank
of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76
or any other relevant provisions of the

Companies Act and the rules framed there under.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records
maintained by the Company pursuant to the




provisions of sub-Section (1) of Section 148 of

the Act, and are of the opinion that prima facie

the prescribed cost records have been

maintained. We have, however, not made a

detailed examination of the cost records with a

view to determine whether they are accurate or

applicable and any other statutory dues have
generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities. According to the
information and explanations given to us
there were no outstanding statutory dues as

on 31st of March, 2016 for a period of more

complete. than six months from the date they became
payable.
7. Inrespectof Statutory Dues: . According to the information and
a. According to the records of the company, explanations given to us and as per our
undisputed statutory dues including verification of the records of the Company,
Provident Fund, Income Tax, Sales Tax, there are no disputed statutory dues, other
Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, than those mentioned below, as on 31st
Value Added Tax, Cess to the extent March, 2016
Sl Name of the Name of Amount Period to which Forum where dispute
No Statute Dues (in Lacs) | the amount relates is pending
1 West Bengal Demand relating to 1,897/- Various years W.B Commercial taxes
Sales Tax Act, Sales Tax on from 1993-2004 appellate & Revisional
1994 (a) Meter Rental Board, Kolkata
(b) Meter Boxes
Charges & allied matter.
2 West Bengal Demand relating to 792/- Various years Hon'ble W.B
Sales Tax Act, Sales Tax on from 1987-2000 Taxation Tribunal
1994 (a) Meter Rental Kolkata
(b) Meter Boxes Charges
& allied matters.
3 West Bengal Demand relating to 1,264/- Various years Ld. ACCT
Sales Tax Act, Sales Tax on from 1991-1995
1994 (a) Meter Rental
(b) Meter Boxes Charges
& allied matters.
4 West Bengal Demand relating to 276/- 1995-1996 Ld. DCCT, PG
Sales Tax Act, Sales Tax on Circles
1994 (a) Meter Rental
(b) Meter Boxes
Charges & allied
matters.
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Si Name of the Name of Amount Period to which Forum where dispute
No Statute Dues (in Lacs) | the amount relates is pending
5 West Bengal Demand relating to 1,961/- Various years W.B Commercial
Sales Tax Act, Sales Tax on from 2004-05 to taxes appellate &
1994 (a) Meter Rental 2007-08 Revisional Board,
(b) Meter Boxes Kolkata
Charges & allied
matters.
6 West Bengal Printing Stationery & 12/- 2008-09 W.B Commercial
Sales Tax Act, Others taxes appellate &
1994 Revisional Board,
Kolkata.
7 Service Tax Rental Income 74 plus 2007-2008 Hon'ble Customs,
Interest to 2010-2011 Excise & Service
Tax Appellate Tribunal
8 Municipal Tax 12/- Different Municipalities
Total 6,288/-

8. According to the information and explanations
given to us and the records examined by us the
company has not defaulted in repayment of loans
to Financial Institutions, Banks, Government or
dues to Debenture holders.

The company did not raise any money by way of
initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instrument). However, the
company has raised term loans during the year
and those have been utilised for the purpose they

were raised.

10. During the course of our examination of the
books of account carried out in accordance with
the generally accepted auditing practices in India,
we have neither come across any incidence of

fraud by the Company or on the Company by its
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officers or employees, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the management
except few cases of misappropriation of company's
fund to the extent of T 8.80 lacs.

11.In our opinion and according to the information

and explanations given to us, managerial
remuneration including the sitting fees to the
directors has been paid or provided by the
Company in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section
197 read with Schedule V to the Companies
Act,2013.

12. Inouropinion and according to the information

and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.



13.

According to the information and explanations
given to us, the transactions with related parties
are in compliance with Section 177 & 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and are made on arm's
length basis that has no potential conflicts with
the interest of the company.

14. During the year the Company has not made any

preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
and therefore paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

Place : Kolkata
Date : 04-07-2016

15.

16.

According to the information and explanations
given to us, during the year, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors / persons connected with the directors
and therefore provisions of section 192 of the
Actare not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

For De & Bose
Chatered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 302175E

e

(Tarit Dasgupta)
Partner
Membership No. 053380
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"ANNEXURE-III" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in Paragraph-2(f) under "Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements”
section of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of West Bengal State Electricity
Distribution Company Limited ("the Company") as
at March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting
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records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively
inall material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of



internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial

controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions

are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of

the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material

respects, an adequate internal financial controls
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system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March, 2016, based
on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the

Place : Kolkata
Date : 04-07-2016
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essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For De & Bose
Chatered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 302175E

Frageph

(Tarit Dasgupta)
Partner
Membership No. 053380




DFE & BOJE

In association with ASH Associates UK

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To the Members of West Bengal State Electricity

Distribution Company Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial
Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
financial statements of West Bengal State Electricity
Distribution Company Limited (hereinafter referred
to as "the Company") and its joint venture (the
Company and its joint venture together referred to as
"the group"), comprising of the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated financial

statements").

Management's Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for
the preparation of these consolidated financial

statements in terms of the requirements of the

8/2, Kiran Sankar Roy Road, 2nd Floor
Room No. 1 & 18, Kolkata - 700 001

Ph. : 2248 5039 e Fax : 91-33-2243-4864
E-mail : durgadas@cal3.vsnl.net.in

1, Garstin Place, Unit 1E, ORBIT
Kolkata - 700 001 e Phone : 2248 7424

Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as "the
Act") that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial
performance and consolidated cash flows of the
Group in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014.The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; the selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015-2016



error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
by the Directors of the Company as aforesaid.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
While conducting the audit, we have taken into
account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to
be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards of Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
The

procedures selected depend on the auditor's

the consolidated financial statements.

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
financial control relevant to the Company's
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
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An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
the Company's Board of Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and
the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the consolidated financial

statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group
as at March3l, 2016, and its consolidated profit and its
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Emphasis of matters

We draw attention to the following matters in the

notes to the financial statements.

For the Company :

a) According to the information and explanation
given to us, the company owns both Leasehold
and Freehold Land. However, no separate




classification of cost of Land between
Leasehold and Freehold has been worked out
due to reasons mentioned in Note No.-11.4. The
company has shown entire land under the head
"Land & Land Rights" as freehold. But as per
requirement of Schedule -III of the act, assets
under lease should be separately specified under

each class of assets.

Board (WBSEB) into two Companies namely
WBSEDCL & WBSETCL with effect from
01.04.2007. In accordance with the above
scheme, the opening assets and liabilities of
WBSEDCL as on 01.04.2007 have been taken
into account without verification and as to the
realisability or otherwise of the full value of
Assets as stated.

b) During the year the Company has capitalised d) During the year the company has credited to
Revenue Expenditure incurred on account of Statement of Profit and Loss a net amount of
Employee Benefits of ¥ 22516 lacs (Refer to Z205436 lacs as amount realisable through
Note No.-24 & 24.8) to Capital Work in Progress Regulatory Mechanism as per Regulation of
as per its accounting Policy and nature of its West Bengal Electricity Regulatory
business & operations and not on an actual basis Commission (WBERC). However, relevant
which is inconsistent with Accounting Standard orders have not been received from WBERC. In
(AS-10) specified under Section 133 of the Act, the event of any variation in the orders of
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) WBERC adjustment of net profits, and
Rules, 2014. regulatory assets, income tax provision may be

c) In Exercise of the power vested under Sub- necessitated to the extent of such variation.
section (4) of Section 131 of the Electricity Act, [Refer to Note No.21(C),21.9 &21. 10]

2003, the Government of West Bengal e) The accumulated balance of Regulatory Assets
unbundled the West Bengal State Electricity atthe end ofthe yearis 1294720 lacs (Refer to
Sl. Nature of Claim (émolggg)
1. APR &FPPCAfromF.Y.2009-10to F.Y. 2015-16 (Projected) 1255505
2. Enhanced Employee Cost due to pay revision in FY 2008-09 33150
3. Loss incurred for taking over of Singur Haripal Electric 6065
Co-operative Society Ltd. (SHRELCOP)
Total 1294720
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The above Table shows a huge accumulation of
regulatory assets as on 31-03-2016. It has been
informed that this has arisen primarily for the time
gap between the submission of petition for FPPCA
and APR by the company to WBERC and its
acceptance of the petition either fully or partially.

In the year 2012-13, the WBERC disallowed an
amount of 26146 lacs in respect of FPCCA and
APR, however the company made an appeal before
the Appellate Tribunal (APTEL) without making any
adjustments in the books of accounts for such

disallowance.

In the event of any variation in the Order of APTEL,
adjustment of net profit, regulatory assets and
income tax provision may be necessitated to the

extent of such variation.

f) Balance confirmation certificate in certain cases
of Government loan, trade receivables, trade
payables, advances, deposits and UI (Unscheduled
Interchange) receivable & payable etc. as on
31.03.2016 have not been received. Pending such
confirmation and completion of reconciliation,
the consequential adjustment could not be made.
In view of the same, we are unable to comment on
the consequential impact, if any, on the status of
these balances and profit of the Company.

g) The trade receivables balance consists of
provision for unbilled revenue of I 186778 lacs
being the sales revenue for the consumption
month of March'2016 (last Quarter) and also

accrued arrear of 26831 lacs, demand for
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which will be raised in subsequent year / years
(RefertoNote No. 17).

In the absence of full and complete information
we are unable to express an opinion about the full
realisability of the aforesaid amounts. However
the Company has made provision, as per its
policy.

h)

In case of Rural Electrification Corporation
(RECL) package loan, RECL in its balance
confirmation certificate has shown principal
amount due by more than ¥12603 lacs as
compared to loan balance in the books of the
Company. This arises due to difference in
accounting treatment of principal and interest in
the books of accounts of RECL and the Company
(Referto Note No. 3.4).

i) Long Term Loans and Advances include
unadjusted debit balance in inter-unit accounts
(15000 lacs). It is stated that this amount is
appearing in accounts since the inception of the
company. (Refer Note 13.4).

j) Note number 32.1.3 in Other Disclosure relating
to Contingent Liability includes:

1) ¥6039 lacs for Electricity Duty including
interest payable to Govt. of West Bengal for the
Financial year 2003-04 to 2006-07 which was
accumulated during the regime of WBSEB
prior to incorporation of WBSEDCL and the
said liability was not considered in the
restructured balance sheet of WBSEDCL



during the regime of WBSEB through the
transfer scheme of Govt. of West Bengal.

ii. Demand for Electricity Duty of ¥6954 lacs &
Interest of ¥ 7986 lacs for the assessment years
2008-09 to 2011-12 is disputed by the
company. And necessary appeals have been
filed against such order.

Forthe Joint Venture :

k) The consolidated Financial Statement has been
prepared without recalculating the depreciation
amount for Tangible assets of the Joint venture as
per the depreciation method followed by the
parent company as provided in AS-27.

Refer Note No. 11.5

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these
matters.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of the
Joint Venture, whose financial statements reflect
total assets(net) of Rs. 2,435 lacs as at 31 March,
2016, total revenues of Rs. 378 lacs and net cash
flows amounting to Rs. (734 lacs) for the year ended
on that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. These financial statements
have been audited by other auditor whose report has
been furnished to us by the Management and in our
opinion the consolidated financial statements, in so
far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of the Joint Venture, and our

report in terms of sub-section (3) and (11) of Section
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
joint Venture, is based solely on the report of the other
auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, and our report on other Legal and
regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in
respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the report of the other

auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements

1) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we
reportthat :

a. We have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit of the consolidated financial

statements;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have
been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the report of the
other auditor;

c¢. The Consolidated Balance sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of
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preparation of the consolidated financial g,

statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 except
mentioned in sub-paras (b) & (k) of Emphasis of
matters paragraph;

The provisions of sectionl164(2)of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to a
Government Company as per Notification
No.GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June, 2015 issued by
the Ministry of Corporate A ffairs;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in
"AnnexureA";

Place : Kelkata
Date : 04-07-2016

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations
given tous:

i) The consolidated financial statements
disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the
Group. Refer Note 32.1.3 to the consolidated
financial statements;

ii) The Group did not have any material
foreseeable losses on long term contracts
including derivative contracts;

iii) There were no amounts which were required
to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company and its
Joint venture Company.

For and on behalf of
DE & BOSE
Chatered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 302175E

Epagepin

(Tarit Dasgupta)
Partner
Membership No. 053380

ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015-2016 (111!



WBSEDIL

"ANNEXURE-A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in Paragraph-2(f) under "Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements"
section of our report on consolidated financial statement of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act,2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of West Bengal State Electricity
Distribution Company Limited ("the Company")
and its jointly controlled Company (Joint Venture)
which is incorporated in India, as at March 31, 2016
in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors of the Company
and Jointly Controlled Company are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and

efficient conduct of its business, including

adherence to respective company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information,

asrequired under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(the "Guidance Note") issued by the ICAI and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed
to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively

in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
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audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of its reports referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system over

financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that
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1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of

the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company
arc being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of
the company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate.



Opinion

In our opinion the Company and jointly controlled
company which is incorporated in India have, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2016,
based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Place : Kolkata
Date : 04-07-2016

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the
Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls over financial
reporting insofar as it relates to jointly controlled
company, which is company incorporated in India, is
based on the corresponding report of the auditors of

such company incorporated in India.

For De & Bose
Chatered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 302175E

(Tarit Dasgupta)
Partner
Membership No. 053380

ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015-2016



A

WRIEGIL

AUDITOR'S OBSERVATION AND MANAGEMENT REPLY

Audit Observations

Reply

Emphasis of Matter

(a)

According to the information and explanation
given to us, the company owns both Leasehold
and Freehold Land. However, no separate
classfication of cost of Land between Leasehold
and Frechold has been worked out due to reasons
mentioned 1n Note No.-11.7. The company has
shown entire land under the head "Land & Land
Rights" as freehold. But as per requirement of
Schedule -- 11 of the act, assets under Icasc should

be separatcly specified undereach class ol asscts.

In most of the cases land was inherited trom
erstwhile WI3SEIB. At that time land was acquired
mainly through Govt. Acquisition against which
scgregation of lcaschold and frechold land was
not available. Adequate steps have been (aken Lo
segregate freehold land and leaschold land from
the base record. The process of segregation of
land between frechold and leascheld land is in

Progress.

(b)

During the ycar the Company has capitalised
Renenue Expenditure mcwred on account of
Employee Benelits ol Rs. 22,516 lacs (Refer o
Noie No.-24 & 24.7) to Capital Work 1n Progress
as per Its accounting Policy and nature of its
busincss & Opcerations and not on an actual basis
which 1s inconsistent with Accounting Standard
(AS-10) specified under Section 133 ol the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014,

Capitalization of cmployce cost has been done as
per the Accounting Policy ol the Company.

(c)

In Exercise ol the power vested under Sub-
section (4) of Section 131 of the Electricity Act,
2003, the Government of West Bengal unbundled
the West Bengal State Electicity Board (WBSEB)
into two Companics namely WBSEDCL &
WBSETCL with effeet from 01.04.2007.
accordance with the above scheme, the opening
assets and labilities of WBSEDCL
01.04.2007 have been taken into account without
verification and as to the realisability or

In

as  On

atherwise ol the [ull value ol Assels as staled.

The Assets and Liabilities of WBSEDCL, the
restructured Company formed by unbundling
WBSEB. wcre considered as on 01.04.2007 in
accordance with the [inal transfer scheme vide
notification no: 12-PO/AYIN3R-29/2006 dated :
25.01.2007 and notificalion no
PO/O/L/3R-29/20006 19.09.2008
revested by the Govt. of West BBengal to the
Company

A
313-

dated as
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During the year the company has credited to
Statement of Profit or Loss a nel amount ol
< 2,05,436 lacs as amount realisable through
Regulatory Mechanism as per regulation of West
Bengal Electricity Regulatory Commission
(WBLRC). Howcever, relevant orders have not
been received from WBERC. [n the event of any
variation in the orders ol WBERC adjustment of
net profits and regulatory assets, ncome tax
provision may be necessitated to the extent of
such variation. [Refer to Note No. 21(C), 21.09 &
21.10]

Incomec Recccivable through Regulatory
Mechanism m respect ol additional cost incurred
for purchase of power, transmission charges and
fixed cost during the period over and above cost
atlowed in prevailing tariff order is recognized
based on the applicable available regulation of
Regulatory Authority. It is cxpected that the
[uture economic benelils associaled with this will
flow to the Company as a result of expected
orders of the Regulator under the applicable

regulatory framework.

(e)

The accumulated balance of Regulatory Asscts at
the end of the year 1s ¥ 1294719 lacs (Reler to
Note No. - 202y which mcludes

Na. Nature ol claim (/;?;10[:281)

1 | APR & FPPCAfrom F.Y.2009-| 12553504
10to Y. 2015-16 (Projected)

2 | Enhanced Lmployee Cost due 33150
to pay revisionin I'Y 2008-09

3 | Loss incurred for taking over 6065
of Singur llaripal Electric
Co-operative Society Ltd.
(SHRLELCOP)

Total 1294718

The above Table shows a huge accumulation ol
regulatory assets as on 31-03-2016. It has been
informed that this has arisen primartly for the
time gap between the subinission of petition for
I'PPCA and APR by the company to WBLRC and
its acceptance of the petition either fully or
partially.

[ the vear 2012-13, the WBERC disallowed an
amountof T 26,146 lacs in respect of FPCCA and

Accumulation of Regulatory Assets arises mainly
due to time gap of expenditure actually meurred
over and above the expenditure allowed in the
TanfT order for the year and passing of the
expenditure by the Regulator through the tariiTol
(he ensuing years.

Fuel & Power Purchase Cost Adjustment
(FPPCA) and Annual Performance Review
{APR) lor the [inancial year 2012-13 has been
issued by WBERC on 12.06.2014 by which
mcome Realizable through Regulatory
Mechanism of 26146 Jakhs which was
considered in the accounts prior to 2013-14 has
not been allowed by WBERC. Against
disallowance of claim, necessary petiton has
been filed before the Appellate Tribunal
{APTEL). [lcaring of the Appeal has been started.
Decisionofthe APTEL s pending.
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APR, however the company made an appeal
before the Appcellate Tribunal (APTLEL) without
making any adjustments in the books of accounts
[or such disallowance.

In the event of any variation in the Order of
APTEL, adjustment of net profit, regulatory
assets and Income tax - provision may be
neccssitated to the extent of such variaton.

("

Balance confirmation cevtificate in certain cases
of Govermment loan, trade reccivables, trade
and UI
(Unscheduled Interchange) receivable & payable

payables, advanccs, deposits
ete. as on 31.03.2016 have not been received.
Pending such confirmation and completion of
reconciliation, the conscquential  adjustment
could not be made. In view of the same, we are
unablc to comment on the conscquential impact,
ilany. onthe stalus ol these balances and profit ol

the Company.

Ncceessary provisions have been made as per
Accounting Policy ol the Company.

trade receivables balance consists of provision
forunbilled revenue of 186,778 Lacs being the
sales rcvenue for the consumption month ol
March, 2016 (last Quarter) and also accrued
atreavof F 26,831 lacs, demand for which will be
raised in subsequent year / vears (Refer to Note
No. 17)

In the absence of full and complete information
we are unable to express an opinion about the full
rcalisability of the aforcsaid amounts. However
the Company has made provision, as pcr ils

policy.

Provision on doubt full debtors has been done as
per the Accounting Policy ol'the Company.
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(h)

In case of Rural Llectrification Corporation
(RECL) package loan, RECL in its balance
comlimation certilicate has shown principal
amount due by more than ¥ 12,603 lacs as
compared to loan balance in the books of the
Company. This arises due to difference in
accounting treatment of principal and interest in
the books of accounts of RECL and the Company
(RelertoNote No. 3.3).

Genceral audit observation. Nothing to comment.

(1)

Confirmation of loan balance from Rural
Electrification Corporation Ltd. (T 10.323 lacs)
and Govt. Order for loans from State Government
(¥ 2,032 lacs) were not produced before us for
verilication. Tt 1 slaled thal both the alovesaid
loans of West Beneal Rural Energy Development
Corporation Ltd. (WBREDCIL.) were taken over
by WBSEDCL at the time of amalgamation of
WIBRLEDCL with WBSLEDCL, However provision
tor payment of intcrest on both the loans have been
made inaccounts (Reler Note No 3.9)

Both the loans were inherited by the Company at
the time of Amalgamation of West Bengal Rural
Energy Development Corporation Limited
(WBRLDCL)as perthe order of the Government
of West Bengal and  approval of the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, GOI. The loans were as per
balance of Audited Accounts of WBREDCL and
State Government has been approached for
details ofthe Loans.

0

Other Deposit (T 15,000 lacs) represents
unadjusted debit balance 1n Inter-Unit accounts.
It is stated that this amount is appearing in
accounts since the inception of the Company.
(Ref. noteno: 13.4)

Debit balance of Inter Unit account of £ 15000
lakhs was inherited by WBSEDCL [rom
erstwhile WBSER vide notification number
313-PO/O/3R-29;2006 Dated : 19.09.2008 of the
Govt. of West Bengal. Details of the balance is not
communicated (o this end by the Govl. of Wesl
Bengal, m absence ol which (he amounl remains
unadjusted.

(118
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Note nutmber 32 in Other Disclosure relating to
Contingent Liabilily includes :

(1} T 6039 Lacs for Llectricity Duty including
interest payable lo Govl ol West Bengal for the
Fimancial year 2003-04 to 2006-07 which was
accumulated during the regime of WI3SLE13 prior
to incorporation of WBSEDCL and the said
liability was not considered i the restructured
balance shect o WBSEDCL during the regime of
WRBSEB through the transfer scheme of Govt. of
West Bengal.

(11) Demand for Llectricity Duty of 6954 Lacs
& Interest of F 7986 Lacs {or the assessment
years 2008-09 to 2011-12 is disputed by the
company. and necessary appeals have been [led
aganist such order.

(1} Necessary effect will be made in the accounts
upon reecipt of the final order from the Govt. of
West Bengal.

(i1) Thc matter has been taken up with the
Flectricity Duty authority for settlement of the
1ss1¢.

Comments on the Independent Aufitors Report "Annexure-ll”
Companies Auditors Report Order (CARO) 2016

The company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of its fixed assets excepting
in respect ol 438.27 acre of leasehold land lor
which the company could not produce any lease
deed Lo us.

The lcase deeds in respect of 438.27 acre of leasc
hold land are mostly kept in accounting unit level
ang as a result the same could not be shown to the
auditors for verification al Corporate OfTice.
Steps are being taken to collect the lease deeds
[rom the accounting unit levels (or preservalion
of the same at Corporate Office.

1(b

As per information and cxplanation given to us,
physical vertfication of fixed assets of the
company except those in the distribution and
transiission system, is done departmientally on
yearly basis and by an External Agency in every
third vear. However no physical verification
report ol lxed assels by external agency lor the
year was shown to us. No material discrepanctes
were observed [rom the physical verilication
reports submitted to us.

Lxternal agenceices have been engaped for physical
veriNeation of Fixed Assers and their work s
under progress.
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I{c)

According to the information and explanations
given 1o us, the title deeds ol immovable
properties (includes land, benefits to arise out of
land. and things attachcd to the carth, or
permanently fastened to anything attached to the
earth) are held in the name of the company except
as mentioned in para [ (a)above.

The lease deeds in respect of 458.27 acre of lease
hold land arc usually kept in accounting unit level
and as a result the same could not be shown to the
auditors for verification at Corporatec Office.
Steps are being taken (o collect the lease deeds
from the accounting umt levels for preservation
of'the same at Corporate Office.

10.

During the course of our cxamination of the
books of account carried out in accordance with
the generally aceepted auditing practices in India,
we have netther come across any incidence of
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its
ollicers or employees, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the management
cxcept lew cases of misappropriation of
company's fund to the extent of ¥ 8.80 lacs.

There is well defined system and procedurc in the
Company [or prevention ol {raud. However m
spite of that some cases of misappropriation of
companics fund, cte happened which were not
material as compared to the total value of Assets.
Allthe cases arc under investigation.

(120
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West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company Limited

Statement of Technical Particulars

NS ;_ Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015
1.0 | Installed Generating Capacity at the yearend (MW)
(a) Hydel (Excluding PPSP) 176.550 176.550
(b) Diesel 0.820 0.820
(c) PPSP 900.000 900.000
Total : 1077.370 1077.370
2.0 | Generationin MKWH
(a) Hydel (Excluding PPSP) 533.407 515.983
(b) Diesel 0.000 0.000
(c) PPSP 1055.002 1416.062
Total : 1588.409 1932.045
3.0 | Auxillary Consumption (MKWH)
(a) Hydel (Excluding PPSP) 5.334 5.16
(b) Diesel 0.000 0.000
(c) PPSP (including Transformation loss) 17.935 24.073
Total : 23.269 29.233
4.0 | NetGeneration in MKWH (3-4)
(a) Hydel (Excluding PPSP) 528.073 510.823
(b) Diesel 0.000 0.000
(c) PPSP 1037.067 1391.989
Total : 1565.140 1902.812
5.0 | Energy injected to WBSETCL System from Power Generation 1539.413 1877.109
6.0 | Energy Injected to WBSEDCL System from Power Generation 25.727 25.703
Total Generation : 1565.140 1902.812
7.0 | EnergyInjected to WBSETCL System from Power Purchase
7.1 | Central Sectors MKWH)
NTPC 3893.365 4013.424
NHPC (Rangit+ TeestaV+TLDPIII+ TLDPIV) 1226.223 1073.000
PTC (Chukha & Kurichhu) 588.789 546.689
PTC (Tala HEP) 1252.454 1253.933
PTC-J&K 657.466 653.297
NVVNL Bundle Power (Solar & Thermal) 430.515 388.180
DVC Grid Supply (Mejia-V, VII & VIII) 727.176 1452.160
Sub Total 8775.988 9380.683
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No. Particulars 2015-2016 2014-2015
7.2 | State Sectors (MKWH)
WBPDCL 17797.248 21465.009
DPL (220/132KV) 43.803 129.015
Sub total 17841.051 21594.024
7.3 | Short Term (MKWH)
NVVN 196.555 16.610
PTC 1213.382 102.290
TPTCL 1467.600 366.954
JSWPTC 42.378 0
DVC 94.489 6.250
Shree Cement Limited 45.738 0
Adani 727.619 12.309
GMR 160.824 56.005
Jindal Power 0 193.309
Indian Power Exchange Limited 1290.774 1023.614
Power Exchange of India Limited 52.242 20.598
Swap Power (in) 989.48 1129.821
Sub total 6281.081 2927.760
7.4 | Private Sectors (MKWH)
Electrosteel 70.166 55.252
Neora Hydro 8.979 8.782
Nippon Power 11.112 11.374
Tata Power (Hooghly Met Coke) 128.562 149.322
Shree Renuka Sugar 0 15.006
Amrit Bio 0 0
Himadri Chemical 53.471 21.800
Reshmi Cement 5.507 1.314
Ennore Coke 0 12.139
Concast 4.794 7.247
Bengal Energy Limited 227.412 217.415
APNRL 741.073 472.730
TPTCL (Mithon Right Bank) 2095.515 2062.119
TPTCL (Naptha Jhakri) 0 0
Sub-Total 3346.591 3034.500
Total (7.1+7.2+7.3+7.4) 36244.711 36936.967
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No. Particulars 2015-2016 | 2014-2015
8.0 | Energyinjected to WBSEDCL System from Power Purchase
8.1 | Central Sectors ((MKWH)
DVC (Radial Mode) 212.251 266.275
Govt. of Sikkim 0.057 0.109
Sub-Total 212.308 266.384
8.2 | State Sectors (MKWH)
DPL (Radial Mode) 69.417 75.860
Sub-Total 69.417 75.860
8.3 | Private Sectors (MKWH)
DPSC 0 54.922
CESC (Radial Mode) 40.482 47.066
Sub-Total 40.482 101.988
8.4 | Non-Conventional Source of Energy
WBREDA (Frajerganj) 0.174 0.210
Sub-Total 0.174 0.210
Total (8.1+8.2+8.3+8.4) 322.381 444.442
9.0 | Power Draw under Ul mode (UIIN) 258.179 431.310
10.0| Total Power Purchase (7+8+9) 36825.271 | 37812.719
11.0| GridLoss (Inter State Grid) 251.834 281.012
12.0| Gross Energy Available WBSETCL System (5+7+9-11) 37790.469 | 38964.374
13.0|] Transmission Lossin WBSETCL System (MU) 1284.876 1324.789
14.0| Transmission Lossin WBSETCL System as a % of (13/12*100) 3.40 3.40
15.0] Gross Energy Available at WBSEDCL boundary from
WBSETCL System (12-13) 36505.593 | 37639.585
16.0] Energy Outgo from WBSETCL System
Sale to person other than licensee & consumer including 2040.119 1971.882
Transmission loss
Sale to Sikkim 51.970 51.199
Bulk Supply to Licensee from WBSEDCL System (CESC, DPL, DVC) 345.935 | 2101.704
Pumping Power to PPSP including Transmission & Transformation loss 1475.858 1980.949
Swap Power (out) including Transmission loss 733.911 565.296
Energy Outgo under Ul mode (UI Out) including Transmission loss 157.310 15.300
Transmission Los for sale to Sikkim & licensee at EHV 14.005 75.775
Total 4819.108 | 6762.105
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No. Particulars 2015-2016 | 2014-2015
17.0| Net Energy available at WBSEDCL boundary from WBSETCL 31686.485 | 30877.480
System (15-16)
18.0| Energy Injected directly to WBSEDCL System (6+8) 348.108 470.145
19.0| Energy Received for Wheeling at 33KV 12.218 7.440
20.0] Total Energy availablein WBSEDCL System (17+18+19) 32046.811 | 31355.065
21.0| Total Utilisation (MKWH)
21.1| Bulk Supply to Licensee from Dist. System (DPSC) 107.295 137.447
21.2| Sale to WBSEDCL own Consumer
Centralised Bulk 8226.578 | 8650.960
De-Centralised Bulk
L&MV 14764.277 | 13858.471
Sub-Total 22990.855 | 22509.431
21.3| Units Wheeled 11.781 7.434
21.4| Additional Unitallowed for Wheeling 0.437 0.006
21.5] Utilized in own premises of WBSEDCL 48.000 46.000
Total (21.1+21.2+21.3+21.4+21.5) 23158.368 | 22700.318
23.0| Distribution Loss (MU) (20-21) 8888.443 | 8654.747
24.0| Distribution Loss as percentage 27.74 27.60
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WEST BENGAL STATE ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION COMPANY LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016

As at 31st As at 31st
PARTICULARS Note | March 2016 | March2015
No (T in |akhs)
I. | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1.| Shareholders’ funds
(a) | Share capital (1) 225674 225674
(b) | Reserves and surplus (2) 636360 496927
Sub-total 862034 722601
2.] Share application money pending allotment 0 0
Sub-total 0 0
3.] Non-current liabilities
{(a) | Long - term borrowings {3) 849105 759665
{b) [ Deferred tax liabilities {(Net) {4) 0 0
{c) | Other Long term liabilities {5) 870248 831165
{d) | Long-term provisions (6) 23198 25652
Sub-total 1742551 1616482
4.| Current liabilities
(a) | Short -term bomrowings (7) 430597 342019
(b) | Trade payables (8) 367121 388286
(c) | Cther current liabilities (9) 208883 265121
(d) | Short-term provisions (10) 360588 276149
Sub-total 1457188 1271575
TOTAL 4061774 3610658
Il |ASSETS
1] Non-current assets
a) Fixed assets {(11)
(i) Tangible assets 1592234 1479271
(i) | Intangible assets 3064 1938
(iif) | Capital work-in-progress 141326 138520
(iv) | Intangible assets under development 0 0
(b) | Non-current investments {12) 894 1069
{c) | Deferred tax assets (net) (4) 0 0
{d) | Long-term loans and advances (13) 81712 38564
{e) | Other non-current assets (14) 443929 616111
Sub-total 2263159 2275473
2.] Current assets
(a) Current investments {(15) 0 0
(b) Inventories (16 54002 54309
(c) Trade receivables {including Unbilled Revenus) (17) 624127 571633
(d) Cash and Bank Balances (18) 214963 149369
(e) Short-term loans and advances (19) 35700 13132
() Other current assets (20) 869823 546742
Sub-total 1798615 1335185
TOTAL 4061774 3610658
ﬁElgisﬁeanlt: Ac:munl’usn?la rolicie; 11032
n T.m‘:'; oarr‘:’::f ot .f":‘:"“ ) For & on behalf of the Board
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ({/ .
FRN. 302175 E ' Chasey—~ Rﬁ// -
_ (KK Ghosh) ({P.K. Banerjeo) (Rajesh Pandey)
a age v‘:v_t\ c?"iméﬁgzréﬁ :ar Company Secretary Chairman & Managing Director
{Tarit Dasgupia)
Partnar
Meambership No. 053380
Place : Kolkata
Data : 04th July, 2016
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WEST BENGAL STATE ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION COMPANY LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2016

S Nﬁ;e 2015-2016 | 2014-2015
{ T in lakhs)
1(a)| Revenue from Operations (21A) 1604691 1692076
{b)| Other Operating Revenue (21B) 44666 51958
{c)] Amount Realisable Through Regulatory Mechanism (21C) 205436 199752
{d)] Otherincome (22) 6337 14548
Total Revenue 1861130 1958334
2 Expenses :
(a)] Purchases of Power & Transmission Charges (23) 1417230 15652893
(b)] Employee benefits expenses (24) 117193 113933
(c)| Finance costs (25) 145157 136202
(d)| Depreciation (26) 65791 61902
(e)|] Other expenses {27) 112241 90400
Total expenses 1857612 1955330 |
3 Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and Tax (1-2) 3518 3004
4 Exceptional items 0 0
5 Profit before extraordinary items and Tax (3-4) 3518 3004
6 Extraordinary items 0 0
7 Proflt (+) / Loss (-} before Tax (5+6) 3518 3004
8 Tax expenses : (28)
{1} Current tax 1360 1022
{2} Deferred tax (4) 0 0
Sub-total 1360 1022
9 Net Profit (+)/ Loss (-) for the period (7-8) 2158 1982
10 Earning per equity share of face value of T 10 each
{a) Basic and diluted EPS before Extraordinary items — (in ¥ ) 0.10 0.09
{b) Basic and diluted EPS after Extraordinary items - (in ¥ ) 0.10 0.09
ﬁigtniﬁcanlt: Acoounltlg? roliciet: 110 32
o'es on Financial Stalemen For & on behalf of the Board
In Term of our Report of even date
For DE & BOSE . .
CHATERED ACCOUNTANTANTS [. i =i
FRN. 302175E - EE
< (K.K. Ghosh) (P.K. Banerjee) (Rajesh Pandey)
A~y rlilL Director (Finance) &  Company Secretary ~ Chairman & Managing Director
P Chief Financial Officer
(Tarit Dasgupta)
Partner

Place : Kolkata
Date : 04th July, 2016

Membership No. 053380 :-";-.
|.l ! - '5
N
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WEST BENGAL STATE ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION COMPANY LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the Year Endad 31st March, 2016

; . 2015-2016 2014-2015
NSCI,_ Particulars (T n Iellkh 3)
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Net Profit / (Loss) Before Taxation & Exiraordinary items. 3518 3004
Adjustment For :
Depreciation 65791 62432
Interest & Financial Charges 134900 126515
Bad Debts & Provision 2856 1737
Excess provision written back (126) {1949)
Interest / Dividend etc. Income {2435) (7732)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Change 204504 184007
Adjustment For :
Inventories 807 {11832)
Trade Receivables 54236 75148
Other Current Assets 151606 151664
Loans & Advances 22393 19815
Current Liabilities & Provision, etc. (108430) {157383)
Cash Generation from operation 83892 106595
Tax Pald {net) 1394 (177)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 82498 106772
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES _
Decrease (Increase) in Fixed Assets {195793) (272755)
Decrease (Increase) in Work in Progress (45920) 50047
{Increase)Decrease in Investments 1121 (34378)
Interest / Dividend Income 3142 5982
NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIEIS (B) (237450) (251104)
c CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Borrowing (Net) 182724 81341
Proceeds from Consumers contribution & capital subsidy 153190 140921
(Reserve & Surplus)
Interest & Financial Charges. (114247) (104069)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C} 221667 118193
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) 66715 {26139)
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 41336 67475
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 108051 41336
This is the Cash flow Statement referred to our report of even date
In Term of our Report of even date - For & on behalf of the Board
CRATERED AGCOUNTANTS £
FRN. 302175E D -
(P.K. Banerjee) {Rajesh Pandey)
Eﬂu _ (KK. Ghosh) Company Secretary  Chairman & Managing Director
Director (Finance) &
(Tarit Dasgupta) Chief Financial Officer
Partner
Membership No. 053380
Place : Kolkata

Date : 04th July, 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared to comply n all matenal aspects with the Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India under the lustorical cost convention on accrual basis
exceptincerlain cases where cash basis accounting have been adopted for Rent Receipt, interest income
on staft advances, License [ees, Municipal and Vehicle Taxes, Membership & Subscriptions, AMC of
ollice equipments and Revenue Income on Delayed Payment Surcharges/Reconnection Fees, prepaid
melering and grants.

GAAP comprises ol mandatory Accounting Standards as notified under Scction 133 of Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014, the provisions o Companics Acl, 2013
(to the extenl notified), provisions of the Companies Act, 1936 (to (he extent applicable) and the

Regulations under the Electricity Act, 2003, to the extent applicable.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of Iinancial Statemcents requires estimates and assumptions to be made that aftect the

reported amount of assets and habilities on the date of the I'inancial Statements and the reported amount
of revenues and cxpenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual  results and

cstimates are recoghised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.

Capital Expgnditure and Fixed Assets
3.1 Fixed assets shall be broadly classified under the following categories as applicable to the

company.

] GUENERATIONASSEETS
° DISTRIBUTION ASSLTS
® METERINGASSETS

e OTHERASSETS
Similarly, capital works in progress accounts shall also be classified under the above four broad heads.

3.2 Assets are stated at onginal (historical) cost of acquisition including freight, Insurance, duties,

taxes and other incidental expenses incurred to bring the assets to use.
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3.13

3.14

Fixed Asset is accounted for through capital works in progress account and tansferred to the

appropriate fixed asset account when the assets are put to use on comnissioning.

In case of commissioned assets, where final scitlement of bills with contractor is yel to be effected,

capitalization is done, subject to necessary adjustment in the year of final scttlement.
Spare units/service units as when procured are capitahized and depreciation is charged.

Insurance sparcs which can be used only in connection with an item of [ixed asscts and whose use is
cxpecled to be irregular are capilalized and depreciated over the residual usctul life of the related plant

& machinery.

Any cost for addition or improvement to fixed assets that results in increasing the utilities or capacity or

life ofthe assets shall be capitalized and included in the cost ofassets.

Expenditure on replacement of any part {one time expenses) costing more than 10% of cost of such
assets subject to a minimum of T 500000/-shall be treated as capital expenditure and thus capitalized

exceptrepair cost of transformicrs.

The trial run expenses for Generation Assets during capitalisable period shall be capitalised after

netting off revenue earned trom sale of power { infirm power).

Capital expenses of assets not owned by company shall be reflected as distinetitem in capital works in

progress till the period of completion and thereaftter under fixed assets.
Any fixed asscts acquired/reccived free of cost shall be recorded at nominal valuc at 3 1/-.

In respect of works executed through on contract basis (turnkey project), completion method of

accounting 1s adopted.

For impairment of asscts, if carrying amount of fixed asscts exceeds the recoverable amount on the
reporting date, the carrying amount is to be reduced to the recoverable amount by charging under
Profit & Loss Account.

Physical Verification of Fixed Assets shall be done departmentally on yearly basis with conductance of
Physical Verification of Fixed Assets by an External Agency once in every three years.
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Capital Grants and Consumers’ Contribution for Assels
Consumers contribution, grants and subsidies recerved towards cost of capital assets are treated as

capital receipts.

Such capital receipt for specific depreciable assets are shown under "Reserve and Surplus”. On
commissioning of such asscts the related balance under "Rescrve and Surplus" is amortised for the

amount of depreciation charged in respect of Fixed Asscts construeted from such fund.

Borrowing Costs

(ay The borrowing cost (including Bond Issue expenses, interest, I'ront End Fee, ete) directly related
to a particular project under construction is capitalized. On commissioning of the assets the costis
charged to revenue account. Other borrowing cost is capitalized as per policy approved by the
Board of Directors.

(b} Swappingcharges for restructuring of borrowing cost is amortized.

Treatment of Expenditure During Construction
Indircet Expensces capitalized arce allocated to various Capital Works in Progress Account in the ratio of

balanccsunder such account.

Accounting of Construction Contracts

In respect of works executed through on contract basis, completion method of accounting is adopted.

Accounting of Intangible Assets
Cost of computer soltware recognized as intangible Asset is amortized on straight Iine method over a

period of five years.

Treatment of Claims
Claims by Contractors / Suppliers on the Company for liquidated datmage, escalation, bonus and
revision in rates which are not specifically covered under respective contracts are taken into account on

acceptance.

Depreciation
0.1 Depreciation is provided on straight line method based on uselul Iife ol'assels and norms specilied

in the Regulations netified by the West Bengal Electricily Regulatory Commission, a slatulory
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authority constituted under the Electricity Act, 2003. However, such useful Itfe ol assels 1s different
[rom the uselul lile of assets specilied m schedule [T of the Companies Act, 2013, Ministry of
Power has 1ssued Tan{l Policy which provides that the calculaled rates ol depreciation notilied by
the CERC or State Regulatory Commissions would be applicable [or the purpose ol tarifls as weli
as accounting. No depreciation is charged for the frechold land as well as the land acquired on

perpetual leasc and which does not have a limited usetul life.

Depreciation is not being provided once the Assets come down to 10% of the original Value.

Foreign Currency Transaction
Transactions denominated i1 foreign currencies are recognized at the exchange rate prevailing on the

date of transaction or that approximates the actual rate at the date of transaction.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of transaction due to difference of rates at which they
were nitially recognized during the period, or reported in previous financial statements, are to be

recognized as incorme or ag expenses in the period in which they arise.

Monctary items denontinated in forcign currencics at the year end arc restated at year end rates.

Valuation of Investment

Short Term Investments arc valucd at lower of cost and tair valuc.

Long term investments are carried on costs. Provision for diminution 1n the value of long term

investment 1s made only if such adecline is other than temiporary in the opinion of the management.

Revenue/ Expenditure Recognition

The Revenuc from Sale of Powcer as well as Purchasc of Power cxpenses arc accounted for on accrual
basis. At the year end, the provisions arc made it no bills arc reccived or ratsed till date of closing of

the respective financial year.

Revenue income and expenditures are recognized as and when accrued by written communication
from any Regulatory or Statutory authority, unless the same is under litigation or process of

litigation, Further Income Receivable through Regulatory Mechanism in respect of additional cost
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incurred during the period over and above cost allowed m prevailing tari (T order 1s recognized based

on the applicable available orders and regulations o Regulatory Authorities.

Income Realizable Through Regulatory Mechanism is to be recognized when it is probable that the
tuture economic benefits associated with it will flow to the company as a result of the actual or
expected actions of the regulator under the applicable regulatory framework and the amount can be

measured reliably.

Bilateral conlracts between two utilities for exchange ol power by purchase and sale (or vise versa) of
quantilies ol energy as per conlract (SWAT) are accounted (or by average pool cost ol power
purchase per unit (kwh) excluding transmission charges for the year. Energy balances against SWAP
contracts not settled during the same {inancial year are accounted (or on the basis ol approved

accounting policy of the Company.

The tariff ratc of sale/purchasc of power under jurisdiction of CERC/WBERC is recognised as

ordered by the Regulators.

Sale ol electricily does nol include Electricity Duly as the same 1s not the income of the company.
Electricily Duly payable 1o Govl. ol Wesl Bengal 1s accounted lor on the amount ol Electricity Duty

collected during the year.

Bad and doubt(ul debls are provided in Lhe accounts based on the policy Itamed by the management.
Debts, which are bad and not realisable. are writlen olfal the end of'each year. In case ol billing against
thelt of power, penalty portion 1s separated Itom energy charges and on which electricily duty is not

charged.

Policy had been tramed for any waiver, rectification, adjustiments of Annual Mininum Guarantced
Revenue (AMGR) & Late Payment Surcharge (LPSC) with specitic delegated financial powers for

such approval. As per such approval. necessary accounting shall be made in Debtors' Account.
Material Accounting

14.1  Allcosts incurred to bring the materials and to its present form (i.c. location and condition) arc
included in the material cost.
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14.2  Conswmption accounting is done immediately on issue of materials from stores other than
advance to contractors, i which case it 1s based on the details of consumption filed by the

Contractors.

14.5  All Store 1lems artc 1ssued al running weighied average 1ssuc rates prevailed o the accouniing

LNIts.

14,4 Stock for construction Projects 1s treated as Capital Stores and for O&M purchase as operational

stores.

14.5 Provisions for liabilily is created in respect ol all aceepled purchase materials, irrespective of

suppliers billsrecetved or not.
14.6  Attheendofthe yearthe closing stock is valued at cost or net realizable value whicheveris lower.

14.7  Write oft/write in of stock anising out of physical verification and/or otherwise 1s accounted for

only onapproval ol the appropriale authority.

14.8  Unutilised materials issucd at site, the ownership of which lies with the Company arc added as the

part ofthe inventory at the year end.

14.9  Provision for slow moving, non-moving, obsolete and scrap materials are considered on the

basis. of policy framed by the management.

Employee Benefits

15.1. Employec Benelits include benefits provided to employee or their spouscs, Children and other
dependents and may be settled by payments made cither direetly o the cmployecs, spouses,
children or other dependents or to their legal heirs ot nominees or (o others such as Trusls,

[nsurance Company.

[5.2. An employee may provide service at a full time, part time, casual or temporary basis. Employee

mcludes full ime Directors and other Management Personnel.

15.3. All the major personncl costs c.g. Salaries, wages, Bonus, Company's Contribution to PF and FPS

ete. shall be accounted for on acerual basis withoutany actuarial valuation.
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15.4. Terminal Benefits ike Gratuity. Pension, Leave Encashment ete. shall be accounted [or on acerual

basis using acluarial valuation.
15,5 Personal costs like Overtime, Medical Reimbursement will be accounted for on accrual basis.

15.6. Employee costshall be capitalized on the basis o[ policy [ramed by the managemenl.

16. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Assets
16.1 The provisions are recognised when the company has a present legal and constructive observation
as aresult ol'the past events lor which 1t 1s probable that an outtlow ol economic benelits will be

required to seltle obligation and a reliable estimate can be made [or the amount of the obligation.
16.2 Contingent liabilitics are discloscd unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remot.

16.3 Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

17. Segmental Reporting
Since the Company has only one integraled business, 1.e. Generation & Distribution ol power, 1t has no

reporlable segmentunder AS- 7.

18. Taxes onlncome
The provision [or current lax i1s made alter taking inlo consideration benelits admissihle under the
provistons ol the Income Tax Acl, 1961, Delerred tax resulting (rom "Timing dillerences” between the
laxable and accounting income 1s accounted (or usig tax rate and laws Lhat are enacted or subslantively
enacled as on the Balance Sheet dale. The delerred lax assel 1s recognized and carried [orward only (o

the extent (hal there 1s areasonable/virtual certainty that the assels will be realized i future.
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WEST BENGAL STATE ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION COMPANY LIMITED
( WBSEDCL )

Notes on Financial Statement for the vear ended 31 st March, 2016

la) WBSLEDCL was incorporated under Companics Act, 1956 on 16.02.2007. The company received on

b)

21.03.2007 the Certificate for Commencement of Business issucd by the Registrar of Companics, West
Bengal. The Company 1s a Government Company within the mcaning of Scetion 2(43) of the
Companics Act, 2013 and cntirc paid up Share Capital is held by the Government of West Bengal and its
neminces. The Company is engaged in the Buswess of Distribution of Lilectricity and insignificant

gencration of Hydro-Lleetricity and hence seginent reporting is not required.

The detailed break up order of balances as revested by Govt. of West Bengal vide No. 12-PO/O/11/3R-
2972006 dated 25.01.2007 read with 313-PO/O/1L/3R-29/2006 dated 19.09.2008 under final transfer
scheme have not been issucd till date. The dctailed accounting was made on the basis of
recommendation of PricewaterhouseCoopers (PWC). the consultant of Govt. of West Bengal on Power
Sector Reform of West Bengal.

The Company finalised the financial statements of 2015-16 for the 9" year ofits business.

AlT figures are rounded off to the nearest lakhs of rupees in the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit &

T.oss. Cash Flow Statement and Notes.

During the Financial year 2015-16, the Company nnplemented SAP-ERP for effective maintenance of

Accounts.

Previous vear [igures are regrouped and re-arranged wherever considered necessary.
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NOTE NO - 1 : Share Capital

As at 31st As at 31st
Particulars March 2016 March 2015
( T in lakhs)
A} Authorised :
4050000000 Equity Share of ¥ 10 each 405000 405000
B) Isued Subscribed and Paid Up:
Equity Share Capital from State Government :
2256739863 Equity Share (2256739863 Nos Previous year) of ¥ 10
each fully paid up
issued for consideration other than cash 225674 225674
Total 225674 225674

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the begining and at the end of the reporting period

As on 31st March As on 31st March
20186 2015
Particulars Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares (T In lakhs) Shares (¥ In lakhs)
Opening and Closing Balances 2256739863 225674 2256739863 225674
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As on 31st March As on 31st March
2016 2015
Name of shareholder Number of % of Number of % of
shares holding shares holding
Governor of West Bengal 2256739863 100 2256739863 100

1.1 At the time of formation of the Company 50000 nos. of Equity share of T 10/- cach was allotted to

various persons being the signatorics of the Memorandum of Association of the Company. However, the

bencficial interest for all the sharcs are lying with the Government of West Bengal, more specifically

with the Governor of West Bengal. The names of the first sharcholders arc available inthe Memorandum

and Articles of Association issucd by the Company.

The Equity shares of the company rank pari passu in all respects including voting rights & entitlement of

Dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company the helders of equity shares will be entitled to

receive the remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amount. The

distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

S0
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NOTE NQO. - 2 : Reserves & Surplus

As at 31st As at 31st
PARTICULARS Mar 2016 Mar 2015
{ T in lakhs)

A) Reserve for Unforseen Exigencies
Opening Bafance 15500 14456
{+) Current Year Transfer 0 1044
{-) Written Back in Current Year 0 0
Closing Balance 15500 15500
B) Debenture Redemption Reserve
Opening Baiance 5781 4843
(+) Current Year Transfer 1667 938
(-} Written Back in Current Year D 0
Ciosing Balance 7448 5781
C) Subsidies & Grants towards Cost of Capital Assets
Opening Balance 345926 229857
(+) Current Year Transfer 108432 123993
(-} Depreciation Adjustment in Current Year 11265 7924
Closing Balance 443093 345926
D) Consumers' Contributions towards Capital Assets
Opening Balance 142791 130357
{+) Current Year Transfer 44758 16928
{-) Depreciation Adjustment in Current Year 4650 4494
Closing Balance 182899 142791
E) Surplus
Opening balance (13071) (12618)
(+) Net Profit /{Net Loss} For the current year 2158 1982
{+) Accumulated Depreciation of Past years of Fixed 0 {453)
Assets having no residual Value
{+) Transfer from Reserves 0 0
(-) Propesed Dividends D 0
(-) Interim Dividends 0 0
{-) Transfer to Reserves 1667 1982
Closing Balance (12580) {13071)

Total (A+B+C+D+E) 636360 496927

2.1 During the year an amount ol” ¥ 44758 lakhs (previous year ¥ 16928 lakhs) was transflerred Lo reserve

due to completion of asset constructed out of consumer's contribution for service connection.

2.2 During the year an amount of ¥ 108432 lakhs (previous vear T 123993 Jakhs) was transferred to rescrve

duc to complction ol assct constructed vut of fund reecived from Government and local bodics for

construction ol capital assets and grant received (rom Govl. during the linancial vear 2015-16.

2.3 During the financial year 2015-16 an amount of T 1667 lakhs (previous vear T 938 lakhs inclading
interest) was translered to Debenture Redemption reserve as per provisions ol the Companies Act 2013

to the extent of available profit.
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NOTE NO. - 3 : Long Term Borrowings
As at 31st As at 31st
£ PARTICULARS Mar 2016 Mar 2015
No. ;
(¥ in lakhs)
A) Secured
i) Loan from Power Finance Corporation Limited A/C RAPDRP 24914 25148
i) Loan from Power Finance Corporation Limited 235000 147667
iii} Loan from Rural Electrification Corporation Limited 208793 194914
iv} Term Loan from Bank
Mid-Term loan from Canara Bank 0 4169
v) 9.34% Non Convertible Redeemble Bond 2025 50000 50000
(Secured by hypothecation of Fixed Assets)
(Redeemable at par at the end of 15th year)
vi} 10.85% Non Convertible Redeemle Bond 2026 50000 50000
{Secured by hypothecation of Fixed Assets)
(Redeemable at par at the end of 15th year)
Sub-Total 568707 471896
B) Unsecured
i) Loan from State Govt. 203963 200906
i Loan from State Govt. (Taken over from WBREDCL) 2032 2032
iii) Leoan from Power Finance Corporation (Against Govt. Guarantee) 304 967
iv) Lean from Rural Electrification Corporation (against Govt. Guarantee) 18312 21025
V) Loan from Rural Electrification Corporation (Take over from WBREDCL) 10323 10323
Bonds :
Vi 8.5% Pension Trust Bonds 2016 (Against Govt. Guarantee) 153000 153000
(Redeemable in 5 Equal Instalments after a 10 year moratorium period on
repayments. Moreover, the Company has a call option to redeem the Bonds
in whole or part any time before maturity)
vii) 8.5% WBSEB Power Bonds Series 1/2018 4107 6453
{Taxahle, Unsecured, Non Convertible, Redeemble Bonds}
The principal Amount will be repaid in 80 quarterly instalments from 01.04.2003
T 5 lakhs per instrument in respect of 117 Bonds with face value of T 3
crore each & ¥ 2.06 lakhs for first instalments & T 1.66 lakhs for remaining
59 instalments in respect of 1{one) Bond with face value of ¥ 1 crore)
Sub-total 392041 394706
Sub-total (A+B) 960748 866602
) Less : Current _ma_tt_;r_ities of long term borrowings transferred to 111643 106937
Other Current liabilities (Refer Note 9)
Total (A+B-C} 849105 759665

3.1 Debt servicing of loans and borrowing were made within time for actual amount accrued and due except
Principal & Interest duc on Govt. Loan amounting to ¥ 36049 lakhs & T 49125 lakhs (previous vear
¥ 23454 lakhs & T 32049 lakhs) which were withheld as per Direction ol Govt of West Bengal vide
memono: 603/PO/C-T/4M-166/09(PL-1) dated 18.03.2014

3.2 8.5% Pension Trust Bonds 2016 has been guaranteed under Govt. Guarantee.
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3.3 There is adifference of T 12603 lakhs (previous year T 10097 lakhs) of RECL loan between the books
of accounts of WI3SLEDCL and RECL. This arises mainly due to ditference of accounting treatment of
principal and interest in the books ofaccounts of RECL and WBSEDCL.

3.4) Details of Loan taken from Power Finance Corporation Ltd. as on 31.03.2016

Sl.

No.

Security

Rate of
Interest
{In%)

Tenure
{Incl.
maoratorium
period)

Moratorium
Period

Last
Repayment
(Year)

Outstanding
Balance as
on
31.03.2016
(in lakhs)

Govt. Guaranteed

12.50

13 Years

3 Years

2016-17

101

Govt. Guaranteed

8.50

12 Years 9
Months

2Years 9
maonths

2018-19

203

Hypothecalion of all horrowers newly financial
assets present & future created / to be created.
Hypothecation of existing assets comprising plant
& machinery and also lines & cable networks in
Arambag Town and M3  33/11 KV substation in
Bicdhannagar Town in the state of West Bengal.

9.00

12 Years

5 Years

2021-22

12026

The whole of the movahle Assets, present & future
pertaining to newly financed Assets created /to be
created under R-APDRP, Part B under 23 town
projects as well as existinig movable assets
{Overhead lines) created at RE-projects
Berhampore, Murshidabad in West Bengal.

9.00

20 Years

5 Years

2030-31

3971

The whole of the movable Assets, present & future
pertaining to newly financed Assets created / to be
created under R-APDRP, Parl B under 22 town
projects as well as existing movable assets
{Overhead lines) created at RE-projects
Berhampore, Murshidabad in West Bengal.

9.00

20 Years

5 Years

2030-31

4046

First charge by Hypothecation in favour of the
corporation on the newly financed Assets under
ihe project comprised of transformers
substations, capacitors etc. including movable
machinery, machinery spares, tools and
accessories and olher equipmenls, bolh present
& future as well as on the existing assets being
plant & machinery and Lines of 400 KV switchgear
in South 24 Parganas.

9.00

20 Years

5 Years

2032-33

1997

First charge by Hypothecation in favour of the
corporation on the newly financed Assets under
the project including movable machinery,
machinery spares, tools and accessories, at
projects site present & future as well as on the
existing assets being O/H lines on other
conductor including fitting UG cables including
fittings (11KV) PILC cable in South 24 Parganas.

9.00

12 Years

5 Years

2024-25

988
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. QOutstanding
; Balance as
Sl Secur Rate of {Incl. Moratorium 35k
No By Interest moratorium Period Reayment o
: (In%) period) {Year) 31.03.2016
(in lakhs)
First charge by Hypothecation in favour of the
corporation on the newly linanced Assels under
8 the project including movabie machinery, 1886
machinery spares, tools and accessories, at 9.00 20 Years S Years 2034-35 8
proiects site both present & future as well as on
the existing assets being Sub-station struclure of
Siliguri Zone.
Overhead Lines under South 24-Parganas,
Bidhannagar, Howrah, North 24-Parganas,
9| Pashim Medinipur Region of WBSEDCL valued | 11.50 | 48 Years - 2017-18 | 75000
T108273.20 lakhs as per Schedule-l of
Hypothecation Deed.
Overhead Lines under Purba Mednipur,
Bankura, Purulia Region and OH Lines and P&M
10| of Berhampore, Burdwan Zone, RE Project | 10.25-| 5 'Years 2 Years 2020-21 160000
Bankura and Barasat of WBSEDGL valued | 10.99
T209662.66 lakhs as per Schedule - | of
Hypothecation Deed.
Total 260218
3.5 Total valuc of sccured, redeemable, ion-convertible bonds issucd by the company on private placement
basis stood at ¥ 100000 lacs. These securities are listed with Bombay Stock Exchange in Wholesale
Debt Market. During the period Debenture Redemption Reserve has been created to the extent of
avatlable profiL.
3.6 As pertermis & condition ol R-APDRP Part A Loan received Irom Govt. ol India through the nodal
] g

142}

agency Power Finance Corporation Limited (PFC) the cntirc amount of loan will be converted to grant
depending upon the fulfilment of the terms & condition of the loan.

Claim of Power Finance Corporation Limiled ol ¥ 2539 lakhs {(not acknowledged by WBSEDCL) for
the (inancial year 2015-16 on account of Principal due lor repayment is considered n Loug Term
Borrowings (notc no-3) instcad of Other Current liabilities-Current maturitics of long term debt (note
no-09). Intcreston loan s provided as a matter of prudence.

Regarding RAPDRP Part I3 loan 50% will be considered as Joan and balance will be converted to grant
depending upon the fulfillment of the terms & condition of the loan agreement. Fund so far received tull
the end of the financial year 2015-16 has been accounted (or as loan and interest has been provided in the
accounts accordingly.

ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015-2016



3.7

} Details of Loan taken from Rural Electrification Corporation Ltd. as on 31.03.2016

Sl.
No.

Security

Rate of
Interest
{In%}

Tenure
(Incl.
moratorium
period)

Moratorium
Period

Last
Repayment
{Year)

Outstanding
Balance as
on
31.03.2016
(in lakhs)

Exclusive first charge by Hypotecation of movable
properties, present & fulure pertaining to newly
financed Assets created / to be created including
movable machinery, equipment. machinery,
machinery spares, tools, implements & accessories
installed and its stock of materials & equipment of
Haldia, Burdwan-II, Jalpaiguri-ll, Asansol, Siliguri,
GIS Mapping in supply stations & Augmentation of
DCCs adequate to cover the amount of loan,
interest. penal interest and other charges.

8.00-14.00

13 Years

3 Years

2017-18 to
2019-20

2137

Hypothecation of all future movable assets and
stores items to be created out of the loan to be
utilized for improvement of its existing system by
installation of HT shunt capacitor banking 83 nos.
33/11 kv sub stations catering four Zones viz,
Kolkata, Burdwan, Berhampore and Midnapore in
the state of W.B.

12.00-12.25

13 Years

3 Years

2021-22

889

Hypothecation of all future movable assets and
stores items to be created out of the loan amount
to be utilised for renovation & modernisation
(R & M) of 27 MW (3 X8MW) of Jhaldhaka Hydro-
Electricity power plant at Darjeeling District within
the state of West Bengal

12.00-12.25

13 Years &
Months

44 months

2023-24

4187

First charge by Hypothecation of movables
properties, present & future pertaining to newly
financed Assets created / to be created including
movable machinery, equipment, machinery.
machinery spares, tools, implements and
accessories installed and its stock of materials and
equipment of Jaldhaka Hydro-Electric power plant
by 9MW (1X 9MW) unit at Darjeeliing district within
the state of W.B. adequate to cover the amount of
loan, interest, penal interest and other charges.

12.25

12 Years &
5 Months

29 Months

2023-24

1196

First charge by hypothecation of all the future
movable properties pertaining to newly financed
Assets created/ fo be created like Lightning Arrester,
AC 3 Phase 2 Wire Solid State (Static) Meter, ACSR,
DOG/WOLF/Squirrel conductor, ACSR & AA
Conductor, 33KV XLPE Cable, 33/11 KV, 10 MVA &
6.3 MVA Transformers, Switchgear with VCB, 11 KV,
3PH, 200A O/D Type isolator, 11KV & 33KV Pin &
Disc insulator, LT & HT Areal Bunched Cable, AC
Single phase 2 wire solid State (Static) Meter to be
installed in varicus districts of West Bengal.

9.93-1225

13 Years

2 Years

2024-25to
2025-26

43498
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Movables and stocks to be created iro. the
project including out of loan from RECL in various
circles of WBSEDCL as listed in Schedule IV of
the Bulk Hypothecation Agreement.

11.00-12.00

15 Years

5 Years

2027-28

35834

The whole of the movable Assets, present &
future pertaining to newly financed Assets
created / to be created under R-APDRP, Part B
under 45 iowns alongwith existing movable
assets comprising of Switchgear - 400KV,
Distribution Transformer (11/04KV} 100 KVA,
OH Lines including fitlings (33KV) and OH Lines
on other Conductor including fittings of
¥ 12734.34 lakhs on pari-passu basis with PFC
{(RECL 75% & PFCL 25%)

10.50-11.75

18 Years

3 Years

2031-32

16085

All the future movables and stocks to be created
under lhe respective schemes of the project
inctuding those procured out of the loans to be
sanctioned by REC.

11.75

13 Years

2 Years

2026-27 to
2027-28

55694

All the future movables and stocks to be created
under ihe respeclive schemes of the project
including those procured out of the ioans to be
sanctioned by REC.

11.00-12.25

13 Years

3 Years

2028-29

3148

11.00-12.25

13 Years

3 Years

2028-29

1416

11.00-12.50

13 Years

3 Years

2028-29

3283

11.00-12.50

13 Years

3 Years

2028-29

675

10

Movable Properties like Lines, Cables & Network
of RE Project Siliguri, Siliguri Zone and
Midnapore Zone of T170345.92 lakhs as per
Schedule-A of Hypothecation Deeed.

10.80

51 Months

6 Months

20198-20

37100

11

All the future movables and stocks to be created
under the respective schemes under R-APDRP,
Part-B under 5 towns including those procured
oul ¢of the loans (o be sancticned by REC,
totalling o the project cost of F 12821.00 lakhs
on paripasu basis with PFC.

10.50-11.00

18 Years

3 Years

2034-35

1892

12

All the fulure movables properties of the
respective schemes under R-APDRP Part-B
under 11 towns including those procured out of
the loans sanctioned by REC, totalling to the
projecicostof ¥ 12567.00 lakhs

10.50-11.00

20 Years

5 Years

2036-37

1753

13

Govt. Guaranteed

10.11

20 Years

2022-23

18312

Total

227108
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3.8) Details of Other Loans & Bonds as on 31.03.2016
Tenure Outstanding
Sy Sea e | ol | Mortoum | ooty | - om
No. L ecurty A moratorium | Period pay 3103.2016
(In%) period) (Year) b
{in lakhs)
1| Capital Bond Series-| Plant & Machinery at Purulia Pump 934 15 Years - 2025-76 25000
Storage Project of the Value of
T 3647033778/-
2 | Capital Bond Series-ll | Moveable assets (Plant & 9.34 15 Years - 2025-26 25000
Machinery} al Puruiia Pumped
Storage Project.
Existing Plant & machinery,
Distribution Transformer, Power
Transformer, Switchgear, Battery
3 | Capital Bond Series-Ill| & Other Equipments and Lines, 10.85 15 Years - 2026-27 50000
Cables & Network of Kolkata &
Midnapore Zone.
4 | 8.5% Pension Trust Govt. Guaranteed 8.50 15 Years 5 Years 2020-21 153000
Bonds 2016
5 | 8.5% WBSEB Power 8.50 - - 2017-18 4107
Bond Seres 1/2018 Govt. Guaranteed '
Total 257107

3.9) Inabscnce of detail dociuments, State Govt. Loan (taken over trom WBREDCL) of § 2032 lakhs and
Loan from RECL (taken over from WBRUDCL) of 10323 lakbs are considered in the accounts based on

last andited accounts of WBREDCL.

Note No.-4  In accordance with the Accounting Standard-22 "Accounting for Taxes on Income" issued by
The [nstitute of Charlered Accountants of India, the company has accounted ftor deferred tax. The company
has signilicant amount ol unabsorbed depreciation under income Tax Act, 1961, However as a matler ol
prudence, deferred tax asscts have been recognized to the extent of deterred tax liability and as such there is

no nnpact of the same in these accounts.

Deferred Tax

sl : Asat3ist | (ChargelCr | st aqgy
No A Mar 2015 ed';f;;}“e Mar 2016
A Deferred Tax Liability ( Fin lakhs)

i) On account of Depreciation 164405 (2836) 167241
3 Deferred Tax Assets

i) On account of expenses disallowed u/s 43B 152721 5396 158117
i) On account of unabsorbed Depeciation 11684 (2560) 9124

C | Deferred Tax Assets / liabilities {A-Bi-Bii} 0 0 0
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NOTE NO-5 Other Long Term Liabilities

As at 31st As at 31st
NS(; PARTICULARS Mar 2016 Mar 2015
(T in lakhs)

A) | Trade Payables

Liability for Purchase of Power 101958 173502
B) Others

i) Security Deposit / advance from Consumers 282891 2424086
iy Liability for Capital Supplies / Works 166963 160000
iy | Deposit for Electrification 276843 214778
iv) | Retention Money deducted from Contractor / Suppliers 41593 40479
Sub-total 768290 657663
Total (A + B) 870248 831165

5.1 Valuc of asscts nil (pravious year ¥ 9849 lakhs) constructed by CPSU under RGGVY scheme was
considered 1n the accounts of 2015-16. In absence of specific consideration the same was balanced by
crediting Liabilities for Capital Works.

5.2 Thelability on account ol power purchase ol ¥ 101958 lakhs (Previous year ¥ 173502 lakhs) payable
to WBPDCL ininstallments from the financial year 2017-18 & onwards.

NOTE NO -6 Long Term Provisions

g As at 31st As at 31st
No. PARTICULARS Mar 2016 Mar 2015
(T in lakhs)
Provision for employee benefits

i Superannuation {unfunded) 0 0
i Gratuity (unfunded) 0 0
iy | Leave Encashment {(unfunded) 21466 24360
ivi | ESOP/ESOS 0 0
v} | Leave Travel Assistance (unfunded) 1732 1292

Total 23198 25652

6.1 Long Term provision includes provision for Unlunded Employee Benelil as segregated in the Actuarial
Valuationreport.
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NQOTE NQ-7 Short Term Borrowings

As at 31st As at 31st
NSOI. PARTICULARS Mar 2016 Mar 2015
(T in lakhs)
Secured

i) Short-Term loan from Syndicate Bank 2000 20000
i) | Short-Term loan from UCQO Bank 0 18000
iy | Short-Term loan from Indian Overseas Bank 43200 43200
iv) | Loan from Power Finance Corporation 0 12692
v) | Loan from Rural Electrification Corporation 0 12500
Sub-total 52200 106392

vi}y | Cash Credit Account
a) Punjab National Bank 19921 8208
b) Dena Bank 10526 10584
¢} Indian Qverseas Bank 14920 17102
d) ICICI Bank 619 486
e) Allahabad Bank 64907 62162
f) UBI Bank 64780 51786
g) Canara Bank 44935 1162
h) Punjab & Sindh Bank 39819 24939
i}y Bank of India 49612 41704
i) Syndicate Bank 9676 17404
k) State Bank of India 58682 0
Sub-total 378397 235627
Total 430597 342019

7.1 Short term loans include those loans which are re-payable within one year.
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7.2) Details of Short Term Loans as on 31.03.2016
Outstanding
S| Rate of Last Balance as
No Name Security Interest Repayment on
' (In %) (Year) 31.03.2016

(in lakhs)
- Lien of FDRs of

1 | Syndicate Bank ¥ 100 Crore 9.00-10.15 2016-17 9000
. Lien of FDRs of

2 Indian Overseas Bank 521 Crore 9.00 2016-17 43200
el Lien of FDRs of

Allah - h - -

3 lahabad Bank - Cash Credit = 175.06 Crore 7.75-9.25 15410
4 | United Bank of India - Cash Credit 10.25 - 64780
5 | Allahabad Bank - Cash Credil 10.25 - 49497
6 Indian Overseas Bank - Cash Credit 10.45 - 14920
7 | Punjab National bank - Cash Credit Entire Current 10.35 - 19921
8 | Syndicate Bank Assels on pari- 10.45 - 9676
9 | Bank of India -- Cash Credit passu basis 10.35 - 49612
10 |Dena Bank -- Cash Credit among Consortium 10.45 - 10526
11 | Punjab & Sind Bank -- Cash Credit member Banks 10.25 - 39819
12 | Canara Bank -- Cash Credit 10.45 - 44935
13 | ICICI Bank -- Cash Credit 10.50 - 619
14 | State Bank of India 10.25 - 58682

Total 430597
NOTE NO -8 - Trade Payables
As at 31st As at 31st
PARTICULARS Mar 2016 Mar 2015
(T in lakhs)

Liability for Purchase of Power 334073 361539

Liability for Transmission of Power - PGCIL 11703 7327

Liability for Transmission of Power - WBSETCL 21242 18539

Ul Charges payable 103 881
Total 367121 388286

8.1 Total trade payable including non-current trade pavable as mentioned 1 Note-5 of the Company on
account of purchasc of power as at the cnd of the ycar was T 436031 lakhs (previous year T 535041 lakhs)
which includes arrcar power purchasc liability of WBPDCL of F 187443 lakhs (previous year § 245976
lakhs) payable to WBPDCL in monthly installiments.
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NOTE No - 9 - Other Current Liabilities

As at 31st As at 31st
NScl). PARTICULARS Mar 2016 Mar 2015
(T in lakhs)
A) Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note 3)
Secured
i) Loan form Power Finance Cororation Limited A/lc RAPDRP 346 0
i) Loan form Rural Electrification Corporation Limited 23484 39754
iy | Loan from Power Finance Corporation Limited 33667 22667
iv) | Mid-Term loan from Canara Bank 0 3332
Unsecured
V) Loan from State Govt. 48904 36049
vi) | Loan from Power Finance Corporation (Against Govt. Guarantee) 182 664
vii) | Loan from Rural Electrification Corporation (against Govt. Guarantee) 2713 2124
Bonds :
viii}| 8.5% WBSEE Power Bonds Series 1/2018 2347 2347
Sub Total 111643 106937
B) | Interest accrued on borrowings
i) Interest Accrued & Due - Loan from State Govt. 49125 32049
i) Interest Accrued but not Due - 8.5% Pension Trust Bonds 2016
(Against Govt. Guarantee) 13005 13005
iy | Accrued but not due on borrowings 36958 33381
Sub Total 99088 78435
C) | Other payables
i) Earnest Money Deposit from Contractors 1909 1382
i) Security Deposits from Contractors 6846 5247
iy | Liability for O & M Supplies / Works 14596 8866
iv) | P F Money of Trustees Received for Distribution 0 128
v) Electricity Duty Payable to Government Alc 17760 16702
vi) | Electrcity Duty control Ajic (ED to be paid to Govt. after recovery 16696 21075
from consumer}
vii) | Other liabitities 30345 26349
Sub Total 88152 79749
Total (A+B+C) 298883 265121

9.1 Electricity Duty payable to Govt. becomes due atter 60 days from the end of the month of collection
from consuiners.

9.2 The company is not liable to pay electricity duty amounting
lakhs) lor which demand was raised but collection will be

amount kept under a separate head
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9.3 Other lability of ¥ 30345 lakhs (previous year ¥ 26349 lakhs) includes ¥ 11095 (previous year
T 7108) lakhs on account of other statf related hability.

NOTE No-10 - Short Term Provisions

As at 31st As at 31st
NS;. PARTICULARS Mar 2016 Mar 2015
(¥ in lakhs)
A) Provision for employee benefits
i) Staff Related Liabilities & Provisions 273943 256657
B)| Others
i) Liability for Expenses 23362 12838
i) Other Liability & Provisions 63283 6654
Sub-total 86645 18492
Total (A+B) 360588 276149

[0.1 Total StaiTrelated hability for Terminal Benelit including long-term provisions ay mentioned in Note-6
olthe Company as al the end o['the year was T 297141 lakhs (previous year ¥ 282309 lakhs)

(150 ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015-2016



"2AJIASIY] NS 10 INO PAIDILISUOD $1388 Y PAXI ] JO JUNOLUER
uonedudap o 10} PUEIND[ED JBaA AU} JO uoneddop [B107 AN WO PIINPII FBA (SHPISqNE pu' Juelny [erde))) Junoeaoy
AALISIY JO AN[RA PAZNIOWR Y] SUI (SUNP] RIFT1 & a4 snotaaad) Syl 151 2 JO UNOWR Wy (1] (s Jo d5uRyd
O] 20 1] |BNPISIL OU TUIARL $)055E Jo do(] poziroule-un SWaq sUNel ¢Sp £ ‘SYNe[ 08¢ 2 4o wnowe poutad Joud Surpnoun

SUNB| TEFTY 2 JBSA SNOIALU Y SLNE| | 5769 2 01 SIUNOWE 1824 21 SuLmp pagieyd (IUaunsnlpeiaye) uoeioandap Jounowe ay i ||

£LOEOP) | 6Z/6L9L | £59Z66 | O £056. lseLls | ZaseLoz 0 §5/Z/T | ¥95086) 1e3f snojadld
67.619)1 | PZ99ELL | PEBLLS | ¥TST 50218 €59765 | bEL29ZT | ¥2ST £6.961 |Z8c2EzT (D+g+Y) [BIC) puRIig
02681 | 9ZELb 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0ZSREL (3] [eoL-ang
GEF9T 9492 58997 S1BUID)
696601 | ¥0BS0L 695604 uonainsiq
9Lz 99 alz UOBIBURG)
ssauboig v spop [epden (D
8261 #90£ vE8) (8.2) 965 096 868% 0 0002 8682 (g) |eyoL-gng
o0F 9002 g 0 6E 001 0052 0 000z 005 (SID)s1essy slqibuely|
{pojessuab Ajeuisiu) JoN
8eGL 8501 ovel (8:2) 202 093 8667 0 0 36£7 ~a1eM)jog JaIndwo)) s1assy sjqibuziu; |(g
VLZBLYL | FECZO6SL | 00009 | ZOSC 60148 £69165 | £gZe9zz | vise €B/E6L | $960.0Z (v) Ie1o1-ang
70pes Z5066 08I5L £e6 61691 ¥eLl§ ZE9TLL 0 ¥699Z | 85L9FL [e30L-gng
#OGE €18 620} 0 12l 206 ¥y 0 ae 908Y suoners bupeisusg 1e saiedg [eyded
006F8 55756 ZHoLL £eh 75891 £6055 15299} 0 96997 | £556¢) SuR BlAIRG /SN Aedg
0 0 641 0 0 6.1 BELl 0 i 611 Auedwo) sy) o) Buibuojeg 10u jessy
ue ul Bugnsay anppuadx 3 jeuden
198065} | Z8LEGYL | 022965 | 698) 051b9 66EES | LOVE8OZ | vZST 660.9% | 9Z8VZ6L [0]1-qhg
099c7 | 65422 89581 (Lgg) £66E i ! LTl ! 1hLE F508¢ guswdinb3 sao
0508 vILE 049} 4 £e5 0971 vrop £7¢ 159 1]k S2UMLXI4 e aunjuIng
£z ¥4 €61 0 z LSl vl 0 i vl S3IUEA
1999c6 | 9908€0) | €Ty | 91 IR 82568¢ | 60929rL 191 LS0yL | s0TEEgL RIGHMBN E(geD) ‘Saul
pGr0zZZ | 258912 £2998 I LBrOL £9£8. 6.950€ R4 £999 1£9867 AIBUIYORY B 1uBld
AR 0622 Z69F 98y §1E 6587 78742 98P LIELL 16591 YO D) JBUND)
LBEOSL | LBarL 68T g ZPo% 5818 0££Z8} g z6 acta SYIOjA D NEIpAH
ZG98¢ 21168 20891 frad) 8001 LZELL 174395 rag! 8717 €655 sfiuppng
9879 798/ 0 0 0 0 788, 0 rr9l 329 sjybiny pue g pue
'sppssy ajqyfive] |y
(9-7) =(11)| (6-g)=laL) |{8-1+0) =(6)] (8) (2) {9) (pe+2)= (s} (p) () (2) {1)
feaf ay) jo =, ! e - SIIE] .
S 22400 | HZCOL B g | SHZIOIS| ML | iy | sunp | HE S
gy wg sUONANPa
{syeq ul 2 ) ¥ooig 18N (suyerul 2 ) uoneaidag (Sysfe) ur 2 } ¥00(g $50iD) sle|naiued

S13SSV d3XId - LL-ON 310N

ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015-2016



SECTOR WISE CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

( Tin lakhs)

Particulars As on Net Ne’_t Capitalzed As on
01.04.2015 | Additions [g\?j?uusﬁar?gﬁt/ F(II;%”:;‘?S ks | 31032016
(1) (2) (3} (4) (5) (6) = (2+3-4-5)

Capital Works-in-Progress

GENERATION 2116 10018 0 7458 4676
DISTRIBUTION 47984 89760 0 90861 46883
RE 651985 69218 0 68182 63021
OTHERS 26435 4188 0 3877 26746
Grand Total 138520 173184 0 170378 141326
Previous year 179257 202104 0 242841 138520

1.2

11.4

1.6

1.7

11.8

As per revised accounting policy ol the Company individual assets valued F 5000 or less has been
depreciated as per normal rate instcad of charging full value of asscts in the ycar of acquisition. As a
result, T 22 lakhs was less charged as Depreeiation in the current financial year.

Depreciation is provided on straight line method based onuseful life of assets and normis specified in the
Regulations notified by the WBERC. Ministry of Power, Govt. of  India (GOI) and Ministry of
Corporate Aftairs (MCA), GOl were approached through Govt. of West Bengal tor coneurrence. The
approval of MCAwas issucdon 31.05.2011.

Distribution, Metering and other Generation assets capitalized during the year was I 170378 lakhs
(previous year ¥ 242841 lakhs ). Fixed Asset of nil (previous year T 9849 lakhs) constructed by the
Central public sector Undertakings (CPSU) under Rajiv Gandhi Gramin Vidyutikaran Yoyona
(RGGVY) scheme was incorporated in the accounts. Pending order [rom Govi. ol West Bengal
regarding constderation of taking over the valuce of asscts constructed by CPSUs the same was balanced
by crediting capital liability account.

During the financial year 2015-16 total value of assets of I 29706 lakhs (previous year € 3103 lakhs) as
constructed and put into operations by New Town Electric Supply Company Limited (NTESCL) was
recelved fom NTESCL and constdered by capitalization.

Total pending order [rom Govt. ol West Bengal regarding consideration of taking over value ol assets
stands to T 141949 lakhs (Previous year T 141949 lakhs)whichislying in Capital liability account.

In absence of proper documents, lands are treated as freehold land. Considering the spread of the
company, activities have been imtiated for searching ol documents and classification ol land will be
done based on the appropriale documents.

All capital costs iucluding purchase of fixed assets arc initially booked under CWIP Account. The
amount of CWIP balances as on 31.03.2016 ¥ 141326 lakhs (previous year € 138520 lakhs) includes
the interestand employee cost capitalized in 2015-16
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11.9 Rajiv Gandhi Gramin Vidyutikaran Yojona (RGGVY). The scheme launched by Govl. of India [or
100% clectrification in rural arca was also mostly implemented in West Bengal for which the brict
particulars under 10" plan scheme, 11" plan scheme & 12" plav scheme are stated below.

Sl ; Amountin Z Amountin Z Amount in ¥
Particulars

No. lakhs {10th Plan) | lakhs (11th Plan) | lakhs {(12th Plan)

1. | Fund received during Plan period 4717 99748 14192

2. | Interest accrued on idle fund {Net of TDS) 95 968 451

3. | Total Fund {1+2} 4812 100766 14643

4. | Capital Expenditure including advance 5525 100163 13791

11.10 Backward Region Grant Fund (BRGF) New scheme launched by Govt. of [ndia for electrification in
West Bengal for which the particulars are state below.

S| y Amount in
AL Particulars = lakhs

1. | Fund received during the Plan period 251110

2. | Interest accrued on idle fund 10462

3. | Total Fund {1+2) 261572

4. | Capital Expenditure including advance 191812
11.11 Deen Dayal Upadhyava Gram Jyoti Yojana {DDUGIY), Integrated Power Development Scheme

(IPDS), Scch Bandhu : New scheme launched by Govt. of India for clectrification in West Bengal for
which the brief particulars are stated below,
Sl. _ DDUGJY IPDS Sech bandhu
Particuiars ; A ]

No. Amount in F lakhs | Amount in ¥ lakhs |Amount in ¥ lakhs
1. | Fund received during Plan period 25446 13783 50000

2. | Interest accrued on idle fund 603 147 6038

3. | Total Fund {1+2) 26049 13930 56038

4. | Capital Expenditure including advance 1175 705 NII
11.12 Other schemes for which the brief particulars are stated below.

Sl. , WBREP ICZM

Particulars ; i

No. Amount in & lakhs Amount in ¥ lakhs
1. | Fundreceived 85000 2966

2. | Interest accrued on idle fund {Net of TDS) 153 3

3. | Total Fund {1+2} 95153 2969

4. | Capital Expenditure including advance 91220 2958
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Note No. 12 - Non Current Investment

Sale of
R Investment/ ANk "
: itions | Redemtion [AAJUStf  AS ON
Particulars 01.04.2015 | Addiiens | ot | ment | 31.03.2016
ures
{ T in lakhs)
A} Trade Investtments (In joint Venture Companies)
(i) New Town Electric Supply Co. Ltd. (Unquoted.) 494 0 0 0 494
(49323 Equity Shares of ¥ 1000 Each fully paid up)
(i) West Bengal Green Energy Development
Corporation Ltd. (unquoted)
175
(1750002 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 Each fully paid up 0 0 e g
out of which 2 No of Share of § 10 each fully
paid-up received free of cost)
Sub-total 669 0 0 175 494
B) Other Investment
(i) Investmentin Shares of Power Exchange Indlg Ltd 400 0 0 0 400
{4000000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 Each fully paid up)
(i} Other Investment 121 0 0 121
Less : Provision for diminution of investment (121) 0 0 0 (121}
Sub-total 400 0 0 0 400
Total (A+B) 1069 0 0] 175 894
Previous year 1069 0 0 0 1089

12.1 The Govt. of West Bengal revested "Other Investment” amounting to ¥ 121 lakhs as appearing in note-

12 as on 31.03.2016 through Final Transter scheme as investment in Govt. Securtties. However, since

no confirmation from Govt. of West Bengal was received on such balance and no paper i support of

imveslmenl was available, entire amount was provided under Prolit & Loss Account of WBSEDCL

during the year 2008-2009

12.2 As per dircetion ol the Govl. of West Bengal entire share capital of West Bengal Green Energy

Development Corporation Ltd. was transterred to Govt of West Bengal. The Consideration of & 175

lakhs against such transter is pending.

12.3 Theinvestments are carried at cost less provision [or dinimution [or value ol Tnvestment.

124 Agregate amountofunquoted investment ¥ 894 lakhs ( previous year ¥ 1069 lakhs)
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Note No. 13 - Long Term Loans and Advances

As at 31st As at 31st
PARTICULARS Mar 2016 Mar 2015
(T in lakhs)
A) Capital Advances
Sucured, considered good 62451 19337
Unsecured, considered good 0 0
Doubtful 0 0
Less : Provision for doubtful advances 0 0
Sub total 62451 19337
B) Security Deposits
Secured, considered good 0 0
Unsecured, considered good 0 0
Less : Provision for doubtful deposits 0 0
Sub total 0 0
C) Loans and advances to related parties
Secured, considered good 0 0
Unsecured, considered good 0 0
Less : Provision for doubtful loans and advances 4] 0
Sub total 0 0
D) Others
Commitment Advance 175 175
Advance Income Tax & TDS {Net of Provision for taxation) 4085 4052
Others 15000 15000
Sub total 19261 19227
Total (A+B+C+D) 81712 38564

13.1 Long term loans and advances include capital advances of 62451 lakhs (previous year F 19337
fakhs) as on 31.03.2016 considered good and fully realizable from the Contractors / Suppliers. As a
result, no provision on doubtful advances has been considered in the accounts. This has been done as per

the poliey approved by the Board of Dircctors.

13.2 Long term loans and advances include a sum of T 120 lakhs (previous ycar T 120 lakhs) paid to
Ghogarpalli Integrated Power Company Litd. and 35 lakhs (previous year 55 lakhs) to Tatiya

Andhra Power Projects as commitment advance against allocation ol powcrto WBSEDCTLL.

13.3 Advance Income Tax & TDS mcludes Advance Tax and TDS ol 7639 lakhs (previous year T 8909
lakhs) and Provision for taxation of 3553 lakhs (previous year ¥ 4857 lakhs).

13.4 Long term loans and advances include inter-unit account balance of T 15000 lakhs (previous year

Z 15000 lakhs) of erstwhile WBSEDR inherited by WBSEDCL vide.

Notification number 313-FO/0O/3R-29/2006 dated 19.09.2008 of Govt. of West Bengal.
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Note No - 14 - Other non-current assets

As at 31st As at 31st
PARTICULARS Mar 2016 Mar 2015
(¥Fin lakhs)

A}Long Term Trade Receivables

Accrued Arrear for sale of quer {Arrear for 2011-2012, 2012-2013, 0 32239

2013-14 & 2014-15 as per Tariff order)
B} Others

Regulatory Assets 443929 583872

Total (A+B) 443929 616111

141 The amount of ¥ 443929 lakhs (previous year ¥ 583872 lakhs) is realizable from regulatory

mechanism from the financial year 2017-18 & onwards.

Note No-15 - Current Investment

As at 31st As at 31st
PARTICULARS Mar 2016 Mar 2015
(¥Fin lakhs)
0
Total 0 ]
Note No-16- Inventories
As at 31st As at 31st
PARTICULARS Mar 2016 Mar 2015
(¥Fin lakhs)
Stores & Spares
Stock of Materials 47764 53288
Materials in Transit 3496 660
Materials Stock Excess / Shortage Pending Investigation 2742 361
Total 54002 54309

16.1 Inallstares, the physical verification of stock was conducted during the period.

16.2
engaged from Chartered Accountant & CostAccountant Firms.

16.3
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Verification of the inventory holding stores was conducted in presence of independent verifier,

Valuation of closing stock of Stores was at cost being lower than the Net Realizable Value.
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Note No. - 18 : Cash and Bank Balance
As at 31st As at 31st
NSol. PARTICULARS Mar 2016 Mar 2015
(T in lakhs)
A) Cash & Cash Equivalents
i) Balances with Bank
with Current Account 55098 26382
Bank deposits with original maturity upto 3 months 50807 9935
i) Remittance-in-Transit 723 13
iii) Cheque, Draftin hand 1121 4823
iv) Cashinhand 238 108
V) Cash Imprest with Staff 64 75
Sub-total 108051 41336
B) Other Bank Balance
i) Fixed Deposits with Bank 106912 108033
Sub-total 106912 108033
Total (A+B) 214963 149369

18.1  Total creditin Bank held under default Escrow mechanism is ¥ 376536 lakhs (previous year ¥ 328404
lakhs)

8.2 Fixed deposits are mainly related o unutihized lund ol Rajiv Gandhi Gramin Vidyutikaran Yajona
(RGGVY), Deen Dayul Upadhyaya Gram Jyot Yojuna (DDUGIY), Integrated Power Developmenl
Scheme (IPDS). Backward Region Grant Fund (BRGF), Restructured Accelerated Power
Development Reforms Program (R-APDRP), Sech Bandhu cte. received for utilization for project
work.

18,3  Qut of total Fixed Deposit wath Bank ot T 157719 lakhs (previous year ¥ 117968 lakhs), following
Short term loan (including cash credit) & Letter of Credit facility availed under lien -

As on 31st As on 31st
S NiaSain cros Mar 2016 | Mar 2015
(Z in lakhs)
1 Fixed Deposits with Bank under lien for short Term loan & Cash Credit 79643 85506
2 Fixed Deposits with Bank under lien for default Letter of Credit 9583 9361
Total 89226 94867
18.4 Fixed Deposit with Bank having maturity more than 12 months nil (previous yzar 107 lakhs)
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NOTE NO. - 18 : Short - term loans and advances

As at 31st As at 31st
PARTICULARS Mar 2016 Mar 2015
(Fin lakhs)
a} Advances to related parties - -
b) Other advances
unsecured, Considered good
Short-term loans and advances 29009 9801
Miscellaneous Loans and Advances 4717 1242
Loans and Advances to Staff-Interest free 1744 1831
Loans and Advances to Staff-Interest bearing 230 258
Total (A+B) 35700 13132

19,1 The short term Toans and Advances balance of & 29009 lakhs as on 31.03.20106 (previous year 9801
lakhs) considered good and [ully realizable [rom the Contractors / Suppliers etc. As a resull, no
provision on doubtful advances has becn considered in the accounts. This has been done as per the

policy approved by the Board of Directors.

NOTE NO. - 20 - Other current assets

As at 31st As at 31st
PARTICULARS Mar 2016 Mar 2015
(¥ in lakhs)
A) Receivable towards claims & services Rendered
----- Considered good
Sundry Receivables 14908 11099
Incentives, Ul Charges & Revenue Subsidy / Grant Receivables 386 14605
Amount receivable from Employees / Ex-employees 0 138
Claims & Commission Receivables 0 D
B) Income Accrued on Fixed Deposit but not due 3675 4382
C) Others
Deposils with various Statutory Authority 63 818
Regulatory Assets 850791 505412
Receivable on account of Swaping of Power 0 10288
Total (A+B+C) 869823 546742

20.1  Other current assets include prepaid expenses of 2190 lakhs (previous year ¥ 2385 lakhs),

unscheduled interchange (Ul)veceivable ¥ 281 lakhs (previous year ¥ 314 lakhs).

20,2 Total amountof regulatory assets as at the end of the financial year 2015-16 comesto & 1294720 lakhs
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(previous year ¥ 1089284 lakhs) as mentioned in Note no-14 & 20. During the year an amount of
T 135357 lakhs (previous year T 133849 lakhs) has been crystallized by WBERC in Taniff order of
2014-15. Further amounting (o ¥ 29909 lakhs (previous year ¥ 34499 lakhs) acerued as per petition
[Medbefore WBERC for FPPCA & APR of 2014-15 as perregulation. During the financial year 2015-
2016 New addition of regulatory reccivable of § 310884 lakhs (previous year T 299102 lakhs) has

bcen made.
Total amount of T 26146 lakhs which was disallowed m the APR & FPPCA for the financial year

2012-13, issued by the WBERC on 12-00-2014, against which hearing on petition filed by the
Company before Appellate Tribunal (APTEL) 1s going on.
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NOTE NO. - 21 : Revenue From Operation
2015-2016 | 2014-2015
PARTICULARS (Zin lakhs)
A) Earning form sale of electricity
Sale to Trader 100283 93457
Sale o Bulk Supply Licensee 32258 129552
Sale to Govt. of Sikim 689 555
Sub Total {1) 133230 223664
Other Consumers:
L & MV consumers (ED Excluded)
Domestic 524162 462859
Commercial 167455 160520
Irnigation 61962 57831
Short term Supply 276Y 1528
Public Utility / Specified institutions / Public Bodies 2233 1404
Cottage Industry, Artisan, Weavers nat run by electricity as motive power 183 157
Poultry, Horticullure, Food Processing elc. 138 147
Public Water works 17523 10301
Induslries 68170 70267
Street Lighting 14762 11853
Privale Educational Insiitution and Hospitais 73 41
Commercial (B-10) 11092 10848
Industrial {B-1D) 27605 29293
Other Consumer {C-1D) 2922 1918
Govt. School 269 157
L& MV Consumers not covered above 0 20
Sub-Total {II) 9501318 826252
HV and EHV Consumers (ED Excluded)
Public Utility 10816 12273
Industries 366216 453457
Cammunity lrrigation 2 3
Carmmercial Plantation 297 830
Commercial 74336 79073
Domeslic 1719 1706
Public Water Works and Sewerage 14647 15205
Sport Complex 291 308
Cold Storage 24796 26851
Emergency Supply 145 173
Traction Load for transport system 82314 85864
Sub-Total {llI) 595679 675743
Recovery for Theft of Power/Malpractices 31 28
Sub-Total {IV) 31 28
Swap Out of Power
Swap out of Power during 2015-16 out of swap in during 2G14-15 3091 Q
Swap out of Power during 2014-15 out of swap in during 2015-16 19849 G
Swap out of Pawer during 2014-15 which will be return back in future year 0 18403
Sub-Total (V) 22940 18403
Other Consumers Total (vi) =(ii + iii + iv+ v) 1519969 1520426
Gross Revenue from Sale of Pawer (i + vi) 1653199 1744090
Less: PF Rebate less penalty 22360 19856
Less: LF Rebate fess penalty 7464 11352
Less : Qther Specified Rebate 4050 4143
Add : Minimnum Charge 5135 5123
Add : Excess drawal charges 0 14
Less : Rebate ontimely payment 19902 21748
Less : Charges for Export of Power 867 52
Sub-total 1604691 1692076
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(B) Other Operating Revenue

2015-2016 | 2014-2015

PARTICULARS

{Fin lakhs)

Delayed Payment Charges from Customers 14526 22880
Deviation settlement Machanism (DSM) Receivable o965 218
Meter Rent 21507 20352
Rebate for timely payment of Power purchase / Transmission Charges Bill 4106 5132
Reconnection / Disconnection Fees 3730 3277
Income from Wheeling Charges 142 59
Other misc. charges from service to consumers premises 90 40

Sub-total 44666 51958

(C) Amount Realisable Through Regulatory Mechanism

2015-2016 | 2014-2015

PARTICULARS (i Takhs)
Amount Realizable through Tariff & APR 310884 299102
Less : Crystallisation of Regulatory Assets 105448 93350
Sub-total 205436 199752
Total (A+B+C) 1854793 1943786

211

21.6

21.7

The Revenue income from Sale of Power is accounted for on consumption month basis for the period
from April'l 5 to March'l 6. The amount related to consumption not billed within 3 1st March'l 6 was
laken mto Revenue from Sale of Power Accountas provision for Unbilled Revenue.

The rate of Tarill applied Lo raise the demands was the rate as [ixed by West Bengal Electncity
Regularity Commission (WBERC) along with Monthly Varable Cost Adjustment (MVCA) where
cverapplicable as perrules of WBERC.

During the tinancial year balance of SWAP out of Power to diffcrent utilitics outside the State was
considered as income on the basis of average purchasc cost of Power excluding Transmission Charges.
The amount of Llcctricity Duty claimied for recovery on behalfof Govt, of West Bengal during the vear
2015-16 was excluded froin Revenue from Sale of Power.

This year no revenue subsidy / grant was received by the company. However as per Tari(T order of
WBERC subsidy was allowed Lo the consumer by the Govl. ol West Bengal through energy bills of
WBSEDCL which had been compensated by the State Govt.

Rebate for timcly payment of Power purchase / Transmission charges includes & 3978 lakhs
(previous year ¥ 4251 lakhs) on Purchase of Power T 128 lakhs (previous year T 881 lakhs) for
Central Transmission charges & Nil (previous year Nil) for State Transmission charges.

Other misc charges include Transformer & other apparatus hiring Charges on which Service Tax was
collected.
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21.8

219

21.10

Income receivable on account of Deviation setllement Mechanism (DSM) (UT) has been considered in

the accounts based on weekly seltlernent period ol State Load Dispatch Center (SLDC).

Asum ot T 310884 lakhs (proevious yecar 299102 laklis) has been considered as per Regulation in the
accounts of 2015-16 as Income Reccivable through Regulatory Mcechanisim on account of Fuel &
Power Purchase Cost Adjustment (FPPCA) and Annual performance Review (APR) for the year 20£5-16
for which necessary petition will be submitted to the WBERC in due course. This includes net of
TO138 lakhs (previous year F 119560 lakhs) on account of arrear power purchase cost &

transmission charges incurred as per order of the respective regulatory authorities.

Asperpelition for FPPCA & APR [or the {inancial year 2014-1 5 iiled before WBERC, ¥ 29909 lakhs
{previous year F 34499 lakhs) has been accrued further as per Regulation of WBERC. The entire
amount ol 29909 lakhs (previous vear 34499 lakhs) has been considered in the accounts o 2015-16

as Income realizable through Regulalory Mechanism.

Further a sum of 135357 (previous year ¥ 133849 lakhs) of Regulatory asscts created in the year
prior to 2015-16 has been crystallized by the WBERC in the Tarift order of 2015-16. As the said
amount has already been considered as Income Realizable from Regulatory Mechanism in the
accounts prior to the accounts of 2015-16, tt has been deducted from income receivable through

Regulatory Mechanism & considered in theaccounts of 2015-16.

Accordingly a net amount of T 105448 lakhs (previous year T 99350 lakhs) has been deducted from

amount realization for the financial year 2015-16 & considered in the accounts,

Receivable through Regulatory Mechanism lor the year 2013-16 of 310884 lakhs {previous year
299102 lakhs) & additional claim considered as receivable through Regulatory Mechanism of
< 29909 lakhs {previous yeur 34499 lakhs) ior FPPCA & APR 0 2014-15 have been considered in
the accounts ol 2005-16 though the relevant orders have not been received [rom the Regulatory
Authority. It is presumed that tavorable orders for the full amount will be available. Inthe event of any
variation in the orders of WBRLDCL, adjustment of net profit & regularory assets may be neeessitated

to the extent of such variation.
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NOTE NO-22 : Other Income
2015-2016 2014-2015
PARTICULARS (% in lakhs)
A) Interest Income
Interest on Staff Loan & Advances 104 105
Interest on Loans & Advances to Licensees 33 9
Interest from Bank on Fixed Deposits & other Deposits 2341 7658
B) Dividend Income 94 74
C) Other non-operating Income

Income from Sale of Scrap 1103 2056
Consulting Income 180 44
ED Commission 1033 807
Interest from income Tax Authority G 203
Fine / Penalty imposed on a/c of theft of Power 1 108
Tender Paper 114 112
Rental from Staff Quarters 211 234
Rental from Contractors 16 18
Rental from Others 37 33
Penalty deducted from Contractor / Supplier 233 1594
Other misc. income 405 1171
Incentive for timely payment of Loan 422 322
Total (A+B+C) 6337 14548

221 During the year 2005-16, an amount o ¥ 94 lukhs (previous year ¥ 74 lakhs ) vecetved [rom New
Town Electrnic Supply Co. Lid. (NTESCL) as dividend against investment in equity shares ol § 494
lakhs.
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Note No - 23 : Purchase of Power & Transmission Charges
PARTICULARS = 5‘2(0; ?n llkh?s?‘ acl L
(A} Purchase of Power From Different Sources
i} Central Sectors
Demodar Valley Corporation 41109 70303
DVC (Arrear dues) (3063) {25)
Govt. of Sikim 3 5
National Thermal Power Corpaoration Limited 144424 161975
NTPC Limited (Arrear dues) (4990) (1521)
National Hydro Power Corporation Limited 56976 52556
NHPC Limiled (Arrear dues) 1639 1283
Power Trading Corporation Limited 35743 35440
Power Trading Carporation Limited (Acrear dues} 10 4
Sub-Total 271850 320020
i) State Sectors
Durgapur Projects Limited 4530 7507
Durgapur Projects Limited (Arrear dues) (78) {103)
Wesl Bengal Power Development Corporalion 594685 684859
WEBPDCL (Arrear dues) 40 116953
Sub-Total 599177 809216
iiiy Short Term
NVVNLTD 27839 20847
NVYN LTD {Arrear dues) 20 0
Power Trading Corporation Limited 90828 46198
Power Trading Corporation Limted (Arrear dues) 560 0
Power Exchange 42594 43243
Tata Power Trading Company Ltd 122191 86106
Tata Power Trading Company Ltd {Arrear dues) 8658 22
Adani Exports 23374 389
GMR Energy Trading Ltd 5810 2080
Sub-Total 321873 198885
iv) Private Sectors
Dishergarh Power Supply Company Limited ¢ 2987
CESC 2469 2838
C.E.S.C (Arrear dues} 82 0
ELECTROSTEEL 1775 1398
NEORA HYDROQ LIMITED 323 316
Nippon Power Limited 400 409
Tata Power Company Ltd 231 2777
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PARTICULARS 2015-2(0; (ian likhzs?m-zm 5
Kamarhatty Power Ltd {Arrear dues) 300 828
Shree Renuka Sugars Ltd 0 303
JSW Power Trading 1532 0
Himadri Chemicals & Indusiries Lta 1652 434
Rashmi Cemenit Ltd 131 24
Rashmi Cement Ltd {Arrear dues) 0 7
Ennore Coke Ltd 0] 255
Bengal Energy Limited 5350 4000
Bengal Energy Limiled {Arrear dues) 0 1955
Concast Bengal Industries Ltd 153 231
Shree Cement 1763 0
Jindal Power 0] 5980
Mittal Processors Pvt. Ltd. (Arrear dues) 0 5
Sub-Total 18361 24725
v) Non Conventional Source of Energy
WEBRADA 8
Sub-Total 8
vi) Swap - in Power
Swap-in of Power during 2015-16 oul of Swap-oul 2015-16 19849 0
Swap-in of Power during 2015-16 out of Swap-out 2014-15 13379 0
Swap-in of Power during 2014-15 out of Swap-out 2014-15 0 8114
Swap-in of Power during 2014-15 out of Swap-cut 2013-14 0] 32896
Sub-Total 33228 41010
Deviation settlement Mechanism (DSM) payable 7483 12826
Deviation settlement Mechanism {DSM) (Arrear dues) 59 0
Sum-Total (A) 1252037 1406690
(B) TRANS MISSION CHARGES FROM DIFFERENT SOURCES
Power Grid Corporation India Limited 45309 48280
PGCIL (Arrear dues) 2881 140
West Bengal State Electricity Transmission Company Limited 113880 95538
Power System operation corporation Ltd 543 545
NWHN Lid {Reimbursement for inlerstate transfer of solar power) 709 0
Sum-Total (B) 163321 144503
(C) ERPC Charges 385 az
(D) SLDC Charges 1467 1654
SLDC Charges (Arrear dues) 19 14
Total (A+B+C+D) 1417230 1552893
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Power Purchase expenditure accounting was made on consumption month basis.

Such costwas 76% (previous year 79%) of total cost. The average purchase of power cost is 384 paise
(previous year 380 paise) per kwh (Including transmission charges) for the current financial year.

The power purchase cost includes transmission charges of ¥ 163321 lakhs {previous year ¥ 144503
lakhs), paid / payable 1o WBSETCL I 113880 lakhs (previous year 95538 lakhs). Power Grid
Corporation India Ltd. I 48190 lakhs (previous year I 48420 lakhs), Power System Opcration
Corporation ¥ 543 lakhs (previous year I 545 lakhs) and NVVN Ltd I 709 lakhs for reimbursement
of Transnussion charges for interstate transfer of Solar Power from Rajasthan Rajya Vidyut Prasaran
Nigam Ltd. respectively.

SWAP-TN mn [rom dilTerent utilities outside the State was considered in the accounts and the same was
mecluded in the Power Purchase Cost on the basis ol average cost ol Power purchase excluding
transmission charges for the current financial year.

Note No.-24 : Employees Benefit Expenses
-201 14-

PARTICULARS 2005 2(0? ?n ]lkhz? 215
Salaries 27963 29454
Overtime 1362 1278
Dearness Allowance 32580 30839
Other Allowance 8208 8743
Bonus 1516 1344
Other Staff Cast 4127 3374
Staff Welfare Expenses 1181 1787
Employee Terminal Benefits 62672 59203
Sub-Total 139709 136022
Less Employees Cost Capitalised 22516 22089
Total 117193 113933

241

242

During the [mancial year Contribution (o Provident Fund was ¥ 2512 lakhs (Previous year ¥ 2221
lakhs).

Terminal Benetits (Disclosure Required under Revised AS-135)

The employees Pension Fund Scheme (employees opted for death cum retirement benefit), Gratuity
fund (all employees) managed by Pension Trustee and Gratuity Trustee are Defined Benefit Plan.
Obligations lor leave encashment on retirement and leave travel assistance are unlunded and the
payment ol such benefit is made by the Company. All obligations i.e. Pension, Graluity and Leave
Encashment arc recognized on the basis of Acturial valuation.

As per Acturial valuation report under Accounting Standard 15 (R 2005), of the CPF Trust Fund. no
liability is duc by the company to the CPE Trust 'und ason 31.03.2016
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24,4 Acruarial valuation of Pension, Gratuity and leave Encashment Benefitason31.03.2016
Table7:

Actuarial assumptions

Mortality Table : IALM (2006-08) ULTIMATIE

Superannuation Age © 00

Early retirements & disablement  : [0 per thousand p.a.
6 aboveage45
3 between 29and 45

I below age 29

Discountrale o 8.00%

[nNationrale o 6.00%

Return on Assel o 8.00%

Return on Asset . Notapphieable for Leave Encashment.
Remainingworkinglife 9 yearsincase ofPension

17 yearsincase ol Gratuily & Leave Encashment
Formulaused . Projected unit credit method

The above assumptions arc applicable tor Pension. Gratuity and Leave Encashment. The summarized
position of various defined benefits recognized in the Stateinent of Profit & Loss. Balance Sheet are as under
(Figures givenin | ]are for previous year)

Table - 1
Table showing changes in present value ol abligations as al 31.03.2016
Pension Gratuity E Leahve t
PARTICULARS {funded) {funded) e Q’i"i”
(7 lakhs) (7 lakhs) HORLECS
( T lakhs)
Present value of obligation at beginning of year 539879 47485 30339
[ 603634 ] [ 56218 1] [ 31160 1
Acquisition Adjustment 0 0 0
(0] (0] [0]
Interest Cost 49097 3305 2157
[46311 ] [3939] [2120]
Past Service Cost 0 0 0
(0] (0] (0]
Current Service Cost 43733 1476 3523
| 54309 ] [ 2287 ] [3026)
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Curtailment Cost 0 0 0
(0] (0] (0]
Settlement Cost 0 0 0
[0] [0] 101
Benefils Paid 52335 12343 6750
[ 49479 | [ 13949 ] [9310 ]
Actuarial gain / (loss) on obligations (26482 973 (3756)
[(14897)] [(1010)] [3342]
Present Value of Obligation at the end of Year 653882 40896 25513
[639879] [47485] [30339]
Table - 2
Table showing changes m fair value of Plan Assets as at 31.03.2016
Pension Gratuity E Leahve t
PARTICULARS {funded) (funded) (Eﬁ?sn??i?
( % lakhs) (% lakhs) MV
( ¥ lakhs)
Fair Value of Plan Asset at Beginning of year 418166 21256
[ 406663 ] [21437]
Acquisition Adjustment 0 0
(0] (0]
Expected Return on Plan Asset 33453 1700
[ 32533 ] (1715 Not
applicable
Contributions 28961 12653 as Scheme is
[ 23018 ] [11100] unfunded
Benefits Paid 52335 12343
. [ 49479 ] [13949]
Actuarial gain / {loss) on Plan Asset (19154 ) (2946)
[5430] [953]
Fair Value of Plan Asset at End of year 409051 20320 0
[418166 ] [21256] [0]
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Table - 3

Table showing Funded Status as at 31.03.20106

. ; Leave
Pension Gratuity 1 T
PARTICULARS (funded) (funded)
( T lakhs { T lakhs g
) ) ( T lakhs)
Present Value of Obligation at end of year 653883 40897
[ 639879 ] [ 47486 ]
Fair Value of Plan Asset at End Year 409051 20320
[418166] [21256 ] Not
Funded Status { 244832) ( 20577 ) applicable
[(221713}] [(26230)] as Scheme
) o | isunfunded
Unrecognised actuarial gain / loss at end of the year [0] [0]
{ 244832) { 20577 )
Net Asset (Liability) recognised in Balance Sheet [(221713}] [(26230)]
Table - 4
Tablc showing Expenscs Recognized in Statement of Profit / Loss as at 31.03.2016
: ; Leave
Pension Gratuity T T
PARTICULARS (funded) (funded) 1~ nfunded)
( T lakhs) { T lakhs)
( T lakhs)
Current Service Cost 43733 1478 3523
[54309] [2287 ] [3028]
Past Service Cost 0 0 0
(0] [0] [0]
Interest Cost 49097 3305 2157
[46312 ] [3939] [2120]
Expected Return on Plan Asset 33453 1700 0
[ 32533 ] [1715] [0]
Curtailment Cost 0 0 0
[0] [0] [0]
Settlement Cost 0 0 0
[0] [0] (0]
Actuarial gain / {loss) Recognised in the year {7297) 3919 (3756)
[ (20328)] [(1962)] [3342)
52080 7000 1924
Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit/ Loss [47760 ] [2549] [ 8488 ]

24.5 Liability on account of Lcave Travel Assistance (unfunded) as at 31.03.2016 has been shown by the

Actuary as ¥ 2980 lakhs (previous year & 2535 lakhs) excludes payment made during the vear 201 5-16
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24.6  As per final transfer scheme all obligations in respect of pension and other retirement benefits
mcluding provident fund who have retired from service ol the company before the effective date of
transfer shall be discharged by Trustees.

247 Employee cost has been capitalized as per the policy approved by the Board of Ihrectors and the same
has been accepted by WBERC al the ime ol determimation of Tari(T.

24.8  Asperorder of Govt. of West Bengal vide no. 984-PO/O/C-1V/IE-88/13 dated : 28.10.2015 (ellective
from O1.11.2015), 1029 numbcrs of employees ot WBSEDCL who have opted to serve in WBSETCL

have been released from the service of WBSEDCL. Necessary provisions on account of leave have

heen made in the accounts.

NOTE NO-25 : Finance Cost

NI AR 2015-2016 | 2014-2015
(¥ in lakhs)
A) Interest Expenses
(I} Interest on Capital Loans
Interest on State Government Loan 17375 17376
Interest on other Leans :
Interest on Lean frem Commergial Bank 0 0
Interest on Lean from REC Lid. 23204 22882
Interest on Loan from PFC Ltd. 2170 2282
Interest on Capital Bond 10117 100905
Interest on Public Bond 474 675
Less : Interest Capitalised 1488 1328
Sub-total 51852 51982
(ii) Interest on Working Capital Loans
Interest on Short Term Loan
Interest on Loan from Commercial Bank 5965 6240
Interest on Lean from PFC Ltd. 21903 15196
Interest on Loan from REC Lid. 4971 7585
Interest on Bank Over Draft
Interest on Over Draft from Commercial Bank 35012 31369
Sub-total 67851 60400
(iii) Interest on Pension Trust Bond 13005 13005
(iv) Interest on Consumer Security 10257 9687
Sub-total {A) 142965 135074
B) Other finance Costs
Government Guarantee Fees 41 68
Bank Charges 2151 1060
Sub-total {B) 2192 1128
Total (A+B) 145157 136202
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[nterest on loan was capitalized as per the policy approved by the Board of Directors.

In absence of any stipulated rate of interest on REC loan (due o amalgamation of WBREDCL)
considered in the accounts based onavailable mterest rate on State Govl. Loan.

Total interest capitalized during the yearwas ¥ 1488 lakhs (previous year ¥ 1328 lakhs) on qualitving
Assets,

NOTE NO-26 ; Depreciation
2015-20186 2014-2015
PARTICULARS
(T in lakhs)
Depreciation 65791 61854
Small & Low Value items writlen off 0 48
Total 65791 61902

26.1

5

(172

Total Depreciation of F 65791 lakhs (previous year ¥ 61902 lakhs) and prior period depreciation of
Nil (previous year ¥ 530 lakhs) (as per note 27), un-amortized depreciation of assels having no
restdual life due to change of useful lite as per Regulation of W BLERC Nil (previous year ¥ 453 lakhs)
(as per note 2) arrived after adjustment of amortization ol Reserve of & 15915 lakhs (previous year
T 12418 lakhs) (as per note 2). Thus total depreciation accounted in the current financial year of

F 81705 lakhs (previous vear F 75303 lakhs). (as pernote 11).

To comply with the Regulation of WBERC, rate of depreciation of certain category of fixed assets
have been changed fromn the financial year 2014-15. As a result, Nil (previous year T 453 lakhs) has
been adjusted with Reserve & Surplus for unamortized depreciation of assets having no residual ife,
Unamortized depreciation amounting to ¥ 3781 lakhs (previous year F 3781 lakhs) on tixed assets
having residual life has been charged in the aceounts & balance F 5906 lakhs (previous year F 9688

lakhs) olamortized depreciation would be charged over the remaining use[ul lile of those assels.

26.2  As perrevised accounting policy of the Company individual assets valued F 5000 or less has been

depreciated as per normal rate instead ol charging full value olassets in the yeuar o Macquisition.
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NOTE NO-27 : Other Expenses
Pt My 20152016 | 2014-2015
(Zin lakhs)
A) Generation of Power :
Lubricant and Consumable Stores 0 304
Diesel Qil 0 0
Station Supplies 0 0
Sub-total (A) 0 304
B} Outsourced Johs : Manpower Related
Data Warehousing 0 3
Meter Reading & Bill Distribution 10091 7059
Sub-Station Maintenance 3303 3470
Generating Station Maintenance 1061 769
Franchisee 581 467
Line Maintenance (includes expenses for Vehicle) 12070 10866
Collection Franchisee 1492 1313
Security Expenses 3410 3213
Call Center Expenses in line with ZRC & CRC as per SOP regulation 2494 2465
Back office job 181 119
Communication Systems (Lease Rental) 2046 1767
Mobile Maintenance Service (includes expenses for Vehicle) 11965 9380
Complain Management Mechanism 315 341
Sub-total (B) 49009 41232
€} Repair & Maintenance Expenses :
Plant & Machinery 9559 7964
Buildings 6806 573
Civil Works 792 443
Hydraulic Works 510 599
Lines, Cables, Net Work etc 19719 16152
Vehicles 19 15
Furniture & Fixtures 84 343
Office Equipments 2621 2659
Sub-total (C}) 33990 28748
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D) Administrative & General Expenses :

Rent, Rates, Taxes 8816 6631
Insurance 808 555
Telephone, Postage, Telegram & Telex Charges 549 685
Legal Charges 628 402
Audit Fees 205 148
Ceonsultancy Charges 143 155
Technical Fees 692 1799
Training Expenses 263 401
Conveyance & Travel 4693 4456
Fees & Subscriptions 220 129
Books & Periodicals 2 5
Printing & Staticnary 1491 1180
Advertisements 377 727
Water Charges 17 15
Part Time Employee Charge 705 696
Hospitality-Food and Beverage 121 117
Miscellaneous Expenses 125 96
License Fees 205 170
Incidental expenses related to stores 914 971
Director Sitting Fees 9 8
Power Exchange Charges 287 264
Expenditure on social Responsibility 144 41
Sub-total (D) 21414 19651
E) Other Debits :
Bad Debls Written off-Dues from Customers 0 83
Compensation injuries on Death / Damages Staff 8 8
Compensation injuries on Death / Damages Outsiders 169 191
Compensation to Consumers Order of Commission 62 258
Interest on Delayed Payment 4149 0
Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debt 1742 1654
Other Provision 1114 121
Sub-total (E) 7244 2315
F} Net Prior period Income / (expenditure ) :
Prior Period incomes
Interest income for prior period 0 51
Other income relating to prior period 13 380
Excess provision written Back 126 1949
Total Credits (a) 139 2380
Prior Period Expenses / Losses
Operating Expenses of Previous years 723 0
Employees Costs relating to Previous years 0 0
Depreciation unprovided in Provious Years 0 530
Total Debits (b) 723 530
Sub total (F) (584) 1850

Total (A+B+C+D+E-F)

112241

90400
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27.1 Rgpair & maintcnance Costof’ ¥ 33990 lakhs (previous year T 28748 lakhs). The activity wisc such
costs are - for Generation T 4576 lakhs (previous year T 2856 lakhs) tor Distribution and Metering
T 24272 lakhs (previous vear ¥ 23343 lakhs) & for others T 5142 lakhs (previous year § 2549
lakhs).
27.2 Repair & maintenance Cost ol Generation of 4576 lakhs (previous year T 2856 lakhs), includes
T 3293 lakhs (previous year ¥ 1335 lakhs) for Purulia Pump storage project.
27.3 Rent, Rate & Taxes of T 8810 lakhs (previovs year T 6631 lakhs) includes Rent ¥ 1138 lakhs
{previous year ¥ 1010 lakhs). Rate and Taxcs including Services Tax ¥ 7678 lakhs (previous year
T 5621 lakhs)
27.4 Paymentlo Audilorsas :
sl. 2015-2016 | 2014-2015
No. PARTICULARS (Zinlakhs)
Payment Lo Statutory Auditor :-
I Statutory Audit Fee | 5.00 11.00
2 Certification Fecs 4.00 6.00
Sub-total 19.00 17.00
Cost Audil Fee 0.75 1.00
Internal Audit & other Audit fees 185.25 130.00
Total 205.00 148.00

The above fees are excluding Service Taxes.

27.5

27.6

27.7

Other Debit of 3 7244 lakhs (previous year T 2315 lakhs) includes ¥ 2856 lakhs (previous year
< 1775 1akhs) on account of various provisions, as perorder of Supreme Court Inlerest ol 3 4149 was
paid to the vendor lor project work of PPSP (previous year nil) & others I 239 lakhs (previous year
T 540 1akhs).

Total valuc of asscts / matcrials lost duc to theft, burglary, traud cte. was T 38 lakhs (previous year
< 37 lakhs) and the entire amount was provided in the accounts of 2015-16.

Excess provision writlen back ol ¥ 126 lakhs (previous year ¥ 1949 lakhs) includes power purchase
cost Nil {previous year T 15 lakhs). Administrative & General Expenses ol 97 lakhs (previus year
< 5356 lakhs), Repairs & maintenance expnses of Nil (previous year ¥ 343 lakhs). Employees Costof
T 29 lakhs {previous year T 835 lakhs).

Prior period expenscs includes operating Expenscs of Previous year of 723 lakhs includes
Administrative & General Expenses of ¥ 709 lakhis and initerest & other Finance costof ¥ 14 ]akhs.
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NOTE NO-28 : Tax Expenses

e 2015-2016 | 2014-2015
TSN {Tin lakhs)
Provision for Income Tax 1360 1022
Total 1360 1022

28.1

28.2

283

The Income Tax Asscssment of the company has been completed up-to the Asscssment year 2013-
2014 and there are no lcgitimate demands oulstanding against the company ason 31.03.2016

According to the Govt. of West Bengal Order No. 179/PO/0O/3R-29/2006 dated 14.06.2007 all Taxcs
asscssments, appeal cases tiled and pending before the respective tax authoritics. High Court of
Supreme Court aganist WBSEB as on 31.03.2007 have been assigned to WBSEDCL.

WBSEDCL and WBSETCL being the restructured companics under Elcetricity Act. 2003 carry
forward busincss loss and unabsorbed depreciation as allowed by the income Tax Authority to
WBSEB sharcd between the WBSEDCL and WBSETCL on the basis ot Nct Fixed Asscts of the

Companics.

The Company being a company providing clectricity services is cligible to claim deduction under
Section 80 [A of the Income Tax Act. 1961

The Company is liable to pay MAT as there is book profit in its books of accounts. MAT Credit is not
recognized as it is expected that the company will not pay income tax during the 'specified period' as
laid downinthe Income Tax Act 1901

29.  Expenditure in Forcign Currency
291 During the hinancial year 2015-16 an amount o 148 lakhs (previous year ¥ 149 lakhs) has been
considered in the accounts as tluctuation of foreign exchange rate and adjusted with Fixed assets as per
AS-11.
292 Eaming in Foreign Currency during the (inancial year is - Nil {previous year - Nil)
30. Earningpershare
S| No PARTICULARS 2015-2016 2014-2015
i) Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss attributable to Equity 2158 (0872
Share helders { Zin lakhs) i T
- Weighted average number of Equity shares used as denominator for 256 25
D | caloulating EPS (Number in lakhs) 22367 22567
1il) | Face Value of Share in ( ¥) 10 10
iv) | Basic & Diluted Earnings per share ( Z) 0.10 0.09
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31. Related Party Disclosurers as required by Accounting Standard 18(AS-18}

1. Joint Ventures (where transactions have taken place during the year)

New Town Llectrie Supply Co. Ltd.

West Bengal Green Eonergy Development Corporation Ltd. (ccased since 24/02/2016)

2. Kev Managcerial Personne]

Name

Designation

Period of Tenure

Sri Rajesh Pandey

Chairman and
Managing Director

From 02.01.2016 to 31.03.2016

Sri Narayan swaroop Nigam

Chairman and
Managing Director

From 01.04.2015 to 02.01.2016

Sri Kalyan Kumar Ghosh

Director (Finance ) & CFO | From 01.04.2015 to 31.03.2016

Sri Debidas Datta Director (Generation) From 01.04.2015 to 31.03.2016
Sri Ranjit Kumar Majumder Director (Distribution) From 01.04.2015 to 31.03.2016
Sri Sujay Sarkar Director (HR) From 31.08.2015 to 31.03.2016
Sri Tapan Kanti Rudra Director (HR) From 01.04.2015 to 31.08.2015
Sri Niranjan Saha Director (Projects) From 30.04.2015 to 31.03.2016
Sri Ajay Kumar Pandey Director (R & T) From 29.05.2015 to 31.03.2016
Sri PK. Banerjee Company Secretary From 01.04.2015 to 31.03.2016
3. Details of Transaction :- (Z in Jakhs)
Nature of Transaction Keypl\gzra;;?fgrent
Remuneration under meaning of the Companies Act, 2013 139
(83)
Independent Directors-Fees 9
(8)

Company being a wholly state owned enterprise, no disclosure as regards to related party relationship

with other state controtled enterprises (joint ventures) is required according to the Accounting Standard

18.

5. Disclosurc of the Company's intcrest in jomnt Venture companics as per Accounting Standard 27 -

Name of the Company

Description of Interest

% of Interest

New Town Electric Supply Co. Ltd.

Core Business

50%
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32. Other Disclosure
1.1 Total pavable amount due to MSMED Industrial Undertakings as could be identified for over 45
days was Nil (Previous vear Nil)
1.2 According (o the management there is no indicalion ol impairment which requires re-estiimating the
recoverable amount of Asscls,
1.3 Contingent Liability & Commitments { 1 lakhs)
As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2015
Sl. . Amount Amount
No Particulars (% in Remarks (Zin Remarks
lakhs) lakhs)
(A) | Contingent Liabilities
. . . Claims against the : :
h
) | Sams spaneteconeany 1ol | 35z | Somponyn o1 | o gan
acknowledged as debts
i) | Kamarhalty Power Limited 291 Delayed payment 521 Delayed payment
Surcharge Surcharge'
(B) Guarantees
i) | Guarantees to Banks & financial 66006 Against Default of 63720 Against Default
Institutions against Letter of Credit payment of Payment
Guaranteesto PFC on behalf of
if) WestBepgaI Green Energy development 456 Loan 456 Loan
corporation Ltd.
(C)| Commitments
i) | Estimated amount of Contracts
remaining to be executed on capital 207278 202456
account & not provided for
(D) | Other Commitments
iy | Income Tax cases of erstwhile West 375 Disputed addition of 375 Dispuled addition
Bengal Rural Energy Development income for the AY- of income for the AY-
Corporation Limited. 2001-02, 2003-04 and 2001-02, 2003-04
2004-05, and 2004-05
ii) | Sales Tax/ VAT / Service Tax 6346 | Meter Rent, Rental 6256 Meter Rent
income under sub- under Sub-judice,
judice etc. etc
iii) | Municipal Tax 12 Disputed claims of 280 Disputed claims
different Municipality of different
Municipalily
iv) | Contractor Claim under arbitration / 38 | Disputed /sub-judice | 1119 | Disputed / sub-judice
Courtcase
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‘ Billing Dispute & Bitling Dispute
Misc Court C
v) isc Court Cases 370 Others 423 R others.
vi} | Electricity Duty 20979 | Disputed 14933 Disputed
Attached as per Attached as per
vii) | Amount attached as per court order 20 direction of Ithe court 20 direction of .the court
The matter is The matter is
sub-judice sub-judice
viil) | Amount deposited as per court order 38 The matter is sub- 71 The matter is sub-
judice judice
ix) | Central Electricity Authority 3347 | Loan including 3347 | Loan including
interest thereof interest thereof
In Term of our Report of even date _ For & on behalf of the Board
For DE & BOSE '
CHATERED ACCOUNTANTS e
FRN. 302175E éﬁ@/ Rﬁ/
{K.K. Ghosh) (P.K. Banerjee) (Rajesh Pandey)

Director (Finance) &

rector (Fin ) Company Secretary  Chairman & Managing Director
Chief Financial Officer

T

(Tarit Dasgupta)
Partner
Membership No. 053380

Place : Kolkata
Date : 04th July, 2016
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WEST BENGAL STATE ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION COMPANY

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016

LIMITED

As at 31* March
Particulars Nﬁée 2016
(T in lakhs)
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Shareholders’ funds
(a) [ Share capital (1) 225674
{b) | Reserves and surplus (2) 837117
Sub-total 862791
2 Share application money pending allotment
Sub-total 0
3 Non-current liabilities
{a) | Long term borrowings (3) 849105
{b) [ Deferred tax liabilities (Net) (4) 3
c} | Other Long term liabilities 5) 870780
d) | Long-term provisions 6) 23198
Sub-total 1743086
4 Current liabilities
{a) | Short-term borrowings (7) 4305697
{(b) [ Trade payables (8) 367322
{c} | Other current liabilities (9) 288725
{d) [ Short term provisions (10) 360620
Sub-total 1457264
TOTAL 4063141
Il. ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
{a) Fixed assets (11)
(i) Tangible assets 1592402
i} Intangible assets 3067
i)y Capital work-in-progress 141326
iv) Intangible assets under development 0
{b) | Non-current investments (12) 400
(c) | Deterred tax assets (net) (4) 0
{d) | Long term loans and advances (13) 81728
{e) [ Cther non current assets (14) 443964
Sub-total 2262887
2 Current assets
{a) | Current investments (15) 0
{b) | Inventories (16) 54002
{(c} | Trade receivables (including Unbilled Revenue) (17) 624310
d) | Cash and Bank Balances (18) 215270
e) | Short-term loans and advances (19) 35662
(f) | Other current assets (20) 871010
Sub-total 1800254
TOTAL 4063141
Significant Accounting Policies 1to 32
Notes on Financial Statements
In Term of our Report of even date For & on behalf of the Board
For DE & BOSE
CHATERED ACCOUNTANTS ép/
FRN. 302175E _ (KK. Ghosh) {PK. Banerjea) (Rajesh Pandey)
-EO-D-%A-qlt;\ Director (Finance) & Company Secretary Chairman & Managing Director
(Tarit Dasgupta) Chief Financial Officer

Partner

Membership No. 053380

Place : Kolkata

Dete : 04th July, 2016
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WEST BENGAL STATE ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION COMPANY LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31st March, 2016

As at 31" March
Particulars N':I’(t)e 2016
(¥ in lakhs)
l.(a) | Revenue from operations (21A) 1605012
(b) | Other Operating Revenue (21B) 44666
{c) | Amount Realisable Through Regulatory Mechanism {21C) 205436
{d) | Other Income (22) 6394
Total Revenue 1861508
2. Expenses :
{(a) | Purchases of Power & Transmission Charges {23) 1417230
(b) | Employee benefits expenses (24) 117252
{c) | Finance costs (25) 145157
{d) | Depreciation (26) 65804
(e) | Other expenses (27) 112401
Total expenses 1857844
3. Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and Tax (1-2) 3664
4, Exceptional items 0
5. Profit before extraordinary items and Tax (3-4) 3664
6. Extraordinary items 0
7. Profit (+) / Loss ( - ) before tax (5 + 6) 3664
8. Tax expense : {28)
(1) Current Tax 1412
(2) Deferred Tax (4) 1
Sub-total 1413
9. Net Profit (+) / Loss (=) for the period (7-8) 2251
10. | Earning per equity share of face value of ¥ 10 each
{a) | Basic and diluted EPS before Extraordinary items - {in ¥) 0.10
{b) | Basic and diluted EPS after extraordinary items -- (in ¥) 0.10
Significant Accounting Policica
Notes on Financial Statements 11032
:-!‘o.rl'-?)"; :fa%l; EOPOH of even date For & on behalf of the Board
CHATERED ACCOLINTANTS 7
FRN. 302175E (ﬁl .
= Diref:tg:.(girl:gflr&) & Co(g Ké Bag:E:eeu)a ajosh Pandey)
g::::. eDrasgupta) ) Chif Financial Officer pany ry Chairman & Managing Director
Membership No. 053380
Place : Kolkata

Date : 04th July, 2018
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WEST BENGAL STATE ELECTRICITY DISTRIBUTION COMPANY LIMITED

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the vear Ended 31st March, 2016

s, ) 2015-2016
No. Particulars (% in lakhs)

A CASH FLOW FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Net Profit / Loss Before Taxation & Extraordinary items 3664
Adjustment for :
Depreciation 65804
Interest & Financial Charges 134900
Bad Debts & Provision 2856
Excess provigion written back (126)
Interest / Dividend efc. Income {2490 )
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Change 204608
Adjustment For - B -
Inventories 807
Trade Receivables 54169
Other Current Assets 151623
Loans & Advances 22393
Current Liabilities & Provision, etc. { 107622 )
Cash Generatlon from operation 83238
Tax Paid (net) 1459
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 81779

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease (increase) in Fixed Assets {195798)
Decrease (increase) in work in progress {45920)
(Increase) / Decrease in Investments 1902
Interest / Dividend Income 3132
NET CASH GENERATED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) {236684)

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES _
Proceeds from Borrowing {Net) _ _ 182724
Proceeds from Consumers contribution & capital subsidy (Reserve & Surplus) 153190
Interest & Financial Charges {114247)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 221667
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) 66762
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINING OF THE YEAR 41411
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 108173

This is the Cash flow Statement referred to our report of even date

In Term of our Report of even date For & on behalf of the Board

For DE & BOSE

CHATERED ACCOUNTS

FRN. 302175E gw/ (y

] . ‘ ey ¥

:Emﬁ*ﬁt\ (K.K Ghosh) (P.Rfr;;ee) (Rajesh Pandey)

(Tarit Dasgupta) AT Director (Finance) & Company Secretary  Chairman & Managing Director

Partner Chief Financial Officer

Membership No. 053380

Place : Kolkata

Date : 04th July, 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES

Basis of preparation of Consolidated financial statements

The Consolidated financial statements comprises of the financial statements of WBSEDCL (West
Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company Ltd.) and proportionate interest in joint venture entity
NTESCL (New Town Electric Supply Company Limited). The Consolidated financial Statements have
been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standard 27 on "Financial Reporting of interests in
Joint Ventures".

Joint Venture has been accounted for in the consolidated financial Statements using the proportionate
consolidation method whereby a venturer's share of each of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses
ofthe jointly controlled entity is accounted for on a pro-rate basis.

The interest in jointly controlled entity remains in New Town Electric Supply Company Limited
(NTESCL), which was incorporated in India on and percentage of ownership interest as at 31" March,
2016 stands at 50%. WBSEDCL with the concurrence of the WBERC engaged NTESCL as its
franchisee for rendering techno commercial services to all categories of consumers at New Town. For
this purpose, an agreement was executed between WBSEDCL and NTESC which was in operation from
15.02.2005 and the agreement was renewed on 12.09.2014 for two years with effect from 15.02.2014.
This financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India under the historical cost convention on accrual basis
except in certain cases where cash basis accounting have been adopted for Rent Receipt, interest income
on staff advances, License fees, Municipal and Vehicle Taxes, Membership & Subscriptions, AMC of
office equipments and Revenue Income on Delayed Payment Surcharges/Reconnection Fees, prepaid
metering and grants.

GAAP comprises of mandatory Accounting Standards as notified under Section 133 of Companies
Act,2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule,2014, the provisions of Companies Act,
2013 (to the extent notified), provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (to the extent applicable) and the
Regulations under the Electricity Act, 2003, to the extent applicable.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of Financial Statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the

reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the Financial Statements and the reported amount
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of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and

estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.

Capital Expenditure and Fixed Assets

3.1

Fixed assets shall be broadly classified under the following categories as applicable to the company.
e GENERATIONASSETS

e DISTRIBUTION ASSETS

e METERINGASSETS

e OTHER ASSETS

Similarly, capital works in progress accounts shall also be classified under the above four broad heads.

3.2

33

34

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Assets are stated at original (historical) cost of acquisition including freight, Insurance, duties,
taxes and other incidental expenses incurred to bring the assets to use.

Fixed Asset is accounted for through capital works in progress account and transferred to the
appropriate fixed asset account when the assets are put to use on commissioning.

In case of commissioned assets, where final settlement of bills with contractor is yet to be effected,
capitalization is done, subject to necessary adjustment in the year of final settlement.

Spare units/service units as when procured are capitalized and depreciation is charged.

Insurance spares which can be used only in connection with an item of fixed assets and whose use is
expected to be irregular are capitalized and depreciated over the residual useful life of the related
plant & machinery.

Any cost for addition or improvement to fixed assets that results in increasing the utilities or
capacity or life of the assets shall be capitalized and included in the cost of assets.

Expenditure on replacement of any part (one time expenses) costing more than 10% of cost of such
assets subject to a minimum of ¥ 500000/-shall be treated as capital expenditure and thus
capitalized except repair cost of transformers.

The trial run expenses for Generation Assets during capitalisable period shall be capitalised after
netting offrevenue earned from sale of power (infirm power).
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3.10 Capital expenses of assets not owned by company shall be reflected as distinct item in capital
works in progress till the period of completion and thereafter under fixed assets.

3.11 Any fixed assets acquired/received free of cost shall be recorded at nominal value at F 1/-.

3.12 Inrespect of works executed through on contract basis (turnkey project), completion method of
accounting is adopted.

3.13 For impairment of assets, if carrying amount of fixed assets exceeds the recoverable amount on
the reporting date, the carrying amount is to be reduced to the recoverable amount by charging
under Profit & Loss Account.

3.14 Physical Verification of Fixed Assets shall be done departmentally on yearly basis with
conductance of Physical Verification of Fixed Assets by an External Agency once in every three

years.

Capital Grants and Consumers’ Contribution for Assets

4.1 Consumers contribution, grants and subsidies received towards cost of capital assets are treated
as capital receipts.

4.2  Such capital receipt for specific depreciable assets are shown under "Reserve and Surplus”. On
commissioning of such assets the related balance under "Reserve and Surplus" is amortised for
the amount of depreciation charged in respect of Fixed Assets constructed from such fund.

Borrowing Costs

(a) The borrowing cost (including Bond Issue expenses, interest, Front End Fee, etc.) directly related to
a particular project under construction is capitalized. On commissioning of the assets the cost is
charged to revenue account. Other borrowing cost is capitalized as per policy approved by the
Board of Directors.

(b) Swapping charges for restructuring of borrowing cost is amortized.

Treatment of Expenditure During Construction

Indirect Expenses capitalized are allocated to various Capital Works in Progress Account in the ratio of
balances under such account.
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Inrespect of works executed on contract basis, completion method of accounting is adopted.

Cost of computer software recognized as intangible Asset is amortized on straight line method over a

7. Accounting of Construction Contracts

8. Accounting of Intangible Assets
period of five-years.

9. Treatment of Claims

Claims by Contractors / Suppliers on the Company for liquidated damage, escalation, bonus and

revision in rates which are not specifically covered under respective contracts are taken into account on

acceptance.

10. Depreciation

10.1

10.2
10.3

Depreciation is provided on straight line method based on useful life of assets and norms
specified in the Regulations notified by the West Bengal Electricity Regulatory Commission, a
statutory authority constituted under the Electricity Act, 2003. However, such useful life of
assets is different from the useful life of assets specified in schedule II of the Companies Act,
2013. Ministry of Power has issued Tariff Policy which provides that the calculated rates of
depreciation notified by the CERC or State Regulatory Commissions would be applicable for
the purpose of tariffs as well as accounting. No depreciation is charged for the freehold land as
well as the land acquired on perpetual lease and which does not have a limited useful life.

Depreciation is not being provided once the Assets come down to 10% of the original Value.

Joint venture follows the accounting policy of Depreciation on Tangible fixed assets to the
extent of depreciation available on written down value method (WDYV) at the rates and in the
manner prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act,2013 over the remaining useful life
which has been made effective from 1st April,2014.

11. Foreign Currency Transaction

11.1 Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recognized at the exchange rate prevailing on the

date of transaction or that approximates the actual rate at the date of transaction.
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13.

11.2

11.3

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of transaction due to difference of rates at which
they were initially recognized during the period, or reported in previous financial statements,
are to be recognized as income or as expenses in the period in which they arise.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates.

Valuation of Investment

12.1.
12.2.

Short Term Investments are valued at lower of cost and fair value.
Long term investments are carried on costs. Provision for diminution in the value of long term
investment is made only if such a decline is other than temporary in the opinion of the

management.

Revenue/Expenditure Recognition

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

The Revenue from Sale of Power as well as Purchase of Power expenses are accounted for on
accrual basis. At the year end, the provisions are made if no bills are received or raised till date of
closing of the respective financial year.

Revenue income and expenditures are recognized as and when accrued by written
communication from any Regulatory or Statutory authority, unless the same is under litigation
or process of litigation. Further Income Receivable through Regulatory Mechanism in respect
of additional cost incurred during the period over and above cost allowed in prevailing tariff
order is recognized based on the applicable available orders and regulations of Regulatory
Authorities.

Income Realizable Through Regulatory Mechanism is to be recognized when it is probable that
the future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the company as a result of the actual
or expected actions of the regulator under the applicable regulatory framework and the amount
can be measured reliably.

Bilateral contracts between two utilities for exchange of power by purchase and sale (or vice
versa) of quantities of energy as per contract (SWAP) are accounted for by average pool cost of
power purchase per unit (kwh) excluding transmission charges for the year. Energy balances
against SWAP contracts not settled during the same financial year are accounted for on the basis
of approved accounting policy of the Company.
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14.

13.5 The tariff rate of sale/purchase of power under jurisdiction of CERC/WBERC is recognised as
ordered by the Regulators.

13.6 Sale of electricity does not include Electricity Duty as the same is not the income of the company.
Electricity Duty payable to Govt. of West Bengal is accounted for on the amount of Electricity
Duty collected during the year.

13.7 Bad and doubtful debts are provided in the accounts based on the policy framed by the
management. Debts, which are bad and not realisable, are written off at the end of each year. In
case of billing against theft of power, penalty portion is separated from energy charges and on
which electricity duty is not charged.

13.8 Policy had been framed for any waiver, rectification, adjustments of Annual Minimum
Guaranteed Revenue (AMGR) & Late Payment Surcharge (LPSC) with specific delegated
financial powers for such approval. As per such approval, necessary accounting shall be made in
Debtors' Account.

Material Accounting

14.1 All costs incurred to bring the materials and to its present form (i.e. location and condition) are

included in the material cost.

14.2 Consumption accounting is done immediately on issue of materials from stores other than
advance to contractors, in which case it is based on the details of consumption filed by the
Contractors.

14.3 All Store items are issued at running weighted average issue rates prevailed in the accounting
units.

14.4 Stock for construction Projects is treated as Capital Stores and for O&M purchase as operational

stores.

14.5 Provisions for liability is created in respect of all accepted purchase materials, irrespective of
suppliers bills received or not.

14.6 Atthe end ofthe year the closing stock is valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is lower.
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15.

16.

14.7 Write off/write in of stock arising out of physical verification and/or otherwise is accounted for

only on approval of the appropriate authority.

14.8 Unutilised materials issued atsite, the ownership of which lies with the Company are added as the

part of the inventory at the year end.

14.9 Provision for slow moving, non-moving, obsolete and scrap materials are considered on the basis

of policy framed by the management.

Employee Benefits

15.1 Employee Benefits include benefits provided to employee or their spouses, Children and other
dependents and may be settled by payments made either directly to the employees, spouses,
children or other dependents or to their legal heirs or nominees or to others such as Trusts,

Insurance Company.

15.2. An employee may provide service at a full time, part time, casual or temporary basis. Employee

includes full time Directors and other Management Personnel.

15.3. All the major personnel costs e.g. Salaries, wages, Bonus, Company's Contribution to PF and FPS

etc. shall be accounted for on accrual basis without any actuarial valuation.

15.4. Terminal Benefits like Gratuity, Pension, Leave Encashment etc. shall be accounted for on accrual

basis using actuarial valuation.
15.5. Personal costs like Overtime, Medical Reimbursement will be accounted for on accrual basis.
15.6. Employee cost shall be capitalized on the basis of policy framed by the management.

15.7 Since all employees of the joint venture Company have been engaged on contractual basis,
provisions for employees benefits as per Accounting Standard 15 are not applicable.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Assets
16.1 The provisions are recognised when the company has a present legal and constructive observation

as a result of the past events for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be

required to settle obligation and a reliable estimate can be made for the amount of the obligation.
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16.2 Contingent liabilities are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

16.3 Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Since the Company has only one integrated business, i.e. Generation & Distribution of power, it has no

reportable segmentunder AS - 17.

18. Taxes on Income
The provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions
of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax resulting from "Timing differences" between the taxable and

accounting income is accounted for using tax rate and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted as on the
Balance Sheet date. The deferred tax asset is recognized and carried forward only to the extent that there is a
reasonable/virtual certainty that the assets will be realized in future.
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West Bengal State Electricity Distribution Company Limited
(WBSEDCL)

Notes on Consolidated Financial Statement for the vear ended 31 st March, 2016

1a) WBSEDCL was incorporated under Companies Act, 1956 on 16.02.2007. The company received on

b)

21.03.2007 the Certificate for Commencement of Business issued by the Registrar of Companies, West
Bengal. The Company is a Government Company within the meaning of Section 2(45) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and entire paid up Share Capital is held by the Government of West Bengal and
its nominees. The Company is engaged in the Business of Distribution of Electricity and insignificant
generation of Hydro-Electricity and hence segment reporting is not required.

The detailed break up order of balances of WBSEDCL as revested by Govt. of West Bengal vide No.
12-PO/O/1II/3R-29/2006 dated 25.01.2007 read with 313-PO/O/III/3R-29/2006 dated 19.09.2008
under final transfer scheme have not been issued till date. The detailed accounting was made on the
basis of reccommendation of Price Waterhouse Coopers (PWC), the consultant of Govt. of West Bengal
on Power Sector Reform of West Bengal.

All figures are rounded off to the nearest lakhs of rupees in the Consolidated Balance Sheet,
Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss, Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Notes.

During the Financial year 2015-16, WBSEDCL implemented SAP-ERP for effective maintenance of
Accounts.

Previous year figures are regrouped and re-arranged wherever considered necessary.

WBSEDCL, being the first occasion presented the consolidated financial Statements. Thus
comparative figure of previous period is not presented in the consolidated financial Statements as per
Accounting Standard 21 on "Consolidated Financial Statements".
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Note No.-1 : Share Capital

Particulars hs a;( 21;: I':ft:.) 2010

A) Authorised :
4050000000 Equity Share of ¥ 10 each 405000
B) Issued Subscribed and Paid Up :
Equity Share Capital from State Government :
2256739863 Equity Share (2256739863 Nos. Previous Year) of ¥ 10 each fully paid up
Issued for consideration other than cash 225674

Total 225674

Reconcillation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Particul As on 31st Mar. 2016
F R e Number of shares Amount ( T in lakhs)
Opening and Closing Balances 2256739863 225674

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares

As on 31st Mar. 2016
Number of shares % of holding

Name of shareholder

Governor of West Bengal 2256739863 100

1.1 At the time of formation of the Company 50000 nos. of Equity share of ¥ 10/- each was allotted to
various persons being the signatories of the Memorandum of Association of the company. However, the
beneficial interest for all the shares are lying with the Government of West Bengal, more specifically
with the Governor of West Bengal. The names of the first shareholders are available in the Memorandum
and Article of Association issued by the Company.

1.2 The Equity shares of the company rank pari passu in all respects including voting rights & entitlement of
Dividend. In the event of liquidation of the company the holders of equity shares will be entitled to
receive the remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amount. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the share holders.

ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015-2016 (193]



Note No.-2 : Reserves & Surplus

Particulars As at 31st Mar. 2016
( T in lakh)

A) Reserve for Unforseen Exigencies
Opening Balance 15500
(+) Current Year Transfer 0
Closing Balance 15500
B) Debenture Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance 5781
(+) Current Year Transfer 1667
Closing Balance 7448
C) Subsidies & Grants towards Cost of Capital Assets
Opening Balance 345926
(+) Current Year Transfer 108432
{ — ) Depreciation Adjustment in Current Year 11265
Closing Balance 443093
D) Consumers' Contributions towards Capital Assets
Oening Balance 142791
(+) Current Year Transfer 44758
(--) Depreciation Adjustment in Current Year 4650
Closing Balance 182899
E) Surplus
Opening balance (12407)
(+) Net Profit / (Net Loss) For the current year 2251
(--) Transfer to Reserves 1667
Closing Balance (11823)

Total (A+B+C+D+E) 637117

2.1 Reserves & Surplusincludes ¥ 757 lakhs for share of Joint Venture as per note 31(5).

2.2 During the year an amount of ¥ 44758 lakhs was transferred to reserve due to completion of asset

constructed out of consumer's contribution for service connection.

2.3 During the year an amount of ¥ 108432 lakhs was transferred to reserve due to completion of asset
constructed out of fund received from Government and local bodies for construction of capital assets
and grant received from Govt. during the financial year 2015-16.

2.4 During the financial year 2015-16 an amount of ¥ 1667 lakhs was transferred to Debenture Redemption
reserve as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent of available profit.
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Note No.-3 : Long Term Borrowings
Sl. Paricliars As at 31st Mar. 2016
No. ( ¥ in lakhs)
A) Secured
i) Loan from Power Finance Corporation Limited A/C RAPDRP 24914
ii) Loan from Power Finance Corporation Limited 235000
iii) Loan from Rural Electrification Corporation Limited 208793
iv) Term Loan from Bank
Mid-Term loan from Canara Bank 0
v) 9.34% Non Convertible Redeemble Bond 2025 50000
(Secured by hypothecation of Fixed Assets)
(Redeemable at par at the end of 15th year)
vi) 10.85% Non Convertible Redeemble Bond 2026 50000
(Secured by hypothecation of Fixed Assets)
(Redeemable at par at the end of 15th year)
Sub-total 568707
B) Unsecured
i) Loan from State Govt. 203963
i) Loan from State Govt. (Taken over from WBREDCL) 2032
iii) Loan from Power Finance Corporation (Against Govt. Guarantee) 304
iv) Loan from rural Electrification Corporation (aganist Govt. (Guarantee) 18312
V) Loan from Rural Electrification Corporation (Take over from WBREDCL) 10323
Bonds :
vi) 8.5% Pension Trust Bonds 2016 (Against Govt. Guarantee) 153000
(Redeemable in 5 Equal instalments after a 10 year moratorium period on
repayments. Moreover, the Company has a call option to redeem the Bonds
in whole or part any time before maturity)
vii) | 8.5% WBSEB Power Bonds Series 1/2018 4107
(Taxable, Unsecured, Non Convertible, Redeemble Bonds)
(The principal Amount will be repaid in 60 quarterly instalments from 01.04.2003
@73 5 lakhs per instrument in respect of 117 Bonds with face value of ¥ 3 crore
each & T 2.06 lakhs for first instalments & ¥ 1.66 lakhs for remaining 59
instalments in respect of 1(one) Bond with face value of ¥ 1 crore)
Sub-total 392041
Sub-total (A+B) 960748
C) Less:- Current maturities of long term borrowings transferred to other Current 111643
liabilities (Refer Note 9)
Total (A+B-C) 849105
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3.1
32

33
3.4

3.5

Share of Joint Venture as per note 31(5) is nil.

Debt servicing of loans and borrowing were made within time for actual amount accrued and due except
Principal & Interest due on Govt. Loan amounting to ¥ 36049 lakhs & ¥ 49125 lakhs which were
withheld as per Direction of Govt. of West Bengal vide memo no: 63/PO/C-1/4M-166/09 (PL-I) dated
18.03.2014

8.5% Pension Trust Bonds 2016 has been guaranteed under Govt. Guarantee.

There is a difference of ¥ 12603 lakhs (previous year ¥ 10097 lakhs) of RECL loan between the books
of accounts of WBSEDCL and RECL. This arises mainly due to difference of accounting treatment of
principal and interest in the books of accounts of RECL and WBSEDCL.

Total value of secured, redeemable, non-convertible bonds issued by the company on private placement
basis stood at ¥ 100000 lacs. These securities are listed with Bombay Stock Exchange in Wholesale
Debt Market. During the period Debenture Redemption Reserve has been created to the extent of
available profit.

As per terms & condition of R-APDRP Part A Loan received from Govt. of India through the nodal
agency Power Finance Corporation Limited (PFC) the entire amount of loan will be converted to grant
depending upon the fulfillment of the terms & condition of the loan. Claim of Power Finance
Corporation Limited of ¥ 2539 lakhs (not acknowledged by WBSEDCL) for the financial year 2015-16
on account of Principal due for repayment is considered in Long Term Borrowings (note no. 3) instead of
Other Current liabilities - Current maturities of long term debt (note no. 09), Interest on loan is provided
as amatter of prudence.

3.6 Regarding RAPDRP Part B loan 50% will be considered as loan and balance will be converted to grant
depending upon the fulfillment of the terms & condition of the loan agreement. Fund so far received till
the end of the financial year 2015-16 has been accounted for as loan and interest has been provided in the
accounts accordingly.

3.7 Terms of borrowings are as under :-

Details of Loan taken from Power Finance Corporation Ltd. as on 31.03.2016
Tenure Outstanding
Rate of ; Last
Sl. ' (Incl. Moratorium Balance as on
No. ) interest | moratorium | " period Repeyment | "31.03.2016
ns period ) {in lakhs)
1. Govt. Guaranteed 12.50 13 Years 3 Years 2016-17 101
8.50 12 Years & 2 Years 2018-19 203
2. Govt. Guaranteed 9 Months 9 months
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Sl.
No.

Security

Rate of
Interest
(In%)

Tenure
Incl.
moratorium
period)

Moratorium
Period

Last
Repayment
(Year)

Outstanding
Balance as on
31.03.2016
( in lakhs)

Hypothecation of all borrowers newly financial
assets present & future created / to be created
Hypothecation of existing assets comprising plant &
machinery and also lines & cable networks in
Arambag Town and M3 33/11 KV substation in
Bidhannagar Town in the state of West Bengal.

9.00

12 Years

5 Years

2021-22

12026

The whole of the movable Assets, present & future
pertaining to newly financed Assets created / to be
created under R-APDRP, Part B under 23 town
projects as well as existing movable assets
(Overhead lines) created at RE-projects,
Berhampore, Murshidabad in West Bengal.

9.00

20 Years

5 Years

2030-31

3971

The whole of the movable Assets, present & future
partaining to newly financed Assets created / to be
created under R-APDRP, Part B under 22 town
projects as well as existing movable assets
(Overhead lines) created at RE-projects,
Berhampore, Murshidabad in West Bengal.

9.00

20 Years

5 Years

2030-31

4046

First charge by Hypothecation in favour of the
corporation on the newly financed Assets under
the project comprised of transformers.
substations, capacitors etc. including movable
machinery, machinery spares, tools and
accessories and other equipments, both present &
future as well as on the existing assets being plant
& machinery and Lines of 400 KV switchgear in
South 24 Parganas.

9.00

20 Years

5 Years

2032-33

1997

First charge by Hypothecation in favour of the
corporation on the newly financed Assets under
the project including movable machinery,
machinery spares, tools and accessories, at
projects site present & future as well as on the
existing assets being O/H lines on other conductor
including fitting UG cables including fittings (11KV)
PILC cable in South 24 Parganas.

9.00

12 Years

5 Years

2024-25

988

First charge by Hypothecation in favour of the
corporation on the newly financed Assets under
the project including movable machinery,
machinery spares, tools and accessories, at
projects site both present & future as well as on the
existing assets being Sub station structure of
Siliguri Zone.

9.00

20 Years

5 Years

2034-35

1886
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Tenure Outstanding
Rate of . Last
Sl. ; (Incl. Moratorium Balance as on
No. Security I'Zfﬁg/e)St moratorium |  Period Re(;;z(ag;)e nt] "31.03.2016
O period ) (in lakhs)
Overhead Lines under South 24-Parganas,
9 Bidhannagar, Howrah, North 24-Parganas,
* | Paschim Medinipur Region of WBSEDCL valued | 11.90 48 Months - 2017-18 75000
T 108273.20 lakhs as per Schedule - | of
Hypothecation Deed.
Overhead Lines under Purba Medinipur, Bankura,
10. | Purulia Region and OH Lines and P&M of | 10.25- 5 Years 2 Years 2020-21 160000
Berhampore, Burdwan Zone, RE Project Bankura 10.95
and Barasat of WBSEDCL valued ¥ 209662.66
lakhs as per Schedule - | of Hypothecation Deed.
Total 260218
Details of Other Loans & Bonds as on 31.03.2016
Tenure Outstanding
Rate of : Last
Sl. g (Incl. Moratorium Balance as on
No. Name Security "E}ﬁ{,/e;‘" moratorium |  Period Re(‘?g’;‘)e“t 31.03.2016
- period) (in lakhs)
1. | Capital Bonds Series - | |Plant & Machinery at Purulia| 9.34 15 Years -- 2025-26 25000
Pump Storage Project of the
value of ¥ 3647033778/-
2. | Capital Bonds Series - I |Moveable assets (Plant &| g.34 15 Years - 2025-26 25000
Machinery) at Purulia Pumped
Storage Project.
3. | Capital Bonds Series - |1l | Existing Plant & machinery,| 40 g5 15 Years - 2026-27 50000
Distribution Transformer,
Power Transformer, Switch-
gear, Battery & Other
Equipments and Lines,
Cables & Network of Kolkata
& Midnapore Zone
4.1 8.5% Pension Trust Govt. Guaranteed 8.50 15 Years 5 Years 2020-21 153000
Bonds 2016
5. | 8.5% WBSEB Power Govt. Guaranteed 8.50 - - 2017-18 4107
Bond Series 1/2018
Total 257107
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Details of Loan taken from Rural Electrification Corporation Ltd. as on 31.03.2016

SI

No.

Security

Rate of
Interest
(In%)

Tenure
(Incl.
moratorium
period)

Moratorium
Period

Last
Repayment

(Year)

Outstanding
Balance as on
31.03.2016
( in lakhs)

Exclusive first charge by Hypotecation of movable
properties, present & future pertaining to newly
financed Assets created / to be created including
movable machinery, equipment, machinery,
machinery spares, tools, implements &
accessories installed and its stock of materials &
equipment of Haldia, Burdwan-Il, Jalpaigun-Il,
Asansol, Siliguri, GIS Mapping in supply stations &
augmentation of DCCs adequate to cover the
amount of loan, interest, penal interest and other
charges.

8.00- 14.00

13 Years

3 Years

2017-18 to
2019-20

2137

Hypothecation of all future movable assets and
stores items to be created out of the loan to be
utilized for improvement of its existing system by
installation of HT shunt capacitor banking 83 nos.
33/11 kv sub stations catering four Zones viz,
Kolkata, Burdwan, Berhampore and Midnapore in
the state of W.B.

12.00-12.25

13 Years

3 Years

2021-22

889

Hypothecation of all future movable assets and
stores items to be created out of the loan amount to
be utilised for renovation & modemisation (R & M)
of 27 MW (3 X9MW) of Jhaldhaka Hydro Electricity
power plant at Darjeeling District within the state of
West Bengal.

12.00-12.25

13 Years &
8 Months

44 Months

2023-24

4187

First charge by Hypothecation of movables
properties, present & future pertaining to newly
financed Assets created / to be created including
movable machinery, equipment, machinery,
machinery spares, tools, implements and
accessories installed and its stock of materials and
equipment of Jaldhaka Hydro-Electric power plant
by SMW (1 x 9MW) unit at Darjeeling District within
the state of W.B. adequate to cover the amount of
loan, interest, penal interest and other charges.

12.25

12 Years &
5 Months

29 Months

2023-24

1196

First charge by hypothecation of all the future
movable properties pertaining to newly financed
Assets created / to be created like Lightning
Arrester, AC 3 Phase 2 Wire Solid State (Static)
Meter, ACSR DOG/WOLF/Squirrel Conductor,
ACSR & AA Conductor, 33KV XLPE Cable,
33/11KV, 10 MVA & 6.3 MVA Transformers,
Switchagear with VCB, 11 KV, 3 PH, 200A O/D
Type isolatore, 11KV & 33KV Pin & Disc Insulator,
LT & HT Areal Bunched Cable, AC Single Phase 2
Wire Solid State (Static) Meter to be installed in
various districts of West Bengal.

9.93-12.25

13 Years

2 Years

2024-25 to
2025-26

43496

Movables and stocks to be created i.r.o. the project
including out of loan from RECL in various circles
of WBSEDCL as listed in Schedule IV of the Bulk
Hypothecation Agreement.

11.00-12.00

15 Years

5 Years

2027-28

35834
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Tenure Outstanding
Rate of : Last
Sl. . (Incl. Moratorium Balance as on
No. Seeurily "E}ﬁgﬁ;’t moratorium |  Period Re("?g’a"r‘)e"t 31.03.2016
0 period) (in lakhs)

The whole of the movable Assets. present & future
pertaining to newly financed Assets created / to be
created under R-APDRP, Part B under 45 towns
alongwith existing movable assets comprising of
7. | Switchgear - 400 KV, Distribution Transformer|10.50-11.75 | 18 Years 3 Years 2031-32 16085
(11/04 KV) 100 KVA, OH Lines including fittings
(33 KV) and OH Lines on other conductor including
fittings of ¥ 12734.34 lakhs on pari-passu basis
with PFC (RECL 75% & PFCL 25%)

All the future movables and stocks to be created

8 under the respective schemes of the project| 44 75 13 Years 2 Years 2026-27 to 55694
" | including those procured out of the loans to be 202728
sanctioned by REC.

g. | All the future movables and stocks to be created | 11.00-12.25 | 13 Years 3 Years 2028-29 3148
under the respective schemes of the project|11.00-12.25 | 13 Years 3 Years 2028-29 1416
including those procured out of the loans to be [ 11.00-12.50 | 13 Years 3 Years 2028-29 3203
sanctioned by REC. 11.00-12.50 | 13 Years 3 Years 2028-29 675
Movable Properties like Lines, Cables & Network

10. of RE Project Siliguri, Siliguri Zone and Midnapore 10.90 51 Months 6 Months 2019-20 37100
Zone of ¥ 170345.92 lakhs as per Schedule-A of
Hypothecation Deed.

All the future movables and stocks to be created
under the respective schemes under R-APDRP,
Part B under 5 towns including those procured out 10.50-11.00 | 18 Years 3 Years 2034-35 1892
of the loans to be sanctioned by REC, totalling to
the project cost of ¥ 12821.00 lakhs on paripasu
basis with PFC.

All the future movable properties of the respective
schemes under R-APDRP, Part-B under 11 towns
including those procured out of the loans|10.50-11.00 | 20 Years 5 Years 2036-37 1753
sanctioned by REC, totalling to the project cost of
¥ 12567.00 lakhs

1.

12.

13. | Govt. Guaranteed 10.11 20 Years 0 2022-23 18312
Total 227105

NoteNo-4

In accordance with the Accounting Standard-22 "Accounting for Taxes on Income" issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, the company has accounted for deferred tax. The company has significant
amount of unabsorbed depreciation under Income Tax Act, 1961. However as a matter of prudence, deferred
tax assets have been recognized to the extent of deferred tax liability and as such there is no impact of the
same in these accounts.
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Note No. - 4 : Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

Deferred Tax
Aealgteiver| Gadtior | pastale
A | Deferred Tax Liability (R in lakhs)
i) | Onaccountof Depreciation 164407 (2837) 167244
B | Deferred Tax Assets
i) | Onaccountof expenses disallowed U/s 43B 152721 5396 158117
ii) [ Onaccount of unabsorbed Depreciation 11684 (2560) 9124
C) | Deferred Tax Assets/liabilities (A-Bi-Bii) 2 1 3
Share of Joint Ventures as per note 31(5) 2 1 3
Note No. 5 : Other Long Term Liabilities
S| oo As atzi(i)‘!I%t Mar
No. articulars :
( T in lakhs)
A) | TradePayables
Liability for Purchase of Power 101958
B) | Others
1) | Security Deposit/advance from Consumers 282891
ii) | Liability for Capital Supplies / Works 166963
iii)| Deposit for Electrification 277218
iv) | Retention Money deducted from Contractor / Suppliers 41750
Sub-total 768822
Total (A+B) 870780

5.1 Value of assets nil (previous year ¥ 9849 lakhs) constructed by CPSU under RGGVY scheme was
considered in the accounts of 2015-16. In absence of specific consideration the same was balanced by
crediting Liabilities for Capital Works.

5.2 The liability on account of power purchase of ¥ 101958 lakhs payable to WBPDCL in installments
from the financial year 2017-18 & onwards.

5.3 Share of Joint Venture as per note 31(5) is ¥ 532 lakhs.
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Note No.- 6 : Long Term Provisions

S| As at 31st
No. Particulars Mar, 2016
( Tin lakhs)
Provision for employee benefits
i) Leave Encashment (unfunded) 21466
ii) Leave Travel Assistance (unfunded) 1732
Total (A+B) 23198
6.1 Long Term provision includes provision for Unfunded Employee Benefit as segregated in the
Actuarial Valuation report.
Note No.-7 : Short Term Borrowings
S| As at 31st
No. Particulars Mar, 2016
( Tin lakhs)
Secured
i) Short-Term loan from Syndicate Bank 9000
i) Short-Term loan from Indian Overseas Bank 43200
Sub-total 52200
iy | Cash Credit Account
(a) Punjab National Bank 19921
(b) DenaBank 10526
(c) Indian Overseas Bank 14920
(d) ICICIBank 619
(e) Allahabad Bank 64907
(f) UBIBank 64780
(g) CanaraBank 44935
(h) Punjab & Sindh Bank 39819
(i) Bankofindia 49612
() Syndicate Bank 9676
(k) State BankofIndia 58682
Sub-total 378397
Total 430597

7.1 Shortterm loans include those loans which are re-payable within one year.
7.2 Share of Joint Venture as per note 31(5) is nil.

7.3 Terms of borrowings are as under :-
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Details of Short Term Loans as on 31.03.2016

Outstanding
Rate of Last
Sl. Name Security Interest Repayment Balance as on
No. i (Year) 31.03.2016
(In %) (in lakhs)
1. | Syndicate Bank Lien of FDRs of T 100 crore 9.00-10.15 2016-17 9000
2. | Indian Overseas Bank Lienof FDRs of ¥ 521 crore 9.00 2016-17 43200
3. | Allahabad Bank-Cash Credit Lienof FDRs of T 175.06 crore | 7.75-9.25 - 15410
4, | United Bank of India - Cash Credit 10.25 - 64780
5. | Allahabad Bank-Cash Credit 10.25 - 49497
6. | Indian Overseas Bank - Cash Credit 10.45 - 14920
7. | Punjab National Bank- Cash Credit 10.35 - 19921
8. | Syndicate Bank Entire Current Assets on 10.45 - 9676
9. | BankofIndia-Cash Credit paripassu basis among 10.35 - 49612
Consortium member Banks
10| DenaBank-Cash Credit 10.45 - 10526
11.| Punjab & Sind Bank - Cash Credit 10.25 - 39819
12| CanaraBank-Cash Credit 10.45 - 44935
13)] ICICIBank - Cash Credit 10.50 -- 619
14| State BankofIndia 10.25 - 58682
Total 430597
Note No. - 8 : Trade Payables
As at 31st
Particulars Mar, 2016
( T in lakhs)
Liability for Purchase of Power 334073
Liability for Transmission of Power 32945
Ul Charges Payable 103
Share of Joint Venture as per note 31(5) 201
Total 367322

8.1 Total trade payable including non-current trade payable as mentioned in Note-5 of the Company on

account of purchase of power as at the end of the year was ¥ 436031 lakhs which includes arrear power

purchase liability of WBPDCL of ¥ 187443 lakhs payable to WBPDCL in monthly installments.
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Note No.-9 : Other Current Liabilities

As at 31st
o Particulars Mar, 2016
( Tin lakhs)
A) | Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note - 3)
Secured
i) Loan from Power Finance Corporation Limited A/c RAPDRP 346
ii) Loan from Rural Electrification Corporation Limited 23484
iii) | LoanfromPower Finance Corporation Limited 33667
Unsecured
iv) | Loanfrom State Govt. 48904
v) Loan from Power Finance Corporation (Against Govt. Guarantee) 182
vi) | Loanfrom Rural Electrification Corporation (Against Govt. Guarantee) 2713
Bonds:
vii) | 8.5% WBSEB Power Bonds Series 1/2018 2347
Sub total 111643
B) | Interestaccrued onborrowings
i) Interest Accrued & Due-Loan from State Govt. 49125
i) Interest Accrued & Due-8.5% Pension Trust Bonds 2016 (Against Govt. Guarantee) 13005
iii) | Accrued butnotdue onborrowings 36958
Sub total 99088
C) | Otherpayables
i) Earnest Money Deposit from Contractors 1909
ii) Security Deposits from Contractors 6846
ii) | Liability for O & M Supplies/ Works 14596
iv) | Electricity Duty Payable to GovernmentA/c 17760
V) Electricity Duty Control A/c (ED to be paid to Govt. after recovery from consumer) 16696
vi) | Otherliabilities 30187
Sub total 87994
Total (A+B+C) 298725

9.1 Share of Joint Venture as pernote 31(5) is ¥ 158 lakhs (Net Debit).

9.2 Electricity Duty payable to Govt. becomes due after 60 days from the end of the month of collection from
consumers.

9.3 The company is not liable to pay electricity duty amounting ¥ 16696 lakhs for which demand was raised
but collection will be made in subsequent year and hence the amount kept under a separate head.

9.4 Other liability includes ¥ 11095 lakhs on account of other staff related liability.
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Note No.-10 : Short Term Provisions

As at 31st
r\ila Particulars Mar, 2016
( T in lakhs)
A) Provision for employee benefits
i) Staff Related Liabilities & Provisions 273943
B Others
i) Liability for Expenses 23394
i) Other Liability & Provisions 63283
Sub-total 86677
Total (A+B) 360620

10.1 Share of Joint Venture as pernote 31(5)is ¥ 32 lakhs.

10.2 Total Staffrelated liability for Terminal Benefit including long-term provisions as mentioned in Note-
6 of the Company as at the end of the year was ¥ 297141 lakhs.
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Note No.-11 : FIXED ASSETS

Particulars Gross Block (% in lakhs) Depreciation ( T in lakhs) Zm.n Block
(Zin lakhs)
As at . Deductions As at As at . [Deductions|  As at As at end of
01.04.2015 | Additions | jadjustme | 31.03.2016 | 01.04.2015 [Additions | /Adjustme| 31.03.2016 | the Period
nts) nts)
(1) (2) (3) (4) |(5)=(2+34) (6) (7) (8) |(9)=(6+7-8)| (10) = (5-9)
(A) Tangible Assets :
Land & Land Rights 6358 1644 0 8002 0 0 0 0 8002
Buildings 56001 2128 1427 56702 17326 1009 1427 16908 39793
Hydraulic Works 182244 92 6 182330 31853 3642 6 35489 146841
Other Civil Works 16591 11377 486 27482 4859 319 486 4692 22790
Plant & Machinery 298840 6883 41 305682 78385 10481 41 88825 216856
Lines, Cable Network 1322205 140571 167 1462609 385538 44152 167 429523 1033086
Vehicles 174 0 0 174 151 2 0 153 21
Furniture an Fixtures 4550 657 323 4884 1469 541 323 1687 3197
Office Equipments 38066 3749 74 41740 14402 3995 (581) 18978 22763
Sub-Total 1925029 167101 2524 2089605 533983 64141 1869 596256 1493350
Capital Expenditure Resulting in
an Asset not Belonging to the 1739 0 0 1739 1739 0 0 1739 0
Company
Spare Units / Service Units 139593 26658 0 166251 55093 16852 933 71012 95239
Capital Spares at Generating 4806 36 0 4842 902 127 0 1029 3813
Stations
Sub-Total 146138 26694 0 172832 57734 16979 933 73780 99052
Sub-Total (A) 2071167 193795 2524 2262437 591717 81120 2802 670036 1592402
B) | Intangible Assets (Computer 2399 4 0 2403 860 204 (278) 1342 1061
Software-Not Intemally Generated)
Intangible Assets (GIS) 500 2000 0 2500 100 394 0 494 2006
Sub-Total (B) 2899 2004 0 4903 960 598 (278) 1836 3067
C) | Capital Work in Progress
Generation 2116 4676
Distribution 109969 109904
Others 26435 26746
Sub-Total (C) 138520 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 141326
Grand Total (A+B+C) 2212586 195799 2524 2267341 592677 81719 2524 671871 1736795
Share of Joint Venture as per note 31(5) 204 5 0 209 24 13 0 37 172

11.1 The amount of depreciation (after adjustment) charged during the year amounts to ¥ 65804 lakhs. An amount of
T 15915 lakhs being the amortized value of Reserve Account (Capital Grant and Subsidies) was reduced from the total

depreciation of the year calculated for the depreciation amount of Fixed Assets constructed out of such Reserve.
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SECTOR WISE CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS

(T in lakhs)

e As on het Dedrdsttions/ (c':l'?: itafllzzreid- Ason

o ns (o}
01.04.2015 Additions Adjustment Fixed Assets) 31.03.2016
(1) @ 3 @ ) (6) = (2:34-5)
Capital Works-in-Progress

GENERATION 2116 10018 0 7458 4676

DISTRIBUTION 47984 89760 0 90861 46883

RE 61985 69218 0 68182 63021

OTHERS 26435 4188 0 3877 26746

Grand Total 138520 173184 0 170378 141326

11.2

11.3

11.4

11.5

As per revised accounting policy of the Company individual assets valued ¥ 5000 or less has been
depreciated as per normal rate instead of charging full value of assets in the year of acquisition. As a
result T 22 lakhs was less charged as Depreciation in the current financial year.

Depreciation is provided on straight line method based on useful life of assets and norms specified in
the Regulations notified by the WBERC. Ministry of Power, Govt. of India (GOI) and Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA), GOI were approached through Govt. of West Bengal for concurrence. The
approval of MCA was issued on 31.05.2011.

In absence of proper documents, lands are treated as frechold land. Considering the spread of the
company, activities have been initiated for searching of documents and classification of land will be
done based on the appropriate documents.

Owing to immaterial impact on Depreciation in Consolidated Financial Statements, method of
calculation of Depreciation on Tangible Assets from WDV (followed by NTESCL) to SLM (followed
by WBSEDCL) remain unaltered.
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NOTE NO.-12 : Non current investment
Sale of
Ason . investment/ As on
Particulars 01.04.2015 | Additions | Redemption of Adjustment | 34 03 2016
Debentures
(Zin lakhs)
A) Trade Investments (in joint Venture Companies)
(i) West Bengal Green Energy Development
Corporation Ltd. (Unquoted)
(1750002 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 Each fully 175 0 0 175 0
paid up out of which 2 Nos. of Share of ¥ 10
each fully paid-up received free of cost)
Sub-total 175 0 0 175 0
B) Other Investment
(i) Investment in Shares of Power Exchange
India Ltd. 400 0 0 0 400
4000000 Equity Shares of ¥10 Each fully
paid up)
(i) Other Investment 121 0 0 0 121
Less : Provision for diminution ofinvestment (121) 0 0 0 (121)
Sub-total 400 0 0 0 400
Total (A+B) 575 0 0 175 400

12.1 The Govt. of West Bengal revested "Other Investments" amounting to ¥ 121 lakhs as appearing in
note-12 as on 31.03.2016 through Final Transfer scheme as investment in Govt. Securities. However,
since no confirmation from Govt. of West Bengal was received on such balance and no paper in support
of investment was available, entire amount was provided under Profit & Loss Account of WBSEDCL

during the year 2008-2009.

12.2 As per direction of the Govt. of West Bengal entire share capital of West Bengal Green Energy
Development Corporation Ltd. was transferred to Govt. of West Bengal. The consideration of ¥ 175

lakhs against such transfer is pending.

12.3 Theinvestments are carried at cost less provision for diminution for value of Investment.

Note No.-13: Long Term Loans and Advances

As at 31st
Particulars Mar, 2016
( X in lakhs)
A) Capital Advances
Secured, considered good 62451
Unsecured, considered good 0
Doubtful 0
Less : Provision for doubtful advances 0
| Sub-total 62451
B) Others
CommitmentAdvance 175
Advance income Tax & TDS (Net of Provision for taxation) 4102
Others 15000
Sub total 19277
Total (A+B) 81728
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13.1 Share of Joint Venture as per note 31(5) is ¥ 16 lakhs.

13.2 Long term loans and advances include capital advances of ¥ 62451 lakhs as on 31.03.2016 considered
good and fully realizable from the Contractors / Suppliers. As a result, no provision on doubtful
advances has been considered in the accounts. This has been done as per the policy approved by the

Board of Directors.

13.3 Long term loans and advances include a sum of ¥ 120 lakhs (previous year ¥ 120 lakhs) paid to
Ghogarpalli integrated Power Company Ltd and ¥ 55 lakhs (previous year ¥ 55 lakhs) to Tatiya

Andhra Power Projects as commitment advance against allocation of power to WBSEDCL.

13.4 Long term loans and advances include inter-unit account balance of ¥ 15000 lakhs (previous year
I 15000 lakhs) of erstwhile WBSEB Inherited by WBSEDCL vide notification number 313-
PO/0O/3R-29/2006 dated 19.09.2008 of Govt of West Bengal.

Note No.-14 : Other non-current assets

As at 31st
Particulars Mar, 2016
( Tin lakhs)
Others
Regulatory Assets 443929
Fixed Deposits with Banks 35
Total 443964

14.1 Share of joint Venture as per note 31(5) is ¥ 35 lakhs being the Fixed Deposit with Banks held for the

period more than 12 months.

14.2 The amount of ¥ 443929 lakhs is realizable from regulatory mechanism from the financial year 2017-
18 & onwards.

Note No.-15 : Current Investment

As at 31st

Particulars Mar, 2016
( ¥ in lakhs)

0

Total 0
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Note No. - 16 : Inventories
As at 31st
Particulars Mar, 2016

( Tin lakhs)
Stores & Spares

Stock of Materials 47764
Materials in Transit 3496
Materials Stock Excess / Shortage Pending investigation 2742
Total 54002

16.1 Inallstores, the physical verification of Stock was conducted during the period.

16.2 Verification of the inventory holding stores was conducted in presence of independent verifier,
engaged from Chartered Accountant & Cost Accountant Firms.

16.3 Valuation of closing stock of Stores was at cost being lower than the Net Realizable value.

Note No.-17 : Trade receivables (including Unbilled Revenue)

2015-2016
Dues
Allowance
Dues for bad (aflor
Particulars other and Allowance ED Total
Than ED doubtrl for Bad &
debts Doubtful
o Debt)
( T In lakhs)
A) Sundry Debtors for Sale of Power
Secured, Considered Good 376105 0 376105 16367 391472
UnSecured, Considered Good 35434 17717 17717 1117 18834
Doubtful (Net of Security Deposit Forfeited) 3345 3345 0 212 212
Sub-Total 414884 21062 393822 | 16696| 410518
B) Provision for Unbilled Revenue (ED excluded
) ( ) 186778 0| 186778
C) Accrued Arrear 26831 0 26831
D) Share of joint Venture as per note 31(5) 183
Total (A+B+C) 607431 16696 624310

Note : ED denotes Electricity Duty
17.1 Aggregate amount of Trade Receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date
they are due for payment is T 141234 lakhs.
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Note No. - 18 : Cash and Bank Balance

S| As at 31st
N o‘ Particulars Mar, 2016
i (¥ in lakhs)

A) | Cash & Cash Equivalents

i) Balances with Banks

with Current Account 55172
Bank deposits with original maturity upto 3 months 50855
i) Remittance - in - Transit 723
i) | Cheque, Draftinhand 1121
iv) Cashinhand 238
v) Cash Imprest with Staff 64
Sub_total 108173

B) | Other BankBalance
i) Fixed Deposits with Banks 107097
Sub_total 107097
Total (A+B) 215270

18.1 Share of Joint Venture as per note 31(5) is ¥ 307 lakhs.

Note No. - 19 : Short term loans and advances

As at 31st
Particulars Mar, 2016
( T in lakhs)
a) Other advances
Unsecured, considered good
Shortterm loans and advances 29014
Miscellaneous Loans and Advances 4674
Loans and Advances to Staff-interest free 1744
Loans and Advances to Staff-interest bearing 230
Total 35662
19.1 Share of Joint Venture as per note 31(5) is ¥ 38 lakhs (net Credit).
Note No - 20 : Other Current assets
As at 31st
Particulars Mar, 2016
( T in lakhs)
A) Receivable towards claims & services Rendered
Considered good
Sundry Receivables 16082
Incentives, Ul Charges & Revenue Subsidy / Grant Receivables 386
B) Income Accrued on Fixed Deposit but not due 3687
C) Others
Deposits with verious Statutory Authority 64
Regulatory Assets 850791
Total (A+B+C) 871010

20.1 Share of Joint Venture as per note 31(5) is ¥ 1187 lakhs

ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015-2016 (211



20.2 Other current assets include prepaid expenses of ¥ 2190 lakhs, unscheduled interchange (UT)
receivable ¥ 281 lakhs.

20.3 Total amount of regulatory assets as at the end of the financial year 2015-16 comes to ¥ 1294720 lakhs
as mentioned in Note no-14 & 20. During the year an amount of ¥ 135357 lakhs has been crystallized
by WBERC in Tariff order of 2014-15. Further amounting to ¥ 29909 lakhs accrued as per petition
filed before WBERC for FPPCA & APR of 2014-15 as per regulation. During the financial year 2015-
16 New addition of regulatory receivable of ¥ 310884 lakhs has been made.

20.4 Total amount of ¥ 26146 lakhs which was disallowed in the APR & FPPCA for the financial year 2012-13
issued by the WBERC on 12.06.2014, against which hearing on petition filed by the Company before
Appellate Tribunal (APTEL) is going on.

Note No. - 21 : Revenue From Operation
Particulars i
( Tin lakhs)
(A) Earning from Sale of electricity
Sale to Trader 100283
Sale to Bulk Supply Licensee 32258
Sale to Govt. of Sikkim 689
Swap out of Power 22940
Sub-Total (i) 156170
Other Consumers :
L & MV Consumers (ED EXCLUDED) 901318
HV and EHV Consumers (ED EXLUDED) 595679
Recovery for Theft of Power/ Malpractices 31
Sub-Total (ii) 1497029
Gross Revenue from Sale of Power (i+ii) 1653199
Less : PF Rebate less penalty 22360
Less: LF Rebate less panalty 7464
Less : Other Specified Rebate 4050
Add : Minimum Charge 6135
Less : Rebate on timely payment 19902
Less : Charges for Export of Power 867
Share of Joint Venture as per note 31(5) 321
Sub-Total 1605012
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(B) Other Operating Revenue

Particulars 20152919
(¥ in lakhs)
Delayed Payment Charges from Customers 14526
Deviation Settlement Mechanism (DSM) Receivable 565
Meter Rent 21507
Rebate for timely payment of Power Purchase / Transmission Charges Bill 4106
Reconnection / Disconnection fees 3730
Income from Wheeling Charges 142
Other misc. charges from service to consumers premises 90
Sub-total 44666

(C) Amount Realisable Through Regulatory Mechanism
: 2015-2016
Particulars (X in lakhs)
Amount Realizable through Tariff & APR 310884
Less : Crystallisation of Regulatory Assets 105448
Sub-Total 205436
Total (A+B+C) 1855114

21.1

21.2

213

21.4

21.5

The Revenue income from Sale of Power is accounted for on consumption month basis for the period
from April'l5 to March'16. The amount related to consumption not billed with in 31st March, 2016
was taken into Revenue from Sale of Power Account as provision for Unbilled Revenue.

The rate of Tariff applied to raise the demands was the rate as fixed by West Bengal Electricity
Regularity Commission (WBERC) along with Monthly Variable Cost Adjustment (MVCA) where
ever applicable as per rules of WBERC.

During the financial year balance of SWAP out of Power to different utilities outside the State was
considered as income on the basis of average purchase cost of Power excluding Transmission
Charges.

The amount of Electricity Duty Claimed for recovery on behalf of Govt. of West Bengal during the
year 2015-16 was excluded from Revenue from Sale of Power.

This year no revenue subsidy / grant was received by the company. However as per Tariff order of
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21.6

21.7

21.8

21.9

21.10

WBERC subsidy was allowed to the Consumer by the Govt. of West Bengal through energy bills of
WBSEDCL which had been compensated by the State Govt.

Rebate for timely payment of Power purchase / Transmission charges includes ¥ 3978 lakhs on
Purchase of Power, ¥ 128 lakhs for Central Transmission charges & Nil (Previous year Nil) for State
Transmission charges.

Income receivable on account of Deviation settlement Mechanism (DSM) (UI) has been considered
in the accounts based on weekly settlement period of State Load Dispatch Center (SLDC)

Asumof ¥ 310884 lakhs has been considered as per Regulation in the accounts 0of 2015-16 as income
Receivable through Regulatory Mechanism on account of Fuel & Power Purchase Cost Adjustment
(FPPCA) and Annual Performance Review (APR) for the year 2015-16 for which necessary petition
will be submitted to the WBERC in due course. This includes net of ¥ 6138 lakhs on account of
arrear power purchase cost &transmission charges incurred as per order of the respective regulatory
authorities.

As per petition for FPPCA & APR for the financial year 2014-15 filed before WBERC, ¥ 29909
lakhs has been accrued further as per Regulation of WBERC. The entire amount of ¥ 29909 lakhs has
been considered in the accounts 0f2015-16 as income realizable through Regulatory Mechanism.

Further a sum of ¥ 135357 of Regulatory assets created in the year prior to 2015-16 has been
crystallized by the WBERC in the Tariff order of 2015-16. As the state amount has already been
considered as Income Realizable from Regulatory Mechanism in the accounts prior to the accounts of
2015-16. It has been deducted from income receivable through Regulatory Mechanism & considered
in the accounts of 2015-16, Accordingly a net amount of ¥ 105448 lakhs has been deducted from
amount realizable for the financial year 2015-16 & considered in the accounts.

Receivable through Regulatory Mechanism for the year 2015-16 of ¥ 310884 lakhs & additional
claim considered as receivable through Regulatory Mechanism of ¥ 29909 lakhs for FPPCA & APR
of 2014-15 have been considered in the accounts 0of2015-16 though the relevant orders have not been
received from the Regulatory Authority. It is presumed that favorable orders for the full amount will
be available. In the event of any variation in the orders of WBERC, adjustment of net profit &
regulatory assets may be necessitated to the extent of such variation.

ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 2015-2016



Note No.-22 : Other Income

_ 2015-2016
Particulars (T in lakhs)
A) Interestincome
Interest on Staff Loan & Advances 104
Interest on Loans & Advances to Licensees 33
Interest from Bank on Fixed Deposits & Other Deposits 2396
B) Dividend Income 94
C) Othernon-operatingincome
Income from Sale of Scrap 1103
Consulting Income 180
ED Commission 1033
Fine/Penalty imposed on a/c of theft of Power 11
Tender Paper 116
Rental from Staff Quarters 21
Rental from Contractors 16
Rental from Others 37
Penalty deducted from Contractor/ Supplier 233
Other misc. income 405
Incentive for timely payment of Loan 422
Total (A+B+C) 6394

22.1 Shareof Joint Venture as pernote 31(5)is ¥ 57 lakhs

22.2 Duringthe year 2015-16, an amount of ¥ 94 lakhs received from New Town Electric Supply Co. Ltd
(NTESCL) as dividend against investment in equity shares of ¥ 494 lakhs.

Note No.-23 : Purchase of Power & Transmission Charges

Particulars 20152016
(¥ in lakhs)
PURCHASE OF POWER FROMDIFFERENT SOURCES 1211268
Swap-in Power 33228
Deviation Settlement Mechanism (DSM) payable 7542
Sum-Total (i) 1252037

TRANSMISSION CHARGES FORM DIFFERENT SOURCES
Power Grid Corporation India Limited 48190
West Bengal State Electricity Transmission Company Limited 113880
Power System operation Corporation Ltd 543
NVVN LTD (for Reimbursement) 709
Sum-Total (ii) 163321
ERPC Charges 385
SLDC Charges 1486
Total (i + i) 1417230
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23.1
23.2

233

234

Power Purchase expenditure accounting was made on consumption month basis.

Such cost was 76% (previous year 79%) of total cost. The average purchase of power cost is 384 paise
per kwh (including transmission charges) for the current financial year.

The power purchase cost includes transmission charges of ¥ 163321 lakhs, paid / payable to
WBSETCL ¥ 113880 lakhs, Power Grid Corporation India Ltd ¥ 48190 lakhs, Power System
Operation Corporation ¥ 543 lakhs and NVVN Ltd. ¥ 709 lakhs for reimbursement of Transmission
charges for inter state transfer of Solar Power from Rajasthan Rajya Vidyut Prasaran Nigam Ltd.
respectively.

SWAP- IN in from different utilities outside the State was considered in the accounts and the same
was included in the Power Purchase Cost on the basis of average cost of Power purchase excluding
transmission charges for the current financial year.

Note No. - 24 : Employees Benefit Expenses
Particul 2015-2016
aoteLan (Tin lakhs)
Salaries 28020
Overtime 1362
Dearness Allowance 32590
OtherAllowance 8300
Bonus 15616
Other Staff Cost 4127
Staff Welfare Expenses 1181
Employee Terminal Benefits 62672
Sub-Total 139768
Less : Employees Cost Capitalised 22516
Total 117252
24.1 Share of Joint Venture as pernote 31(5)is ¥ 59 lakhs.
24.2 During the financial year Contribution to Provident Fund for ¥ 2512 lakhs.
24.3 Terminal Benefits (Disclosure Required under Revised AS - 15).
The employees Pension Fund Scheme (employees opted for death cum retirement benefit), Gratuity
fund (all employees) managed by Pension Trustee and Gratuity Trustee are Defined Benefit Plan,
Obligations for leave encashments on retirement and leave travel assistance are unfunded and the
payment of such benefit is made by the Company. All obligations i.e. Pension, Gratuity and Leave
Encashment are recognized on the basis of actuary valuation.
24.4 As per Actuarial valuation report under Accounting Standard 15 (R 2005), of the CPF Trust Fund, no
liability is due by the company to the CPF Trust Fund as on31.03.2016.
24.5 Actuarial valuation of Pension, Gratuity and Leave Encashment Benefit as on 31.03.2016.
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Table 7 :

Actuarial assumptions
Mortality Table : IALM (2006- 08) ULTIMATE
Superannuation Age : 60

Early retirement & disablement : 10 perthousandp.a.
6 aboveage 45
3 between29 and 45
1 belowage 29

Discount rate : 8.00%

Inflation rate : 6.00%

Return on Asset : 8.00%

Return on Asset : Notapplicable for Leave Encashment.
Remaining working life : 9yearsin case of Pension

17 years in case of Gratuity & Leave Encashment
Formula used : Projected unit credit method
The above assumptions are applicable for Pension, Gratuity and leave Encashment. The summarized position

of various defined benefits recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss, Balance Sheet are as under :
(Figures givenin [ ] are for previous year)

Table1:
Table showing changes in present value of obligations as at 31.03.2016
Pension Gratuity Enlc-:;\ﬁen ¢
Particulars (funded) (funded) (unfunded)
(T lakhs) (Tlakhs) | "(Zlakhs)
Present Value of obligation at beginning of year 639879 47485 30339
Acquisition Adjustment 0 0 0
Interest Cost 49097 3305 2157
Past Service Cost 0 0 0
Current Service Cost 43733 1476 3523
Curtailment Cost 0 0 0
Settlement Cost 0 0 0
Benefits Paid 52335 12343 6750
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on obligations (26492) 973 (3756)
Present Value of Obligation atthe end of Year 653882 40896 25513
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Table —2

Table showing changes in fair value of Plan Assets as at 31.03.2016

Pension Gratuity Leave
Particulars (funded) | (funded) | FrcasheN
(X lakhs) (Xlakhs) | "(Zlakhs)
Fair Value of Plan Asset at Beginning of year 418166 21256 Not
Acquisition Adjustment 0 0 applicable
Expected Return on Plan Asset 33453 1700 as
Contributions 28961 12653 Scheme is
Benefits Paid 52335 12343 | unfunded
Actuarial gain/ (loss)on plan Asset (19194) (2946)
Fair Value of Plan Asset at End of year 409051 20320 0
Table - 3
Table Showing Funded Status as at 31.03.2016
Pension Gratuity Leave
PariEUIaAS (funded) | (funded) %Sg?j,?é“:é‘f
(X lakhs) (Xlakhs) | "(Zlakhs)
Present Value of obligation at end of year 653883 40897 | Not
Fair Value of Plan Asset at End Year 409051 20320 | applicable
Funded Status (244832) (20577) | as Scheme
Unrecognised actuarial gain/loss at end of the year 0 0 is unfunded
NetAsset (Liability) recognised in Balance Sheet (244832) (20577)
Table - 4
Table Showing Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit / Loss as at 31.03.2016
Pension Gratuity Leave
Particulars (funded) (funded) I(Egg?jr?én:g)t
(X lakhs) (X lakhs) (Zlakhs)
Current Service Cost 43733 1476 3523
Past Service Cost 0 0 0
Interest Cost 49097 3305 2157
Expected Return on Plan Asset 33453 1700 0
Curtailment cost 0 0 0
Settlement Cost 0 0 0
Actuarial gain/ (loss) Recognisedin the year (7297) 3919 (3756)
Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit/Loss 52080 7000 1924
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24.6 Liability on account of Leave Travel Assistance (unfunded) as at 31.03.2016 has been shown by the
actuary as ¥ 2980 lakhs excludes payment made during the year2015-16

24.7 As per final transfer scheme all obligations in respect of pension and other retirement benefits
including provident fund who have retired from service of the company before the effective date of
transfer shall be discharged by Trustees.

24.8 Employee cost was capitalized as per the policy approved by the Board of Directors and the same has
been accepted by WBERC at the time of determination of Tariff.

24.9 As per order of Govt of West Bengal vide no. 984-PO/O/C-IV/1E-88/13 dated 28.10.2015 (effective
from 01.11.2015), 1029 numbers of employees of WBSEDCL who have opted to serve in WBSETCL
have been released from the service of WBSEDCL. Necessary provisions on account of leave have
been made in the accounts.

Note No. - 25 : Finance Cost
r 2015-2016
Particulars (T in lakhs)
A) Interest Expenses
(i) Intereston Capital Loans
Interest on State Government Loan 17375
Interest on otherLoans:
Interest on Loan from REC Ltd. 23204
Interest on Loan from PFC Lid. 2170
Interest on Capital Bond 10117
Interest on Public Bond 474
Less : Interest Capitalised 1488
Sub-total 51852
(ii) Interest on Working Capital Loans
Interest on Short Term Loan
Interest on Loan from Commercial Bank 5965
Interest on Loan from PFC Ltd. 21903
Interest on Loan from REC Lid. 4971
Interest on Bank Over Draft
Interest on Over Draft from Commercial Bank 35012
Sub-total 67851
(iii) Interest on Pension Trust Bond 13005
(iv) Interest on Consumer Security Deposits 10257
Sub-total (A) 142965
B) Otherfinance Costs
Government Guarantee Fees 41
Bank Charges 2151
Sub-total (B) 2192
Total (A+B) 145157
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25.1 Interestonloan was capitalized as per the policy approved by the Board of Directors.

25.2 In absence of any stipulated rate interest on REC loan (due to amalgamation of WBREDCL)
considered in the accounts based on available interest on State Govt. Loan.

25.3 Total interest capitalized during the year was ¥ 1488 lakhs on qualifying Assets.

Note No. - 26 : Depreciation
Particulars ANEEIL
(% in lakhs)
Depreciation 65804
Total 65804

26.1 Share of joint Venture as pernote 31(5) is ¥ 13 lakhs

26.2 Total Depreciation of ¥ 65804 lakhs arrived after adjustment of amortization of Reserve of ¥ 15915
lakhs. Thus total Depreciation accounted in the current financial year of ¥ 81719 lakhs. (as pernote 11).

To comply with the Regulation of WBERC, rate of depreciation of certain category of fixed assets have
been changed from the financial year 2014-15. As a result Unamortized depreciation amounting
¥ 3781 lakhs on fixed assets having residual life has been charged in the accounts & balance ¥ 5906
lakhs of amortized depreciation whould be charged over the remaining useful life of those assets.

26.3 As per revised accounting policy of the Company individual assets valued ¥ 5000 or less has been
depreciated as per normal rate instead of charging full value of assets in the year of acquisition.

Note No.-27 : Other Expenses
Particulars 20? 2ld
(¥ in lakhs)
A) Outsourced jobs : Manpower Related
Meter Reading & Bill Distribution 10091
Sub-Station Maintenance 3303
Generating Station Maintenance 1061
Franchisee 581
Line Maintenance 12070
Collection Franchisee 1492
Security Expenses 3418
Call Center Expenses in line with ZRC & CRC as per SOP regulation 2494
Back office job 182
Communication Systems (Lease Rental) 2046
Mobile Maintenance Service 11965
Complain Management Mechanism 315
Sub-total (A) 49018
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B) Repair & Maintenance Expenses :

Plant & Machinery 9624
Buildings 717
Civil Works 792
Hydraulic Works 510
Lines, Cables Net Work etc. 19719
Vehicles 19
Furniture & Fixtures 84
Office Equipments 2622
Sub total (B) 34088
C) Administrative & General Expenses :
Rent, Rates, Taxes 8846
Insurance 808
Telephone, Postage, Telegram & Telex Charges 551
Legal Charges 628
AuditFees 205
Consultancy Charges 143
Technical Fees 697
Training Expenses 263
Conveyance & Travel 4713
Fees & Subscriptions 220
Books & Periodicals 2
Printing & Stationary 1493
Advertisements 390
Water Charges 17
Part Time Employee Charges 705
Hospitality - Food and Beverage 121
Miscellaneous Expenses 128
License Fees 205
Incidental expenses related to stores 914
Director Sitting Fees 9
Power Exchange Charges 287
Expenditure on social Responsibility 144
Sub-total (C) 21490
D) OtherDebits :
Compensation injuries on Death / Damages-Staff & Outsiders 177
Compensation to Consumers-Order of Commission 62
Interest on Delayed Payment 4149
Provision for Bad & Doubtful DEbt 1742
Other Provision 1114
Sub-total (D) 7244
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E) NetPriorPeriod income/(expenditure):
Prior Period Incomes

Other Income relating to prior period 44
Excess provision written Back 126
Total Credits (a) 170

Prior Period Expenses/Losses
Operating Expenses of previous years 732
Total Debits (b) 732
Sub-total (E) (562)
Total (A+B+C+D-E) 112401

27.1 Share of joint Venture as pernote 31(5) is T 160 lakhs

27.2 Repair & maintenance Cost of ¥ 34088 lakhs. The activity wise such costs are for Generation ¥4576
lakhs, for Distribution and Metering ¥ 24272 lakhs, others ¥ 5142 lakhs & Share of Joint Venture % 98
lakhs.

27.3 Repair & maintenance Cost of Generation of ¥4576 lakhs includes %3293 lakhs for Purulia Pump
storage project.

27.4 Rent, Rate & Taxes of ¥ 8846 lakhs includes Rent ¥ 1138 lakhs, Rate and Taxes including Services
Tax 7678 lakhs & Share of joint Venture ¥ 30 lakhs.

Payment to Auditors as:

Sl SO 2015-2016 [ 2014-2015

No. (% in lakhs)

Payment to Statutory Auditor :

1. Statutory Audit Fee 15.10 11.00
2. Certification Fees 4.00 6.00
Sub-total 19.10 17.00
CostAudit Fee 0.75 1.00
Internal Audit & other Audit fees 185.50 130.00
Total 205.35 148.00

The above fees are excluding Service Taxes.

27.5 Other Debit of I 7244 lakhs includes ¥ 2856 lakhs on account of various provisions, as per order of
Supreme Court Interest of I 4149 was paid to the vendor for project work of PPSP & others I 239
lakhs.

27.6 Total value of assets/materials lost due to theft, burglary, fraud etc. was ¥ 38 lakhs and the entire
amount was provided in the accounts of 2015-16.

27.7 Excess provision written back of ¥ 126 lakhs. Administrative & General Expenses of ¥ 97 lakhs,
Employees Costof I 29 lakhs.
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27.8 Prior period expenses include operating Expenses of previous year of ¥ 723 lakhs includes
Administrative & General Expenses of ¥ 709 lakhs and Interest, other Finance cost of ¥ 14 lakhs &

Share of Joint Venture as pernote 31(5) is ¥ 91akhs.

Note No - 28 : Tax Expenses

Description

2015-2016
(% in lakhs)

Provision for Income Tax

1412

Total

1412

28.1

Share of Joint Venture as pernote 31(5) is ¥ 51 lakhs.

29. Expenditurein Foreign Currency
29.1 During the financial year 2015-16 an amount of I 148 lakhs has been considered in the accounts as
fluctuation of foreign exchange rate and adjusted with Fixed assets as per AS-11
29.2 Earning in Foreign Currency during the financial year is - Nil (previous year - Nil).
30.Earning per share
Sl ;
No. Particulars 2015-2016
i) Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit & Loss attributable to Equity Share 2251
holders ( ¥ inlakhs)
ii) Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for calculating 22567
EPS (Number in lakhs)
iii)) Face Value of Share in (¥ ) 10
iv) Basic & Diluted Earnings per share (¥ ) 0.10

31. Related Party Disclosures as required by Accounting Standard 18(AS-18):
1. Joint Ventures (where transactions have taken place during the year)
New Town Electric Supply Co. Ltd.
West Bengal Green Energy Development Corporation Ltd. (Ceased since 24/02/2016)

2. Key Managerial Personnel

Name Designation

Period of Tenure

Sri Rajesh Pandey

Chairman and Managing Director

From 02.01.2016t031.03.2016

Sri Narayan Swaroop Nigam

Chairman and Managing Director

From 01.04.20151t002.01.2016
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Sri Kalyan Kumar Ghosh Dirctor (Finance) & CFO From 01.04.2015 to 31.03.2016
Sri. Debidas Datta Director (Generation) From 01.04.2015 to 31.03.2016
Sri Ranijit Kumar Majumder Director (Distribution) From 01.04.2015 to 31.03.2016
Sri Sujay Sarkar Director (HR) From 31.08.2015 to 31.03.2016
Sri Tapan Kanti Rudra Director (HR) From 01.04.2015 to 31.08.2015
Sri Niranjan Saha Director (Projects) From 30.04.2015 to 31.03.2016
Sri Ajay Kumar Pandey Director (R & T) From 29.05.2015 to 31.03.2016
Sri P.K. Banerjee Company Secretary From 01.04.2015 to 31.03.2016
3. Details of Transaction :- (T in lakhs)
Nature of Transaction Key Management
Personnel
Remuneration under meaning of the Companies Act, 2013 139
Independent Directors - Fees 9

4. Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General Instruction for Preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statement.

Net Assets Share in Profit or (Loss)
Name of the Entity As % of Amount As % of Amount
Consolidated (in¥ Consolidated (in¥
Net Assets lakhs) Profit or (Loss) lakhs)
West Bengal State Electricity
Parent Distribution Company Ltd. 99.96 | 4061692 96 2158
Jointly .
Controlled New Town Electric Supply Co. Ltd. 0.04 1449 4 93
Entities

5. Interest in Joint Venture considered in the preparation of this Consolidated Financial Statement.

Country of
Name of the Company NGomrtion % of Interest
New Town Electric Supply Co. Ltd India 50%

32. Other disclosure:-
1.1 Total payable amount due to MSMED Industrial Undertakings as could be identified for over 45 days
was Nil (Previous year Nil)
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1.2 According to the management there is no indication of Impairment which requires reestimating the
recoverable amount of Assets.

1.3  Contingent Liability & Commitments ( ¥ in lakhs)

S| Ase at 31 March 2016
i Particulars Amount
No. (€ in lakhs) Remarks
(A) Contingent Liabilities
i) Claims against the company not acknowledged 302 Claims against the company not
as debts acknowledged as debts
ii) Kamarhatty Power Limited 221 Delayed payment surcharge
(B) Guarantees
i) Sguaainm;r:tsztstet::o?z\rlésd : financial Institutions 66006 Against Default of payment
ii) Guarantees to PFC on behalf of West Bengal 456 Loan
Green Energy development corporation Ltd.
(C) Commitments
i) Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be 207278
executed on capital account & not provided for.
D) Other Commitments
i) Income Tax cases of erstwhile West Bengal 375 | Disputed addition of income for the
Rural Energy Development Corporation Limited AY-2001-02, 2003-04 and 2004-05
ii) Sales Tax / VAT / Service Tax 6348 | Meter Rent, Rental income under
sub-judice, etc.
i) Municipal Tax 12 Disputed claims of different Municipality
iv) | Contractor Claim under arbitration / Court case a8 Disputed / sub-judice
v) | Misc Court Cases 370 | Billing Dispute & others
vi) Electricity Duty 20979 | Disputed
vii) | Amount attached as per court order 20 | Attached as per direction of the
court. The matter is sub-judice
viii) | Amount deposited as per court order 38 The matter is sub-judice
ix) | Central Electricity Authority 3347 | Loan including interest thereof
In Term of our Report of even date
For DE & BOSE For & on behalf of the Board
CHATERED ACCOUNTANTS .
FRN. 302175E r%
_.E—o.maupj;\ it g"/ y’%/’ &ﬁ/
(Tarit Dasgupta) & _(KK. Ghosh) (PK. Banerjee) (Rajesh Pandey)
Partner n|'\KOU(,~.T. ) cl?\llr:fcl?ra(ﬂrllaalngg c&e i Company Secretary  Chairman & Managing Director
2 o n
Membership No. 053380 N
Placa : Kolkata '

Date : 04th July, 2016
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FORM AOC -1

to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2016

Statemet pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013

Part "B" : Joint Venture

[ All amount in ¥ lakhs, unless, otherwise stated ]

Name of the Joint Ventures : New Town Electric Supply Company Ltd.

1 | Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31st March, 2016

2 | Shares of Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end
i) Number 49323
i) Amount of Investment in Joint Venture 494
iii) Extend of Holding % 50%

3. | Description of how there is significant influence Composition of Board of Directors

4. | Reason why the Joint Venture is not consolidated Not Applicable

5. | Net Worth attributable to Shareholding as per latest _ 1251
Audited Balance Sheet Not Applicable

6. | Profit / Loss for the year
i) Considered in Consolidation 93
ii) Not Considered in Consolidation 94

Note:a)| Refer note 31.1 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for information on joint Ventures

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

( Rajesh Pandey)

( K.K. Ghosh) ( PK. Banerjee)
Director (Finance) & Company Secretary
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Kolkata
Date : 04th July, 2016

Chairman & Managing Director
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